

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

1998

This Form is Open to Public Inspection

Under section 501(c) of the Internal Revenue Code (except black lung benefit trust or private foundation) or section 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust

Note: The organization may have to use a copy of this return to satisfy state reporting requirements.

A For the 1998 calendar year, OR tax year period beginning 07/01, 1998, and ending 06/30, 19 99

ENVELOPE POSTMARK DATE

B Check if Change of address Initial return Final return Amended return (required also for state reporting) C Name of organization: JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION OF CLEVELAND D Employer identification number: 34-0714445 E Telephone number: (216) 566-9200 F Check if exemption application is pending

G Type of organization - [X] Exempt under section 501(c) (03) (Insert number) OR [] section 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust

Note: Section 501(c)(3) exempt organizations and 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trusts MUST attach a completed Schedule A (Form 990)

(a) Is this a group return filed for affiliates? [] Yes [X] No I If either box in H is checked "Yes," enter four-digit group exemption number (GEN) (b) If "Yes," enter the number of affiliates for which this return is filed J Accounting method [] Cash [X] Accrual (c) Is this a separate return filed by an organization covered by a group ruling? [] Yes [X] No [] Other (specify)

Check here [] if the organization's gross receipts are normally not more than \$25,000. The organization need not file a return with the IRS, but if it received a Form 990 Package in the mail, it should file a return without financial data. Some states require a complete return.

Note: Form 990-EZ may be used by organizations with gross receipts less than \$100,000 and total assets less than \$250,000 at end of year

Part I Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets or Fund Balances (See Specific Instructions on page 13)

Table with 21 rows and 4 columns: Description, Sub-description, Amount, and Total. Includes Revenue (lines 1-17) and Net Assets (lines 18-21). Total revenue is 95,639,728. Total expenses is 94,147,057. Net assets at end of year is 383,584,948.

Revenue Expenses Net Assets

JUN 27 2003

EXPENSES SCANNED

EQ ACCOUNTS RECEIVED MAY 30 TPR BRANCH OGDEN RECEIVED MAY 18 2003 OGDEN, ILL. IRS-OSC

Part II Statement of Functional Expenses

All organizations must complete column (A) Columns (B), (C), and (D) are required for section 501(c)(3) and (4) organizations and section 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trusts but optional for others (See Specific Instructions on page 17.)

Do not include amounts reported on line 6b, 8b, 9b, 10b, or 16 of Part I	(A) Total	(B) Program services	(C) Management and general	(D) Fundraising
22 Grants and allocations (attach schedule) (cash <u>84,198,862</u> , noncash _____)	22 84,198,862.	84,198,862.	STATEMENT 6	
23 Specific assistance to individuals (attach schedule)	23			
24 Benefits paid to or for members (attach schedule)	24			
25 Compensation of officers, directors, etc	25 650,000.	182,000.	169,000.	299,000.
26 Other salaries and wages	26 3,964,541.	1,315,769.	988,569.	1,660,203.
27 Pension plan contributions	27 154,900.	41,631.	37,559.	75,710.
28 Other employee benefits	28 507,657.	136,435.	123,095.	248,127.
29 Payroll taxes	29 314,789.	102,246.	77,857.	134,686.
30 Professional fundraising fees	30			
31 Accounting fees	31 106,682.	57,056.	29,247.	20,379.
32 Legal fees	32 126,044.	48,664.	33,811.	43,569.
33 Supplies	33 76,560.	18,193.	9,727.	48,640.
34 Telephone	34 124,374.	30,675.	5,854.	87,845.
35 Postage and shipping	35 148,786.	20,998.	7,251.	120,537.
36 Occupancy	36 179,675.	60,602.	15,384.	103,689.
37 Equipment rental and maintenance	37 149,819.	86,645.	12,187.	50,987.
38 Printing and publications	38			
39 Travel <i>Included in line 40</i>	39			
40 Conferences, conventions, and meetings	40 779,392.	281,452.	48,604.	449,336.
41 Interest	41			
42 Depreciation, depletion, etc (attach schedule)	42 403,991.	60,442.	124,744.	218,805.
43 Other expenses (itemize) a <u>STMT 4</u>	43a 2,260,985.	1,257,972.	800,147.	202,866.
b _____	43b			
c _____	43c			
d _____	43d			
e _____	43e			
44 Total functional expenses (add lines 22 through 43) Organizations completing columns (B)-(D), carry these totals to lines 13-15	44 94,147,057.	87,899,642.	2,483,036.	3,764,379.

Reporting of Joint Costs. - Did you report in column (B) (Program services) any joint costs from a combined educational campaign and fundraising solicitation? Yes No
 If "Yes," enter (i) the aggregate amount of these joint costs \$ N/A, (ii) the amount allocated to Program services \$ N/A, (iii) the amount allocated to Management and general \$ N/A, and (iv) the amount allocated to Fundraising \$ N/A

Part III Statement of Program Service Accomplishments (See Specific Instructions on page 20)

What is the organization's primary exempt purpose? <u>SEE STATEMENT 5</u>	Program Service Expenses (Required for 501(c)(3) and (4) orgs., and 4947(a)(1) trusts, but optional for others)
a <u>ALLOCATIONS, GRANTS, DIRECT SERVICE COSTS, ETC. FOR CHARITABLE, EDUCATIONAL AND RELIGIOUS PURPOSES</u>	
(Grants and allocations \$ <u>84,198,862.</u>)	87,899,642.
b _____	
(Grants and allocations \$ _____)	
c _____	
(Grants and allocations \$ _____)	
d _____	
(Grants and allocations \$ _____)	
e Other program services (attach schedule) (Grants and allocations \$ _____)	
f Total of Program Service Expenses (should equal line 44, column (B), Program services)	87,899,642

Part IV Balance Sheets (See Specific Instructions on page 20.)

Note: Where required, attached schedules and amounts within the description column should be for end-of-year amounts only		(A) Beginning of year	(B) End of year
Assets	45 Cash - non-interest-bearing	45	
	46 Savings and temporary cash investments	5,745,652.	46 4,669,305.
	47a Accounts receivable	47a 6,087,469.	
	b Less allowance for doubtful accounts	47b NONE	47c 6,087,469.
	48a Pledges receivable	48a 29,969,013.	
	b Less allowance for doubtful accounts	48b 12,773,000.	48c 17,196,013.
	49 Grants receivable		49
	50 Receivables from officers, directors, trustees, and key employees (attach schedule)		50
	51a Other notes and loans receivable (attach schedule) STATEMENT 10	51a 2,309,174.	
	b Less allowance for doubtful accounts	51b NONE	51c 2,309,174.
	52 Inventories for sale or use	6,109.	52 10,976.
	53 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges	4,212,124.	53 6,191,400.
	54 Investments - securities (attach schedule) STATEMENT 9	343,355,542	54 316,338,156.
	55a Investments - land, buildings, and equipment basis	55a 4,538,210.	
	b Less accumulated depreciation (attach schedule) STATEMENT 8	55b NONE	55c 4,538,210.
	56 Investments - other (attach schedule) SEE STATEMENT 8	1,800,861.	56 1,035,366.
	57a Land, buildings, and equipment basis	57a 12,403,575.	
	b Less accumulated depreciation (attach schedule) STATEMENT 8	57b 4,442,004.	57c 7,961,571.
	58 Other assets (describe SEE STATEMENT 6)	49,896,799.	58 50,869,456.
	59 Total assets (add lines 45 through 58) (must equal line 74)	439,304,452.	59 417,207,096.
Liabilities	60 Accounts payable and accrued expenses	2,466,202.	60 3,120,324.
	61 Grants payable	8,362,369.	61 14,427,930.
	62 Deferred revenue		62
	63 Loans from officers, directors, trustees, and key employees (attach schedule)		63
	64a Tax-exempt bond liabilities (attach schedule)		64a
	b Mortgages and other notes payable (attach schedule)		64b
	65 Other liabilities (describe STATEMENT 8)	18,185,800.	65 16,073,894.
	66 Total liabilities (add lines 60 through 65)	29,014,371.	66 33,622,148.
Net Assets or Fund Balances	Organizations that follow SFAS 117, check here <input checked="" type="checkbox"/> and complete lines 67 through 69 and lines 73 and 74		
	67 Unrestricted	310,886,405.	67 273,884,693.
	68 Temporarily restricted	83,959,452.	68 93,621,360.
	69 Permanently restricted	15,444,224.	69 16,078,895.
	Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117, check here <input type="checkbox"/> and complete lines 70 through 74		
	70 Capital stock, trust principal, or current funds		70
	71 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, and equipment fund		71
	72 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds		72
	73 Total net assets or fund balances (add lines 67 through 69 OR lines 70 through 72, column (A) must equal line 19 and column (B) must equal line 21)	410,290,081.	73 383,584,948.
	74 Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances (add lines 66 and 73)	439,304,452.	74 417,207,096.

Form 990 is available for public inspection and, for some people, serves as the primary or sole source of information about a particular organization. How the public perceives an organization in such cases may be determined by the information presented on its return. Therefore, please make sure the return is complete and accurate and fully describes, in Part III, the organization's programs and accomplishments.

Part VI Other Information (See Specific Instructions on page 23)

Yes No

6 Did the organization engage in any activity not previously reported to the IRS? If "Yes," attach a detailed description of each activity 76 X

7 Were any changes made in the organizing or governing documents but not reported to the IRS? 77 X
If "Yes," attach a conformed copy of the changes **SEE APPENDIX A-4**

8a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of \$1,000 or more during the year covered by this return? 78a X
b If "Yes," has it filed a tax return on Form 990-T for this year? 78b X

9 Was there a liquidation, dissolution, termination, or substantial contraction during the year? If "Yes," attach a statement 79 X

0a Is the organization related (other than by association with a statewide or nationwide organization) through common membership, governing bodies, trustees, officers, etc., to any other exempt or nonexempt organization? 80a X
b If "Yes," enter the name of the organization _____ and check whether it is exempt OR nonexempt

1a Enter the amount of political expenditures, direct or indirect, as described in the Instructions for line 81 81a NONE
b Did the organization file Form 1120-POL for this year? 81b X

2a Did the organization receive donated services or the use of materials, equipment, or facilities at no charge or at substantially less than fair rental value? 82a X
b If "Yes," you may indicate the value of these items here. Do not include this amount as revenue in Part I or as an expense in Part II (See Instructions for reporting in Part III). 82b Value Determinable

3a Did the organization comply with the public inspection requirements for returns and exemption applications? 83a X
b Did the organization comply with the disclosure requirements relating to quid pro quo contributions? 83b X

4a Did the organization solicit any contributions or gifts that were not tax deductible? 84a X
b If "Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts were not tax deductible? 84b N/A

5 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) organizations. - a Were substantially all dues nondeductible by members? 85a N/A
b Did the organization make only in-house lobbying expenditures of \$2,000 or less? 85b N/A
If "Yes" was answered to either 85a or 85b, do not complete 85c through 85h below unless the organization received a waiver for proxy tax owed for the prior year
c Dues, assessments, and similar amounts from members 85c N/A
d Section 162(e) lobbying and political expenditures 85d N/A
e Aggregate nondeductible amount of section 6033(e)(1)(A) dues notices 85e N/A
f Taxable amount of lobbying and political expenditures (line 85d less 85e) 85f N/A
g Does the organization elect to pay the section 6033(e) tax on the amount in 85f? 85g N/A
h If section 6033(e)(1)(A) dues notices were sent, does the organization agree to add the amount in 85f to its reasonable estimate of dues allocable to nondeductible lobbying and political expenditures for the following tax year? 85h N/A

6 501(c)(7) organizations. - Enter a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on line 12 86a N/A
b Gross receipts, included on line 12, for public use of club facilities 86b N/A

7 501(c)(12) organizations - Enter
a Gross income from members or shareholders 87a N/A
b Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources against amounts due or received from them) 87b N/A

8 At any time during the year, did the organization own a 50% or greater interest in a taxable corporation or partnership? If "Yes," complete Part IX 88 X

9a 501(c)(3) organizations. - Enter Amount of tax imposed on the organization during the year under section 4911 NONE, section 4912 NONE, section 4955 NONE
b 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations - Did the organization engage in any section 4958 excess benefit transaction during the year? If "Yes," attach a statement explaining each transaction 89b X
c Enter Amount of tax imposed on the organization managers or disqualified persons during the year under sections 4912, 4955, and 4958 NONE
d Enter Amount of tax in 89c, above, reimbursed by the organization NONE

0a List the states with which a copy of this return is filed OHIO
b Number of employees employed in the pay period that includes March 12, 1998 (See Instructions). 90b 174

1 The books are in care of STEVEN E EISENBERG Telephone no 216-566-9200
Located at 1750 EUCLID AVE, CLEVELAND, OH ZIP + 4 44115

2 Section 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trusts filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041 - Check here and enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the tax year 92 N/A

Part VII Analysis of Income-Producing Activities (See Specific Instructions on page 27)

Enter gross amounts unless otherwise indicated	Unrelated business income		Excluded by section 512, 513, or 514		(E) Related or exempt function income
	(A) Business code	(B) Amount	(C) Exclusion code	(D) Amount	
93 Program service revenue					
a _____					
b _____					
c _____					
d _____					
e _____					
f Medicare/Medicaid payments					
g Fees and contracts from government agencies					
94 Membership dues and assessments					
95 Interest on savings and temporary cash investments					
96 Dividends and interest from securities			14	9,452,621.	
97 Net rental income or (loss) from real estate					
a debt-financed property					
b not debt-financed property			16	87,809.	
98 Net rental income or (loss) from personal property					
99 Other investment income					
100 Gain or (loss) from sales of assets other than inventory			18	38,922,979.	
101 Net income or (loss) from special events					
102 Gross profit or (loss) from sales of inventory					
103 Other revenue a _____					
b SEE STATEMENT 13		9,767.		3,470,878.	438,479.
c _____					
d _____					
e _____					
104 Subtotal (add columns (B), (D), and (E)).		9,767.		51,934,287.	438,479.
105 Total (add line 104, columns (B), (D), and (E))					52,380,533.

Note (Line 105 plus line 1d, Part I, should equal the amount on line 12, Part I)

Part VIII Relationship of Activities to the Accomplishment of Exempt Purposes (See Specific Instructions on page 28)

Line No	Explain how each activity for which income is reported in column (E) of Part VII contributed importantly to the accomplishment of the organization's exempt purposes (other than by providing funds for such purposes)
103B	INCOME RECEIVED FOR THOSE SERVICES PERFORMED FOR ASSESSMENTS TO VARIOUS TAX-EXEMPT AFFILIATED AGENCIES WHICH ASSIST IN THE OVERALL ADMINISTRATION AND IMPROVES THE EFFICIENCY OF THE FEDERATION, ITS AGENCIES AND AFFILIATES. INCOME RECEIVED FOR VARIOUS PROGRAMS WHICH PROMOTE THE JEWISH COMMUNITY AND WHICH ARE IN FURTHERANCE OF THE FEDERATION'S TAX EXEMPT PURPOSE.

Part IX Information Regarding Taxable Subsidiaries (Complete this Part if the "Yes" box on line 88 is checked.)

Name, address, and employer identification number of corporation or partnership	Percentage of ownership interest
SEE STATEMENT 14	

Please Sign Here

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return and belief, it is true, correct, and complete Declaration of preparer (See General Instruction U on page 12)

Signature of officer: *BARRY REIS* BARRY REIS, TREASURER

Paid Preparer's Use Only

Preparer's signature: *[Signature]*

Firm's name (or yours if self-employed) and address: DELOITTE & TOUCHE, 127 PUBLIC SQUARE, CLEVELAND, OH

**SCHEDULE A
(Form 990)**

Organization Exempt Under Section 501(c)(3)

(Excluding Private Foundation) and Section 501(e), 501(f), 501(g), 501(h), 501(i), 501(j), 501(k), 501(l), 501(m), or Section 4947(a)(1) Nonexempt Charitable Trust

Supplementary Information

See separate instructions.

OMB No 1545-0047

1998

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

▶ Must be completed by the above organizations and attached to their Form 990 or 990-EZ

Name of the organization

JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION OF CLEVELAND

Employer identification number

34-0714445

Part I Compensation of the Five Highest Paid Employees Other Than Officers, Directors, and Trustees
(See instructions on page 1 List each one If there are none, enter "None ")

(a) Name and address of each employee paid more than \$50,000	(b) Title and average hours per week devoted to position	(c) Compensation	(d) Contributions to employee benefit plans & deferred compensation	(e) Expense account and other allowances
HARVEY FREIMAN 1750 EUCLID AVENUE CLEVELAND, OHIO 44115	FULL TIME	106,100.	8,422. *	
ALAN GROSS 1750 EUCLID AVENUE CLEVELAND, OHIO 44115	DIR OF ENDOW DEV FULL TIME	105,000.	8,241. *	
MARK GURVIS 1750 EUCLID AVENUE CLEVELAND, OHIO 44115	FULL TIME	110,000.	7,384. *	
BERINTHIA LE VINE 1750 EUCLID AVENUE CLEVELAND, OHIO 44115	DIR PHILAN PLANN NG FULL TIME	95,000.	8,191. *	
CHARLES EDELSBERG 1750 EUCLID AVENUE CLEVELAND, OHIO 44115	DIR OF ENDOW & FDM FULL TIME	110,000.	7,818. *	
Total number of other employees paid over \$50,000	▶ 17			

Part II Compensation of the Five Highest Paid Independent Contractors for Professional Services
(See instructions on page 1 List each one (whether individuals or firms) If there are none, enter "None ")

(a) Name and address of each independent contractor paid more than \$50,000	(b) Type of service	(c) Compensation
NEUBERGER & BERMAN LLC 605 THIRD AVENUE, NEW YORK, NY 10158	INVESTMENT MGMT.	223,653.
DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP SUITE 2500 127 PUBLIC SQ., CLEVELAND, OH 44115	AUDIT & TAX SERVICES	421,722.
ATLANTIC ASSET MANAGEMENT P.O. BOX 25250, OVERLAND, KS 66225	INVESTMENT MGT.	154,988.
MONTAG & CALDWELL 3455 PEACHTREE, #1200, ATLANTA, GA 30326	INVESTMENT MGT.	136,633.
CRAMER ROSENTHAL MCGLYNN P.O. BOX 9452, UNIONDALE, NY 11553-9724	INVESTMENT MGT.	118,849.
Total number of others receiving over \$50,000 for professional services	▶ 2	

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see page 1 of the Instructions for Form 990 and Form 990-EZ.

Schedule A (Form 990) 1998

JSA 1E1210 1 000 * While payments were made on behalf of these individuals to the Jewish Community Federation's defined benefit plan, a separate computation was not available for each
DZ4863 4031 V8.09.01

Part III Statements About Activities

Table with 3 columns: Question, Yes, No. Contains questions 1 through 4a regarding lobbying activities, grants, and annuity plans. Includes handwritten answers like '60,310', 'SEE STATEMENT 15', and 'STMT 17'.

Part IV Reason for Non-Private Foundation Status (See instructions on pages 2 through 4)

The organization is not a private foundation because it is (Please check only ONE applicable box.)

- 5 A church, convention of churches, or association of churches Section 170(b)(1)(A)(i)
6 A school Section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii) (Also complete Part V, page 4)
7 A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization Section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii)
8 A Federal, state, or local government or governmental unit. Section 170(b)(1)(A)(v)
9 A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital Section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii) Enter the hospital's name, city, and state
10 An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit Section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) (Also complete the Support Schedule in Part IV-A.)
11a [X] An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public Section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi) (Also complete the Support Schedule in Part IV-A)
11b A community trust Section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi) (Also complete the Support Schedule in Part IV-A.)
12 An organization that normally receives (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross receipts from activities related to its charitable, etc., functions - subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 33 1/3% of its support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975 See section 509(a)(2) (Also complete the Support Schedule in Part IV-A.)
13 An organization that is not controlled by any disqualified persons (other than foundation managers) and supports organizations described in (1) lines 5 through 12 above, or (2) section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6), if they meet the test of section 509(a)(2) (See section 509(a)(3))

Provide the following information about the supported organizations (See instructions on page 4)

Table with 2 columns: (a) Name(s) of supported organization(s), (b) Line number from above. Contains three empty rows for data entry.

14 An organization organized and operated to test for public safety Section 509(a)(4) (See instructions on page 4)

Part IV-A Support Schedule (Complete only if you checked a box on line 10, 11, or 12) Use cash method of accounting

Note You may use the worksheet in the instructions for converting from the accrual to the cash method of accounting

Table with columns for calendar year (a) 1997, (b) 1996, (c) 1995, (d) 1994, and (e) Total. Rows include: 5 Gifts, grants, and contributions received; 6 Membership fees received; 7 Gross receipts from admissions; 8 Gross income from interest, dividends; 9 Net income from unrelated business activities; 10 Tax revenues levied; 11 Value of services or facilities furnished; 12 Other income; 13 Total of lines 15 through 22; 14 Line 23 minus line 17; 15 Enter 1% of line 23; 16 Organizations described in lines 10 or 11; 17 Organizations described on line 12; 18 Unusual Grants.

Part V Private School Questionnaire (See instructions on page 4)

(To be completed ONLY by schools that checked the box on line 6 in Part IV)

NOT APPLICABLE

	Yes	No
29 Does the organization have a racially nondiscriminatory policy toward students by statement in its charter, bylaws, other governing instrument, or in a resolution of its governing body?		
30 Does the organization include a statement of its racially nondiscriminatory policy toward students in all its brochures, catalogues, and other written communications with the public dealing with student admissions, programs, and scholarships?		
31 Has the organization publicized its racially nondiscriminatory policy through newspaper or broadcast media during the period of solicitation for students, or during the registration period if it has no solicitation program, in a way that makes the policy known to all parts of the general community it serves? If "Yes," please describe, if "No," please explain. (If you need more space, attach a separate statement.)		
32 Does the organization maintain the following		
a Records indicating the racial composition of the student body, faculty, and administrative staff?		
b Records documenting that scholarships and other financial assistance are awarded on a racially nondiscriminatory basis?		
c Copies of all catalogues, brochures, announcements, and other written communications to the public dealing with student admissions, programs, and scholarships?		
d Copies of all material used by the organization or on its behalf to solicit contributions?		
If you answered "No" to any of the above, please explain (If you need more space, attach a separate statement)		
33 Does the organization discriminate by race in any way with respect to		
a Students' rights or privileges?		
b Admissions policies?		
c Employment of faculty or administrative staff?		
d Scholarships or other financial assistance?		
e Educational policies?		
f Use of facilities?		
g Athletic programs?		
h Other extracurricular activities?		
If you answered "Yes" to any of the above, please explain. (If you need more space, attach a separate statement)		
34a Does the organization receive any financial aid or assistance from a governmental agency?		
b Has the organization's right to such aid ever been revoked or suspended? If you answered "Yes" to either 34a or b, please explain using an attached statement		
35 Does the organization certify that it has complied with the applicable requirements of sections 4 01 through 4 05 of Rev Proc 75-50, 1975-2 C B 587, covering racial nondiscrimination? If "No," attach an explanation		

Part VI-A Lobbying Expenditures by Electing Public Charities (See instructions on page 6)

(To be completed ONLY by an eligible organization that filed Form 5768)

- Check here a if the organization belongs to an affiliated group
 Check here b if you checked "a" above and "limited control" provisions apply

Limits on Lobbying Expenditures (The term "expenditures" means amounts paid or incurred)		(a) Affiliated group totals	(b) To be completed for ALL electing organizations
36	Total lobbying expenditures to influence public opinion (grassroots lobbying)	36	
37	Total lobbying expenditures to influence a legislative body (direct lobbying)	37	60,310.
38	Total lobbying expenditures (add lines 36 and 37)	38	60,310.
39	Other exempt purpose expenditures	39	90,298,811.
40	Total exempt purpose expenditures (add lines 38 and 39)	40	90,359,121.
41	Lobbying nontaxable amount Enter the amount from the following table - If the amount on line 40 is - The lobbying nontaxable amount is - Not over \$500,000 20% of the amount on line 40 Over \$500,000 but not over \$1,000,000 . . . \$100,000 plus 15% of the excess over \$500,000 Over \$1,000,000 but not over \$1,500,000 . . \$175,000 plus 10% of the excess over \$1,000,000 Over \$1,500,000 but not over \$17,000,000 \$225,000 plus 5% of the excess over \$1,500,000 Over \$17,000,000 \$1,000,000	41	1,000,000.
42	Grassroots nontaxable amount (enter 25% of line 41)	42	250,000.
43	Subtract line 42 from line 36 Enter -0- if line 42 is more than line 36	43	
44	Subtract line 41 from line 38. Enter -0- if line 41 is more than line 38	44	

Caution: If there is an amount on either line 43 or line 44, you must file Form 4720

4-Year Averaging Period Under Section 501(h)

(Some organizations that made a section 501(h) election do not have to complete all of the five columns below
 See the instructions for lines 45 through 50 on page 7)

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) ▶	Lobbying Expenditures During 4-Year Averaging Period					
	(a) 1998	(b) 1997	(c) 1996	(d) 1995	(e) Total	
45	Lobbying nontaxable amount	1,000,000.	1,000,000.	1,000,000.	1,000,000.	4,000,000.
46	Lobbying ceiling amount (150% of line 45(e))					6,000,000
47	Total lobbying expenditures	60,310.	74,679.	86,120.	51,093.	272,202.
48	Grassroots nontaxable amount	250,000.	250,000.	250,000.	250,000.	1,000,000.
49	Grassroots ceiling amount (150% of line 48(e))					1,500,000.
50	Grassroots lobbying expenditures	NONE	NONE	NONE	NONE	NONE

Part VI-B Lobbying Activity by Nonelecting Public Charities

(For reporting only by organizations that did not complete Part VI-A) (See instructions on page 8)

During the year, did the organization attempt to influence national, state or local legislation, including any attempt to influence public opinion on a legislative matter or referendum, through the use of	Yes	No	Amount
a Volunteers		N/A	
b Paid staff or management (Include compensation in expenses reported on lines c through h)		N/A	
c Media advertisements		N/A	
d Mailings to members, legislators, or the public		N/A	
e Publications, or published or broadcast statements		N/A	
f Grants to other organizations for lobbying purposes		N/A	
g Direct contact with legislators, their staffs, government officials, or a legislative body		N/A	
h Rallies, demonstrations, seminars, conventions, speeches, lectures, or any other means		N/A	
i Total lobbying expenditures (add lines c through h)			

If "Yes" to any of the above, also attach a statement giving a detailed description of the lobbying activities

PART I LINE 8(d) – NET GAIN/LOSS FROM SALE OF ASSETS

JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION OF CLEVELAND
34-0714445

JUNE 30, 1999

DESCRIPTION	DATE ACQUIRED	DATE SOLD	BASIS	NET PROCEEDS	430310 SALES EXPENSE	430300 GAIN/(LOSS)	PURCHASER
1 Barberton - Sublot 135	Prior 1996	Dec 98	650	650	-	0	Charles Love
2 Willard-Highland View Sublot 2211	Prior 1996	5/4/1999	17,000	15,637	1,363	0	Bradley & Sara Jonas
3 Willard-Highland View Sublot 2217	4/7/1993	9/29/1998	15,500	14,664	1,336	500	Stephen & Karen Sickel
4 Emerald Lakes Development S/L23	Prior 1996	4/6/1999	47,300	45,134	6,866	4,700	Richard Kochert
5 Snow Road Sublots 233 & 231, Parcel 343-21-194	Prior 1996	Feb 99	15,993	38,489	5,261	27,757	D V D Corporation
6 Snow Road Sublots 232, Parcel 343-21-196	Prior 1996	Feb 99	15,993	38,489	5,261	27,757	D V D Corporation
7 Highland Woods	Prior 1996	Sept 98	32,500	32,500	-	0	Three M Homes
8 Gary & Springfield Sublot 19	Prior 1996	8/10/1998	13,425	7,066	934	(5,425)	Mami, Inc
9 Gary & Springfield Sublot 65	Prior 1996	8/14/1998	8,000	4,103	897	(3,000)	Mami, Inc
10 Austintown - Sublot 38	Prior 1996	July 98	500	1,000	-	500	Irene Calabria
11 Snow Rd - Brookpark Parcel 343-21-107 thru 199	Prior 1996	Aug 98	100,000	88,048	11,952	0	Sanwil & Company
12 Sublot 13 - 22% Cranwood Industrial	Prior 1996	Sept 98	19,582	17,164	-	(2,418)	Michael Downing
13 Snow Rd - Brookpark Parcel 343-21-190 thru 193	Prior 1996	Feb 99	175,000	153,955	21,045	0	D V D Corporation
14 Nottingham Woods - N Royalton Sublot 72 Rye Gate Road	12/98	5/14/1999	68,000	62,522	5,478	0	Cosmopolitan Homes - Ruth Allmon
Nottingham Woods - N Royalton Sublot 73 Rye Gate Road	12/98	4/9/1999	69,000	64,262	4,788	50	Kevin & Mary Cottom
16 Falls Pointe LTD - 4 Units	Prior 1996	Aug 98	40,000	41,900	100	2,000	Robert Hexter Trust
21 Lincoln National Insurance Policy	2/9/1999	May 99	1,684	1,168	-	(518)	Redeemed
801 3 ISLANDS BLVD APT 402 BLDG 4 HALLANDALE, FLORIDA 3309 DESOTO PARK CONDO	1/9/98	8/27/98	55,000	36,639	3,361	(15,000)	MCNAMARA MICHELE
AMMON ROAD SOUTH EUCLID	12/21/1982	7/13/98	32,500	31,350	2,300	1,150	BRIAN BALLOU and KATHLEEN BALLOU RECKSON MORRIS OPERATING PARTNERSHIP, L P
STULTS RD MIDDLESEX, N J	12/20/93	8/27/98	2,000,000	1,708,033	91,967	(200,000)	DUKE REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
TWINSBURG TOWNSHIP	10/7/97	9/9/98	660,000	593,068	6,218	(60,715)	DUKE REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Total Sales Not on the Open Market			3,387,627	2,995,839	169,127	(222,661)	
Total Sales on the Open Market			82,693,640	121,820,545	18,735	39,145,840	
Total Sales			86,081,267	124,816,384	187,862	38,922,979	
	Securities(A)	Other(B)					
8a	121,839,280	3,164,968					
8b	82,693,640	3,387,627					
	<u>39,145,840</u>	<u>(222,661)</u>		<u>38,922,979</u>			

PART I, LINE 20—OTHER CHANGES IN NET ASSETS OR FUND BALANCES

THE JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION OF CLEVELAND
34-0714445

JUNE 30, 1999

Other changes in net assets

Increases

Change in actuarial assumptions related to charitable
unitrusts and charitable remainder annuity trusts \$ 3,681,664

\$ 3,681,664

Decreases

Decrease in unrealized appreciation of securities (28,561,778)

Partnership income not recorded in books (3,317,690)

\$ (31,879,468)

\$ (28,197,804)

PART II – OTHER EXPENSES

THE JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION OF CLEVELAND
 34-0714445
 JUNE 30, 1999

<u>DESCRIPTION</u>	<u>TOTAL</u>	<u>PROGRAM SERVICES</u>	<u>MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL</u>	<u>FUNDRAISING</u>
<u>OTHER EXPENSES. Operating & Endowment - Line 43b</u>				
Insurance	33,197	11,347	3,537	18,313
Dues & Subscriptions	44,833	43,173	705	955
Communications	412,381	145,939	92,498	173,944
Other Equipment Costs	14,669	5,703	1,576	7,390
Miscellaneous	<u>92,742</u>	<u>62,288</u>	<u>28,190</u>	<u>2,264</u>
Total - Line 43b	597,822	268,450	126,506	202,866
<u>OTHER EXPENSES. Programs & Miscellaneous - Line 43c</u>				
Centrally Administered Benefit Programs	763,664	763,664	NONE	NONE
Agency Repairs & Replacements	25,554	25,554	NONE	NONE
Property Management	463,415	NONE	463,415	NONE
Information Systems	163,017	NONE	163,017	NONE
Refugee Resettlement	14,253	14,253	NONE	NONE
Miscellaneous	33,652	20,016	13,636	NONE
Israel at 50	166,035	166,035	NONE	NONE
Employee Relocation	21,200	NONE	21,200	NONE
Retiree Healthcare	12,373	NONE	12,373	NONE
Total - Line 43c	<u>1,663,163</u>	<u>989,522</u>	<u>673,641</u>	<u>-</u>
Total Line 43	<u>2,260,985</u>	<u>1,257,972</u>	<u>800,147</u>	<u>202,866</u>

PART III – ORGANIZATION'S PRIMARY EXEMPT PURPOSE

THE JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION OF CLEVELAND
34-0714445

JUNE 30, 1999

To cooperate with and assist other charitable, educational and religious organizations to strengthen the Jewish communities in Cleveland, Israel and around the world To conduct and support charitable, educational and religious projects and programs and to assist in harmonizing and *making more effective the work of organizations engaged in such projects and programs*

PART II, LINE 22—GRANTS AND ALLOCATIONS

THE JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION OF CLEVELAND
34-0714445

JUNE 30, 1999

The grantees shown in Category A are local agencies affiliated with the Federation and other local non-profit organizations. The other organizations are unrelated except for the support provided by the Federation for charitable, educational, and religious purposes.

A Grants for local agencies in Cleveland, Ohio, for charitable, educational, and religious purposes

Agnon School	\$	277,607
Akiva High School		93,342
Bellefaire Jewish Children's Bureau		1,096,438
Cleveland College of Jewish Studies		389,413
Cleveland Hebrew Schools		212,535
Cleveland Hillel Foundation		444,514
Fuchs Bet Sefer Mizrahi		214,500
Hebrew Academy		998,216
Hebrew Shelter Home		34,599
Jewish Community Center		1,484,072
Jewish Education Center of Cleveland		864,039
Jewish Education Center of Cleveland -COJC		519,674
Jewish Family Service Association		1,887,934
Menorah Park Center for the Aging		393,550
Montefiore Home		252,746
Solomon Schechter Day School		230,825
Returned or cancelled grants		(8,016)
TOTAL \$		<u>9,385,988</u>

PART II, LINE 22—GRANTS AND ALLOCATIONS—Continued

THE JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION OF CLEVELAND
34-0714445

JUNE 30, 1999

B Grants for National Agencies for charitable, educational, and religious purposes.

American Jewish Committee	\$	68,847
American Jewish Congress		41,806
B'nai B'nth Anti-Defamation League		68,847
B'nai B'nth/BBYO		31,500
Council of Jewish Federation & Welfare Funds		644,196
Foundation for Jewish Campus Life		57,747
Jewish Labor Committee		27,920
Jewish War Veterans		4,750
Kent Hillel		18,000
International Association of Jewish Vocational Service		4,700
National Jewish Council for Public Affairs		3,540
National Jewish Center for Learning and Leadership (CLAL)		7,000
Ohio Valley Hillel Consortium		<u>104,911</u>
TOTAL	\$	<u>1,083,764</u>

C Overseas Grants for charitable, educational and religious purposes

United Jewish Appeal		8,817,700
American Joint Distribution Committee		3,480,000
Israel Association for the Advancement of Women's Health		15,000
Hadassah - Youth Aliyah		37,700
TOTAL	\$	<u>12,350,400</u>

PART II, LINE 22--GRANTS AND ALLOCATIONS--Continued

THE JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION OF CLEVELAND

34-0714445

JUNE 30, 1999

The grantees shown in category D are local agencies affiliated with Federation and other local non-profit organizations and a national agency. The other organizations are unrelated except for the support provided by Federation for charitable, educational and religious purposes.

D Grants for local agencies in Cleveland, Ohio and for national agencies for refugee resettlement purposes

Agnon	4,900
Cleveland Hebrew Schools	46,710
Council of Jewish Federations	4,500
Hebrew Academy	28,200
Hebrew Free Loan Association	20,000
Bellefaire Jewish Children's Bureau	26,500
Jewish Community Center of Cleveland	274,016
Jewish Family Service Association	757,523
Solomon Schechter Day School	9,000

Minus returned grants from previous years

Miscellaneous (6,077)

TOTAL \$ 1,165,272

PART II, LINE 42--DEPRECIATION, DEPLETION, ETC

THE JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION OF CLEVELAND
34-0714445

JUNE 30, 1999

<u>Description of Property</u>	<u>Date Acquired</u>	<u>Cost or Other Basis</u>	<u>Depreciation Allowed in Earlier Years</u>	<u>Method</u>	<u>Life</u>	<u>Depreciation for This Year</u>
Buildings	Various	\$ 7,584,314	\$ 1,908,445	\$ SL	40	\$ 180,802
Building Improvements	Various	1,172,372	361,576	SL	40	50,153
Furniture and Fixtures	Various	215,926	156,896	SL	10	6,481
Transportation Equipment	Various	28,545	2,855	SL	3	5,709
Office and Other Equipment	Various	2,243,618	1,608,241	SL	Various	160,846
Land	Various	1,158,800	-			-
TOTALS		\$ 12,403,575	\$ 4,038,013			\$ 403,991

PART IV--BALANCE SHEETS--Continued

THE JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION OF CLEVELAND
 34-0714445
 JUNE 30, 1999

LINE 55--INVESTMENTS--LAND, BUILDINGS AND EQUIPMENT

Land \$ 4,538,210

LINE 56--INVESTMENTS--OTHER

Assigned real estate and partnership interests 1,035,366

TOTAL \$ 1,035,366

LINE 57--LAND, BUILDINGS AND EQUIPMENT

	<u>Cost</u>	<u>Accumulated Depreciation</u>	<u>Net Book Value</u>
Land	\$ 1,158,800	\$ -	\$ 1,158,800
Transportation equipment	28,545	8,564	19,981
Office and other equipment	2,243,618	1,769,087	474,531
Furniture and fixtures	215,926	163,377	52,549
Building improvements	1,172,372	411,729	760,643
Buildings	7,584,314	2,089,247	5,495,067
	<u>\$ 12,403,575</u>	<u>\$ 4,442,004</u>	<u>\$ 7,961,571</u>

LINE 58--OTHER ASSETS

Other Assets	
Assets held in trust under charitable remainder trust agreements	\$ 34,093,067
Receivable from perpetual and lead trusts	16,293,370
Miscellaneous assets	483,019
	<u>\$ 50,869,456</u>

LINE 65--OTHER LIABILITIES

Other Liabilities	
Miscellaneous	\$ 215,508
Liability to beneficiaries of charitable remainder trusts	14,545,585
Liability to other charities from assets held in charitable trusts	1,312,801
	<u>\$ 16,073,894</u>

PART IV--BALANCE SHEETS

THE JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION OF CLEVELAND
34-0714445

JUNE 30, 1999

LINE 54--INVESTMENTS--SECURITIES

Bonds and Government Obligations	151,995
Common and Preferred Stocks	99,016,480
JCF Money Fund	59,741,223
JCF Main Investment Fund - Equity Portfolio	109,577,805
JCF Main Investment Fund - Fixed Income Portfolio	43,905,120
Mutual Funds	675,200
Israel Bonds - Not Publically Traded	3,270,333
TOTAL	\$ <u>316,338,156</u>

PART IV, LINE 51—OTHER NOTES AND LOANS RECEIVABLE

THE JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION OF CLEVELAND
34-0714445

JUNE 30, 1999

Notes Receivable.

JCC	\$ 1,522,695
Agnon School	\$ 110,000
Hebrew Free Loan Association	20,445
Saltzman Trust	225,000
Krasny - Kaplan Corp	21,396
Warren Heights Apt Ltd	10,538
Belvoir Residence Inc	185,160
Jewish Community Housing	7,197
Miscellaneous	5
	<hr/>
	2,102,436

Mortgages Receivable.

Logan Square	6,738
D V D Corporation	200,000
	<hr/>
	206,738

TOTAL	<hr/> <hr/>
	2,309,174

PART V--LIST OF OFFICERS, DIRECTORS AND TRUSTEES

THE JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION OF CLEVELAND
34-0714445

STATEMENT 11

June 30, 1999

TRUSTEES

(A)	(B)	(C)	(D)	(E)
Name	Address	Compensation	Contributions to Employee Benefit Plans	Expense Account and Other Allowances
Hallie Hurwitz Abrams	221 Stonebrooke Oval, Chag Falls	44022	None	None
Terry Adelman	95 Ridgecreek Trail, Chag Falls	44022	None	None
Thomas W Adler	NewGar, 629 Euclid Ave , Ste 735	44114	None	None
Max M Axelrod	2540 North Moreland Boulevard	44120	None	None
Marilyn Bedol	24300 Union Circle Dr	44122	None	None
Barnett N Bookatz	24375 Woodside Lane	44122	None	None
Rabbi Naphtali Burnstein	3602 Severn Rd	44118	None	None
Kerry Chelm	8925 Galloway Trail, Novelty	44072	None	None
Victor J Cohn	29225 Chagrin Boulevard, #250	44124	None	None
Marian Drost	26600 Bernwood Road	44122	None	None
Leslie Dunn	5915 Landerbrook Drive, #300	44124	None	None
Morton G Epstein	3100 Bremerton Road	44124	None	None
Mitchell L Frankel	25300 Cedar Road	44122	None	None
Morton S Frankel	3601 Green Road, #314	44122	None	None
Rina Frankel	24201 Hermitage Road	44122	None	None
Leonard Fuchs	c/o Empire Estates, 27800 Cedar Rd	44122	None	None
John Garson	4 Hampton Court	44122	None	None
* Peggy Garson	4 Hampton Court	44122	None	None
Victor Gelb	P O Box 477902	44147	None	None
Larry Goldberg	P O Box 22220	44122	None	None
* Robert Goldberg	Ohio Savings Bank 1801 East 9th Street, 2nd Fl	44114	None	None
Sally Good	5150 Three Village Dr , #LLB	44124	None	None
Sidney R Good	13609 Shaker Boulevard, Ste 2B	44120	None	None
Henry J Goodman	3201 Harvard Avenue	44105	None	None
Lois Goodman	2952 Glengary Road	44120	None	None

PART V--LIST OF OFFICERS, DIRECTORS AND TRUSTEES

**THE JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION OF CLEVELAND
34-0714445**

**June 30, 1999
TRUSTEES--Continued**

Saul Gottlieb	2000 East 9th Street, #900	44115	None	None	None
Penny Greenberger	60 Ridgecreek Tr , Chag Falls	44022	None	None	None
* Gary L Gross	14300 Ridge Rd , Ste 100	44133	None	None	None
Brent R Grover	P O Box 94545	44101	None	None	None
Rubin Guttman	25285 Peshurst Drive	44122	None	None	None
J David Heller	2785 Attleboro Road	44120	None	None	None
William H Heller	75 Woodburn Drive, Chag Falls	44022	None	None	None
John E Herman	1541 Oakwood Dr.	44121	None	None	None
Robert Hexter	12626 Cedar Road	44106	None	None	None
Michael Horvitz	901 Lakeside Avenue	44114	None	None	None
Richard Horvitz	28601 Chagrin Boulevard, #550	44122	None	None	None
Susan Hurwitz	19 Pepper Creek Dr.	44124	None	None	None
Francine Immerman	18523 Parkland Drive	44122	None	None	None
Patricia M Inglis	200 Public Sq , Ste 2300	44114	None	None	None
M Orry Jacobs	25800 Annesley Road	44122	None	None	None
Ann Nickman Jacobson	2549 Windy Hill Drive	44124	None	None	None
Donald S Jacobson	1001 Lakeside Ave. E , Ste 1300	44114	None	None	None
Lawrence M Kadis	120 West Juniper Lane, C F	44022	None	None	None
Stuart F Kline	3100 Roundwood Rd , Chag Falls	44022	None	None	None
N Herschel Koblenz	200 Public Square, #3300	44014	None	None	None
Margery Kohrman	2889 Eaton Road	44122	None	None	None
Sharon Koppelman	2707 Rochester Road	44122	None	None	None
Dean Gerald Korngold	2934 Manchester Rd.	44122	None	None	None

PART V--LIST OF OFFICERS, DIRECTORS AND TRUSTEES

**THE JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION OF CLEVELAND
34-0714445**

**June 30, 1999
TRUSTEES--Continued**

Edward H Kraus	1300 East 9th Street, 14 Fl	44114	None	None	None
Alan M Krause	29500 Bolingbrook Rd	44124	None	None	None
Keith Libman	3631 Rawnsdale Rd	44122	None	None	None
Milton Maltz	1660 West 2nd Street, #800	44113	None	None	None
Jack N Mandel	P O Box 6609	44101	None	None	None
Joseph C Mandel	40 Laurel Ct , Moreland Hills	44022	None	None	None
Morton L Mandel	P O Box 6609	44101	None	None	None
Cookie Marcus	27500 Cedar Road, PH6	44122	None	None	None
Lois Marcus	90 Woodburn Drive, C F	44022	None	None	None
Bonnie Marks	2691 Chesterton Road	44122	None	None	None
Hon Howard M Metzenbaum	5610 Wisconsin Ave , N W ,PH 17 Chevy Chase, Maryland	20815	None	None	None
Anne Miller	2958 Fontenay Road	44120	None	None	None
Samuel H Miller	100 Terminal Tower 50 Public Square	44113- 2203	None	None	None
Amy Morgenstern	2900 Drummond Rd	44120	None	None	None
Sylvia Morrison	24390 Fairmount Boulevard	44122	None	None	None
David N Myers	1801 East 9th Street, #1105	44114	None	None	None
Inez Myers	16900 South Park Boulevard	44120	None	None	None
Dr Arthur J Naparstek	2452 Lambertson Road	44118	None	None	None
Karen B Newborn	3471 Belvoir Boulevard	44122	None	None	None
Nathan Oscar	44020 White Tail Drive, Aurora	44202	None	None	None
Elmer I Paull	1001 Lakeside Avenue, #1300	44114	None	None	None
Judge Dan A Polster	3157 Belvoir Boulevard	44122	None	None	None

PART V--LIST OF OFFICERS, DIRECTORS AND TRUSTEES

THE JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION OF CLEVELAND
34-0714445

June 30, 1999
TRUSTEES--Continued

Andrew E. Randall	1350 Euclid Ave	44115			
Albert B. Ratner	1100 Terminal Tower 50 Public Square	44113- 2203	None	None	None
Brian Ratner	1100 Terminal Tower 50 Public Square	44113- 2203	None	None	None
Charles Ratner	1100 Terminal Tower 50 Public Square	44113- 2203	None	None	None
James Ratner	1100 Terminal Tower 50 Public Square	44113- 2203	None	None	None
Alayne Reitman	3385 Daleford Road	44120	None	None	None
Elaine Rucker	26611 Fairmount Blvd	44122	None	None	None
Barbara S. Rosenthal	13800 Shaker Boulevard, #1102	44120	None	None	None
Leighton A. Rosenthal	1228 Euclid Avenue, #310	44115	None	None	None
Betty Rosskamm	5200 Three Village Drive, #2JK	44124	None	None	None
Corey Roth	2737 Sinton Place	44124	None	None	None
Cullen A. Roth	4039 Orangewood Dr	44122	None	None	None
Peter Rzepka	25250 Rockside Road	44146	None	None	None
Evie Safran	24909 Duffield Road	44122	None	None	None
James A. Samuels	1350 Euclid Avenue, 3rd Fl, Ste 15	44115	None	None	None
Toni Scherzer	3117 Laurel Road	44120	None	None	None
Karin F. Schleifer	180 Fox Hollow Drive, #307	44124	None	None	None
Alan R. Schonberg	200 Public Square, 31st Floor	44114	None	None	None
Lloyd S. Schwenger	27500 Cedar Road, #407	44122	None	None	None
Robert S. Seidemann	150 Parker Ct, Chardon	44024	None	None	None
Alvin A. Siegal	28950 S. Woodland Rd	44124	None	None	None
* Michael D. Siegal	921 W Hill Dr, Gates Mills	44040	None	None	None

PART V--LIST OF OFFICERS, DIRECTORS AND TRUSTEES

**THE JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION OF CLEVELAND
34-0714445**

**June 30, 1999
TRUSTEES--Continued**

Harvey Siegal	13951 Triskett Road	44111	None	None	None
Robert Silverman	17 Kenwood Court	44122	None	None	None
Edwin Z Singer	11012 Aurora Hudson Road	44241	None	None	None
	Streetsboro				
Rabbi Joshua Skoff	3300 Mayfield Road	44118	None	None	None
Ivan A Soclof	3681 S Green Rd , Ste 201	44122	None	None	None
Steven Soclof	23495 Timberlane Drive	44122	None	None	None
James C Spira	127 Public Square, #5100	44114	None	None	None
Irving I Stone	27500 Cedar Rd , Ste 205	44122	None	None	None
David J Strauss	1900 East 9th Street, #3200	44114	None	None	None
Jules Vinney	3024 Fontenay Road	44120	None	None	None
Michael Wager	18230 Shelburne Road	44118	None	None	None
Peggy Gries Wager	18230 Shelburne Road	44118	None	None	None
* Norman Wain	19401 South Park Boulevard	44122	None	None	None
Muriel Weber	19015 Van Aken Boulevard, #415	44122	None	None	None
*Stephen J Weinberg	145 Woodburn Drive, Chag Falls	44022	None	None	None
Jerome Weinberger	5200 Three Village Drive, 3D	44124	None	None	None
Neil C Weinberger	3990 Chagrin River Road, Mrlid Hls	44022	None	None	None
James Weisman	2597 Queenston Road	44118	None	None	Noen
Mark S Weisman	22226 Westchester Rd	44122	None	None	None
Judith Weiss	4500 University Parkway	44118	None	None	None
Sally H Wertheim	3059 Bremerton Road	44124	None	None	None
Marcia Wexberg	29450 Edgedale Road	44124	None	None	None

PART V--LIST OF OFFICERS, DIRECTORS AND TRUSTEES

**THE JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION OF CLEVELAND
34-0714445**

**June 30, 1999
TRUSTEES--Continued**

Hon Milton A Wolf	25700 Science Park Drive, #350	44122	None	None	None
Dr Nancy G Wolf	30000 Shaker Boulevard	44124	None	None	None
Roslyn Wolf	19200 South Park Boulevard	44122	None	None	None
Sandra Wuliger	20 Basswood Ln , Chag Falls	44022	None	None	None
* Timothy F Wuliger	20 Basswood Ln , Chag Falls	44022	None	None	None
Bennett Yanowitz	1301 East 9th Street, #2600	44114	None	None	None

* Non-Employee Officers of The Jewish Federation of Cleveland

FORM 990, PART IV-A - OTHER REVENUE ON BOOKS BUT NOT ON RETURN

=====

DESCRIPTION	AMOUNT
-----	-----
CHANGE IN ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTION	3,681,664.
RENTAL EXPENSE (NETTED AGAINST REVENUE)	366,397.

TOTAL	<u>4,048,061.</u>

FORM 990, PART IV-A - OTHER REVENUE ON RETURN BUT NOT ON BOOKS

DESCRIPTION

AMOUNT

PARTNERSHIP INCOME NOT ON BOOK

3,317,690.

TOTAL

3,317,690.
=====

FORM 990, PART IV-B - OTHER EXPENSES ON BOOKS BUT NOT ON RETURN

DESCRIPTION

AMOUNT

RENTAL EXPENSE NETTED AGAINST
REVENUE

366,397.

TOTAL

366,397.
=====

JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION OF CLEVELAND
 LIST OF PAID OFFICERS OF THE JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION OF CLEVELAND
 6/30/1999

990, PART V List of Officers, Directors, Trustees, and Key Employees

<u>Officer</u>	<u>Title</u>	<u>Average Hours per Week Devoted to Position</u>	<u>Compensation</u>	<u>Contributions to Employee Benefit Plans & Deferred Compensation</u>	<u>Expense Account and other Allowances</u>
Stephen Hoffman	President . . .	Full Time	260,000	9,285*	4,937
Barry Reis	Assistant Treasurer	Full Time	120,000	7,374 *	-
Joel Fox	Assistant Secretary	Full Time	135,000	7,628 *	1,578
Gary Stepser	Secretary	Full Time	135,000	8,139 *	1,393
			<u>650,000</u>	<u>32,426</u>	<u>7,908</u>

* WHILE PAYMENTS WERE MADE ON BEHALF OF THESE INDIVIDUALS TO THE JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION'S DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN, A SEPARATE COMPUTATION WAS NOT AVAILABLE FOR EACH.

PART VII, LINE 103—OTHER REVENUE

THE JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION OF CLEVELAND

34-0714445

JUNE 30, 1999

	<u>Business Code</u>	<u>Amount</u>	<u>Exclusion Code</u>	<u>Amount</u>	<u>Related or Exempt Function Income</u>
(a) EDP Income				\$	\$ 13,656
(b) Parking Lot Income			16	65,795	
(c) Office Services					42,455
(d) Kitchen Services			3	12,545	
(e) Mailing					143
(f) Affiliated Agency Fees					173,485
(g) Income from Programs					132,899
(h) Income from Related Tax Exempt Entities					73,841
(i) Income from Partnership and Beneficial Interest	1330	9,767	14 15 16 18 34	(49,313) - 344,155 2,802,979 210,102	
(j) Miscellaneous			14	84,615	
Other Revenue, Part 7, line 103		<u>\$ 9,767</u>		<u>\$ 3,470,878</u>	<u>\$ 436,479</u>
Grand Total - Other Revenue, Part I Line 12					<u>\$ 3,917,124</u>

PART IX – INFORMATION REGARDING TAXABLE SUBSIDIARIES

THE JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION OF CLEVELAND

34-0714445

JUNE 30, 1999

<u>NAME</u>	<u>EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER</u>	<u>PERCENTAGE OF OWNERSHIP</u>	<u>BUSINESS ACTIVITIES</u>	<u>TOTAL INCOME</u>	<u>END-OF-YEAR* ASSETS</u>
Levine-Medina	34-1500670	99 00%	Real Estate Development	28,949	577,937
Levine-Sweet Valley	34-1614377	96 00%	Oil/Gas	(976)	171,440
Kulber-Medina	34-1161138	98 00%	Oil/Gas	11,235	138,815
Vermilion Park Estates	34-1163556	50 00%	Real Estate	<u>0</u>	<u>24,863</u>
				<u>39,208</u>	<u>913,055</u>

* Ending Capital Account Balance - 12/31/98

SCHEDULE A, PART III, QUESTION 2

THE JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION OF CLEVELAND
34-0714445

JUNE 30, 1999

Officers and Trustees of The Jewish Community Federation of Cleveland are also officers and directors of various for-profit entities with whom the Federation may have entered into transactions during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999. However, any such transactions would be at arm's length and not result in any private benefit to these individuals.

SCHEDULE A, PART III, QUESTION 2-E

THE JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION OF CLEVELAND
34-0714445

JUNE 30, 1999

The Jewish Community Federation is a party to charitable gift annuity agreements some of which are with trustees of the Jewish Community Federation

SCHEDULE A, PART III, QUESTION 4

THE JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION OF CLEVELAND
34-0714445

JUNE 30, 1999

The Board of Trustees of The Jewish Community Federation of Cleveland reviews and approves all disbursements. The receiving organization must demonstrate a charitable purpose or use for such amounts, be consistent with the Federation's stated mission and purpose, and must be an organization exempt under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

SCHEDULE A, PART IV-A, QUESTION 26b

TOTAL CONTRIBUTION RECEIVED IN EXCESS OF

\$4,649,114 * (FOR 1994 - 1997)

THE JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION OF CLEVELAND
34-0714445

JUNE 30, 1999

<u>DONOR</u>	(1) Form 990 For 1994	(2) Form 990 For 1995	(3) Form 990 For 1996	(4) Form 990 For 1997	Total Contributions
Peter B Lewis P O Box 5070 Cleveland, Ohio 44101-0070	0	0	2,154,113	13,616,109	\$15,770,222
TOTAL FOR ALL DONORS EXCEEDING THRESHOLD AMOUNT	0	0	2,154,113	13,616,109	\$15,770,222
THRESHOLD AMOUNT PER DONOR					\$4,649,114
NUMBER OF DONORS EXCEEDING THRESHOLD					1
COMBINED THRESHOLD AMOUNT					\$4,649,114
AMOUNT TO BE EXCLUDED FROM PUBLIC SUPPORT (LINE 26B)					\$11,121,108

(1) = 7/1/94 - 6/30/95

(2) = 7/1/95 - 6/30/96

(3) = 7/1/96 - 6/30/97

(4) = 7/1/97 - 6/30/98

* 2% OF LINE 24E \$232,455,684

THE JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION OF CLEVELAND

34-0714445

JUNE 30, 1999

**APPENDIX A-1: GRANTS FROM ENDOWMENT FUNDS
NUMBER OF PAGES: 5**

REPORT NAME - PHECFZLT
 REPORT DATE - 07/06/59

ENCUMBRANCE/SPECIALIFIC SYSTEM
 CLEVELAND RECEIPTS
 GRANTS FROM ENCUMBRANCE FUNDS
 FROM 07/01/58 TO 03/31/59

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	ALPB	ADDRESS	YTD GRANTS
AMERICAN COMMITTEE OF THE WEIZMANN INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE	17	51 MADISON AVE NEW YORK , NY 10010	\$ 200.00
AMERICAN FRIENDS OF BAYS TOWN OF JERUSALEM, INC.	25	51 FIFTH AVENUE SUITE 601 NEW YORK , NY 10003	\$ 200.00
AMERICAN FRIENDS OF HAIFA UNIVERSITY	26	120 BROADWAY NEW YORK , NY 10021	\$ 200.00
AMERICAN FRIENDS OF THE HEBREW UNIVERSITY, INC.	1515	3659 GREEN RD #306 EASTWOOD , OH 44122	\$ 200.00
AMERICAN FRIENDS OF THE TEL AVIV UNIVERSITY	30	360 LEXINGTON AVE. 3FC FLOOR NEW YORK , NY 10017	\$ 10,200.00
E'NAL E'IRITH YOUTH ORGANIZATION	86	26001 S. WOODLAND RD CLEVELAND , OH 44122	\$ 1,400.00
E'NAL JESURON	09	27501 FAIRHURST ECULEVARE EFFER FIRE , OH 44124	\$ 3,000.00
BELLEFAIRE	74	22001 FAIRHURST ECULEVARE CLEVELAND , OH 44116	\$ 401.10
BELLEFAIRE JCE	274	F.C. BOX 72364 CLEVELAND , OH 44152	\$ 461.52
BRANDEIS UNIVERSITY	55	OFFICE OF DEVELOPMENT F.C. BOX 5110 WALTHAM , MA 02254	\$ 200.00
CANTOR'S ASSEMBLY OF AMERICA, INC.	1352	E'NAL JESURON CLNC 27501 FAIRHURST BLVD. CLEVELAND , OH 44124	\$ 100.00
CASE WESTERN RESERVE UNIVERSITY	566	10900 ELCLIC AVE UNIVERSITY CIRCLE CLEVELAND , OH 44101	\$ 200.00
CASE WESTERN RESERVE UNIVERSITY, MANDEL SCHOOL OF APPLIED SOCIAL S	109	11235 ELLEROWER RD. CLEVELAND , OH 44106	\$ 1,400.00
CLEVELAND COLLEGE OF JEWISH STUDIES	133	26500 STARKER ECULEVARE CLEVELAND , OH 44122	\$ 2,200.00

RECFST NAME - PFECE2LT
 RECFST DATE - 07/00/95

ENDOWMENT/FUND/INHERITANCE SYSTEM
 CLEVELAND FEDERATION
 GRANTS FROM ENDOWMENT FUNDS
 FROM 07/01/96 TO 03/31/99

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	FUND	ADDRESS	YTD GRANTS
CLEVELAND HEIGHTS/UNIVERSITY HEIGHTS BOARD OF EDUCATION	663	2155 MIAMAR BLVD UNIVERSITY HTS. , OH 44118	\$ 670.24
CLEVELAND HEIGHTS/UNIVERSITY HEIGHTS PUBLIC LIBRARY	704	2345 LEE ROAD CLEVELAND HEIGHTS , OH 44118	\$ 326.06
CLEVELAND HILLEL FOUNDATION, INC.	141	11291 EUCLID AVENUE CLEVELAND , OH 44106	\$ 136,230.00
CLEVELAND HTS/UNIVERSITY HTS PUBLIC SCHOOL EDUCATION	2615	REACHING HEIGHTS 3130 MAYFIELD RD NE225 CLEVELAND , OH 44118	\$ 500.00
CLEVELAND INITIATIVE ON EDUCATION	2358	50 FUELIC SQUARE TERMINAL TOWER 1680 CLEVELAND , OH 44112	\$ 1,745.00
CLEVELAND SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAMS, INC.	157	850 EUCLID AVE. 11000 CLEVELAND , OH 44114	\$ 1,100.00
CONCRECATION TEETH AM	170	3557 WASHINGTON ECULEVARD CLEVELAND , OH 44118	\$ 600.00
DEACONS FORUM OF CFSO	1640	16 EAST EFCAL ST SUITE 800 COLUMBUS , OH 43215	\$ 2,500.00
FAIRMOUNT TEMPLE	199	23727 FAIRMOUNT BLVD CLEVELAND , OH 44122	\$ 2,200.00
FREE MEDICAL CLINIC OF GREATER CLEVELAND	208	12201 EUCLID AVENUE CLEVELAND , OH 44106	\$ 1,500.00
FEATHER HILL, INC.	556	12340 BISS LAKE ROAD CHATELAIN , OH 44024	\$ 200.00
JEWISH COMMUNAL SERVICE ASSOCIATION OF NORTH AMERICA, INC.	840	3084 STATE HIGHWAY 27 SUITE 1 MENCALL PARK , NJ 08824	\$ 2,500.00
JEWISH COMMUNITY CENTER	269	26001 SOUTH WOODLAND ROAD CLEVELAND , OH 44122	\$ 254,675.00

REPORT NAME - PERFECTLY
 REPORT DATE - 07/08/99

ENDOWMENT/FIL/AMERICAN SYSTEM
 CLEVELAND RECESSION
 GRANTS FROM ENDOWMENT FUNDS
 FROM 07/01/98 TO 03/31/99

PAGE 3

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	ALWB	ADDRESS	YTD GRANTS
JEWISH DAY NURSERY CHILD CARE CENTER	273	22001 FAIRMOUNT BOULEVARD CLEVELAND , OH 44116	\$ 3,554.06
JEWISH EDUCATION CENTER OF CLEVELAND	100	2030 SOUTH TAYLOR ROAD CLEVELAND OH. , OH 44116	\$ 224,350.00
JEWISH FAMILY SERVICE ASSOCIATION	275	2040 S. TAYLOR ROAD CLEVELAND , OH 44116	\$ 70,041.65
MENORAH PARK FOUNDATION	320	27100 CLEAR ROAD CLEVELAND , OH 44122	\$ 13,274.56
MIKAT USA	350	14055 CLEAR ROAD #300 CLEVELAND , OH 44116	\$ 100.00
NATIONAL COMMITTEE FOR LABOR ISRAEL-ISRAEL HISTORICAL CAMPAIGN, INC.	344	275 SEVENTH AVENUE FL NEW YORK , NY 10001	\$ 1,254.58
NATIONAL JEWISH CENTER FOR IMMUNOLOGY AND RESPIRATORY MEDICINE	354	1400 JACKSON STREET DENVER , CO 80202	\$ 1,000.00
NATIONAL MULTIPLE SCLEROSIS SOCIETY	159	1422 EUCLEA AVENUE #333 PARMA OHIO. CLEVELAND , OH 44115	\$ 266.00
NESIYA INSTITUTE	2473	3505 MAYFIELD ROAD CLEVELAND , OH 44116	\$ 5,000.00
OHIO ARTS FOUNDATION, INC.	1306	727 EAST MAIN ST COLUMBUS , OH 43205	\$ 1,000.00
OPERATION UNDERSTANDING OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA	3507	2120 S STREET, NW WASHINGTON , DC 20005	\$ 1,500.00

REPORT NAME - PHECFZLT
 REPORT DATE - 07/08/99

ENDOWMENT/PHILANTHROPIC SYSTEM
 CLEVELAND FEDERATION
 GRANTS FROM ENDOWMENT FUNDS
 FROM 07/01/98 TO 03/31/99

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	ALPB	ADDRESS	YTC GRANTS
PARK SYNAGOGUE	354	3300 MAYFIELD ROAD CLEVELAND OH 44115	\$ 33,274.56
SPACES FOR KIDS, INC.	1947	4614 PERSPECT AVE #511 CLEVELAND OH 44103	\$ 1,000.00
JUDAIC ACADEMY OF BALTIMORE	502	4445 CLE COURT RD. BALTIMORE MD 21208	\$ 200.00
TRUST COLLEGE	2961	350 FIFTH AVE. NEW YORK NY 10018	\$ 200.00
UNITED WAY SERVICES	466	1331 EUCLID AVENUE CLEVELAND OH 44115	\$ 1,000.00
WASHINGTON BALLET	3455	3515 WISCONSIN AVE NW WASHINGTON DC 20018	\$ 1,500.00
WESTERN RESERVE HISTORICAL SOCIETY	459	10825 EAST ELVE. CLEVELAND OH 44108	\$ 5,000.00
WOMENS AMERICAN CRT FEDERATION	493	23715 MERCANTILE ROAD BEACHWOOD OH 44122	\$ 200.00
YESHIVA UNIVERSITY	511	#725 CENTRAL EXPRESS 500 WEST 165TH ST. NEW YORK NY 10033	\$ 51,200.00

TOTAL

958,579

Grants from 7/1/99 — 6/30/99 (see P.5)

2,171,525.97

Total Grants from Endowment Fund

3,130,105.76

AMERICAN JOINT DISTRIBUTION	25,000 00
AMER SOC TECHNION ISRAEL	200 00
BAR-ILAN UNIVERSITY	200 00
BELLEFAIRE JCB	335 65
BIKUR CHOLIM	250 00
BNAI BRITH YOUTH ORGANIZATION	500 00
CASE WESTERN RESERVE UNI	200 00
CASE WESTERN RESERVE UNIV	500 00
CITY OF CLEVELAND	9,380 00
CLEVELAND BOARD OF EDUCATION	150 00
CLEVELAND MUSEUM OF ART	500 00
CLEVELAND PUBLIC THEATRE	5,000 00
COAL FR ADVNCMT JEWISH ED	4,200 00
COALITION ADVANCEMENT JEWISH	(2,500 00)
COAL FR ADVNCMT JEWISH ED	8,800 00
FRIENDS OF YEMIN ORDE, INC.	2,500 00
HEBREW ACADEMY OF CLEVELAND	7,703 50
HILLEL	117,355 00
ISRAEL GUIDE DOG CTR	317 82
JEWISH BRAILLE INST OF AM	317 82
JEWISH COMMUNITY CENTER	233,812 64
JEWISH DAY NURSERY	85 64
JEWISH EDUC CTR OF CLEVE	48,370 12
JEWISH FAMILY SERVICE ASSOCIA	298,894 20
JEWISH THEOLOGICAL SEM	200 00
KEREN OR, INC.	317 82
MENORAH PARK FOUNDATION	105 63
MT. SINAI HEALTH CARE FOUNDAT	13,274 00
NA'AMAT USA	249 91
NATIONAL COUNCIL OF JEWISH WO	250 00
NATL COM LABOR ISRL HISTA	200 00
NESSIYA INSTITUTE	10,000 00
NEW CLEVELAND JEWISH DAY HIGH	400,000 00
OPERATION OPEN CURTAIN	15,000 00
UNION ORTHODOX JEWISH CN	1,650 00
HARRY RATNER HUMAN SERVICES FUND	15,815 00
IRVING I. STONE SUPPORTING FOUNDATION	922,526 00
WESTERN RESERVE HISTORICAL SO	10,000 00
YESHIVATH ADATH B'NAI ISRAEL	57 22

Total	2,151,717 97
Adjustments and/or returned grants	19,808 00
Grand Total	2,171,525 97

THE JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION OF CLEVELAND

34-0714445

JUNE 30, 1999

**APPENDIX A-2: GRANTS FROM CUSTODIAL FUNDS
NUMBER OF PAGES: 1**

REPORT NAME - PHECF4LT
 REPORT DATE - 07/08/99

ENDOWMENT/PHECF4LT/FCFIC SYSTEM
 CLEVELAND FEDERATION
 GRANTS FROM CUSTODIAL FUNDS
 FROM 07/01/98 TO 03/31/99

PAGE 1

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NUMB	ADDRESS	YTD GRANTS
BELLEFAIRE	74	22001 FAIRMOUNT BLDG CLEVELAND, OH 44118	\$ 100,000.00
FEDERATION OF RECONSTRUCTIONIST CONGREGATIONS AND HALLS	4323	270 W 85TH ST NEW YORK, NY 10024	\$ 600.00
CUSH ETZICAN FOUNDATION	4316	1007 ELP STREET, #412 FC BOX 1030 MANCHESTER, NH 02109	\$ 1,000.00
JEWISH COMMUNITY CENTER	269	26001 SOUTH WOODLAND ROAD CLEVELAND, OH 44122	\$ 5,125.00
JEWISH EDUCATION CENTER OF CLEVELAND	100	2030 SOUTH TAYLOR ROAD CLEVELAND OH, OH 44118	\$ 1,400,509.10
JEWISH FAMILY SERVICE ASSOCIATION	275	2060 S. TAYLOR ROAD CLEVELAND, OH 44118	\$ 100,000.00
THE CATHOLIC CHARITIES CORPORATION	906	1111 SUPERIOR AVE CLEVELAND, OH 44114	\$ 2,000.00
UNITED JEWISH COMMUNITIES	175	111 EIGHTH AVE SUITE 111 NEW YORK, NY 10011	\$ 4,500.00
UNITED WAY SERVICES	466	1331 EUCLID AVENUE CLEVELAND, OH 44115	\$ 200.00

TOTAL

\$ 1,613,934.10

Council of Jewish Federations *

27,165.00

Bellefaire JCB

15,500.00

Jewish Family Service Association

2,500.00

Returned Grants and/or Adjustments

15,195.90

Total Grants from Custodial Funds

\$ 1,674,295.00

* Grants from Custodial Funds from 4/1/99 - 6/30/99

THE JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION OF CLEVELAND

34-0714445

JUNE 30, 1999

**APPENDIX A-3: GRANTS FROM PHILANTHROPIC FUNDS
NUMBER OF PAGES: 96**

REPORT NAME - PPEGF3LT
 REPORT DATE - 07/08/99

ENDOWMENT/PHILANTHROPIC SYSTEM
 CLEVELAND FEDERATION
 GRANTS FROM PHILANTHROPIC FUNDS
 FROM 07/01/98 TO 03/31/99

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NUM	ADDRESS	YTD GRANTS
A T A INC VOLUNTEERS FOR CLEVELANDERS IN ISRAEL	65	1414 S. GREEN ROAD #304 S. EUCLID , OH 44121	\$ 400.00
AERAHAM FUND, INC	3984	477 MADISON AVE 4TH FL NEW YORK , NY 10022	\$ 2,200.00
ACCESS TO THE ARTS	2817	12200 FAIRHILL RD. CLEVELAND , OH 44120	\$ 340.00
ACHIEVEMENT CENTER FOR CHILDREN	428	11001 ECKEYEE ROAD CLEVELAND , OH 44104	\$ 500.00
ACAS ISRAEL CONGREGATION	964	2850 QUEBEC STREET NW WASHINGTON , DC 20008	\$ 4,500.00
ACNA SCHCL	1	26500 SHAKER BOULEVARD BEACHWOOD , OH 44122	\$ 63,709.00
AGUDAT LEV HAKA	2807	4718 18TH AVE BROCKLYN , NY 11264	\$ 3,000.00
AGUDATH ENAI ISRAEL CONGREGATION OF LORAIN	4369	PO BOX 3188 LORAIN , OH 44052	\$ 750.00
AGUDATH ISRAEL OF AMERICA, INC.	2	84 WILLIAM ST NEW YORK , NY 10013	\$ 5,000.00
AGUDATH ISRAEL OF CLEVELAND	856	1861 SOUTH TAYLOR ROAD CLEVELAND HEIGHTS , OH 44118	\$ 10,000.00
AF HAA SCHCL FOR THE ARTS	3994	PO BOX 1550 TELLURIDE , CO 81425	\$ 100.00
AICS ACTION FOUNDATION	2362	1875 CONNECTICUT AVE NW #700 WASHINGTON , DC 20009	\$ 30,000.00
AICS HOUSING COUNCIL OF GREATER CLEVELAND	3324	P.O. BOX 202400 CLEVELAND , OH 44102	\$ 2,100.00
AICS TASK FORCE OF GREATER CLEVELAND	2031	2728 EUCLID AVE #400 CLEVELAND , OH 44115	\$ 1,700.00

REPORT NAME - PREGF3LT
 REPORT DATE - 07/08/99

ENDOWMENT/PHILANTHROPIC SYSTEM
 CLEVELAND FEDERATION
 GRANTS FROM PHILANTHROPIC FUNDS
 FROM 07/01/98 TO 03/31/99

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NUM	ADDRESS	CTC GRANTS
AISH HATZRAH OF CLEVELAND	2587	14055 CEDAR RD, 4309 CLEVELAND , OH 44118	\$ 19,364.00
AKIVA HIGH SCHOOL	759	26500 SPAKER BLVD. CLEVELAND , OH 44122	\$ 180.00
AKRON ART MUSEUM	1765	70 E. MARKET STREET AKRON , OH 44308	\$ 7,500.00
ALAN GUTTMACHER INSTITUTE	1014	120 WALL STREET NEW YORK , NY 10005	\$ 14,500.00
ALBERT L. SCHULTZ JEWISH COMMUNITY CENTER	4022	655 ARASTRACERO RD PALM ALTO , CA 94306	\$ 4,000.00
ALEPH FOUNDATION	4277	4715 13TH AVE BROOKLYN , NY 11215	\$ 5,000.00
ALEPH SOCIETY INC.	2088	25 WEST 45TH ST. 11405 NEW YORK , NY 10024	\$ 3,000.00
ALLIANCE FOR THE MENTALLY ILL OF METRO CLEVELAND	1922	3645 WAFRENSVILLE CTR RD #246 CLEVELAND , OH 44122	\$ 500.00
ALLIED JEWISH FEDERATION OF DENVER ENDOWMENT FUND	2492	300 SCUTH CAPITAL SUITE 300 DENVER , CO 80248	\$ 1,400.00
ALUMNI FUND ALUMNI ASSOCIATION S U N Y DOWNSTATE MEDICAL CTR	4269	450 CLARKSON AVE BOX 1204 BROOKLYN , NY 11203	\$ 1,000.00
ALUMNI OF THE RABBINICAL COLLEGE KNESSETH ISRAEL OF SLABODKA KENYON	1039	1339 46TH ST BROOKLYN , NY 11215	\$ 1,200.00
ALZHEIMER'S ASSOCIATION	4102	3500 CAKS CLEIFOUSE CR PCMFANC BEACH , FL 33065	\$ 1,100.00
ALZHEIMER'S DISEASE & RELATED DISORDERS ASSOC., INC.	1363	919 N MICHIGAN AVE. SUITE 1000 CHICAGO , IL 60611	\$ 600.00
ALZHEIMER'S DISEASE AND RELATED DISORDERS ASSOCIATION, INC.	4268	9374 CLIVE BLVD ST LOUIS , MO 63132	\$ 1,800.00

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NUMB	ADDRESS	YTD GRANTS
ALZHEIMER'S DISEASE RESEARCH	1632	15825 SPACY CIRCLE FC. ROCKVILLE, MD 20850	200.00
ALZHEIMERS DISEASE AND RELATED DISORDERS ASSOCIATION, INC.	831	12200 FAIRFILL RD. CLEVELAND, OH 44120	6,665.77
ALZHEIMERS DISEASE ASSOCIATION OF GREATER PHILADELPHIA	2734	100 N. 17TH ST. 4TH FL PHILADELPHIA, PA 19102	500.00
AMERICA ISRAEL FRIENDSHIP LEAGUE	1562	124 39TH STREET NEW YORK, NY 10018	20,000.00
AMERICAN ACADEMY OF PERIODONTOLOGY FOUNDATION	3750	737 NORTH MICHIGAN AVE SUITE 800 CHICAGO, IL 60611	400.00
AMERICAN BRAIN TUMOR ASSOCIATION	4347	2720 FIFTH AVE SUITE 146 DES PLAINES, IL 60018	100.00
AMERICAN CANCER SOCIETY	10	1140 EUCLID AVE ROOM 514 CLEVELAND, OH 44115	23,334.00
AMERICAN CANCER SOCIETY	650	P.O. BOX 405 PALM BEACH, FL 33400	2,000.00
AMERICAN CIVIL LIBERTIES UNION FOUNDATION, INC.	13	125 BRAD ST NEW YORK, NY 10004	212,500.00
AMERICAN CIVIL LIBERTIES UNION OF OHIO FOUNDATION, INC.	12	1266 WEST 6TH STREET #200 CLEVELAND, OH 44113	65,325.00
AMERICAN COMMITTEE FOR SHARAH ZEDEK HOSPITAL IN JERUSALEM	15	49 WEST 45TH ST STE 1100 NEW YORK, NY 10019	5,000.00
AMERICAN COMMITTEE FOR THE WEIZMANN INSTITUTE OF SCIENCE	17	51 MADISON AVE NEW YORK, NY 10010	1,650.00
AMERICAN FOUNDATION FOR SURGERY OF THE HAND	3145	6060 GREENWICH PLAZA BLVD #200 ENCINO, CA 91111	500.00
AMERICAN FRIENDS OF TAIFA UNIVERSITY	26	120 BROADWAY NEW YORK, NY 10021	5,000.00

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NUMB	ADDRESS	YTD GRANTS
AMERICAN FRIENDS OF KECUMIN, INC.	4296	PC BOX 25 UNION, NJ 07083	\$ 500.00
AMERICAN FRIENDS OF LIVNOT U'LEHIBANOT	3301	110 EAST 59TH ST 3PC FL NEW YORK, NY 10022	\$ 17,500.00
AMERICAN FRIENDS OF MEVASERET ZION, INC.	4330	71-65 149TH ST FLUSHING, NY 11345	\$ 1,000.00
AMERICAN FRIENDS OF MICCAL OPR	1253	250 WEST 57TH ST. #1730 NEW YORK, NY 10107	\$ 3,500.00
AMERICAN FRIENDS OF SHALOM HARTMAN INSTITUTE	1628	42 EAST 65TH ST SUITE 401 NEW YORK, NY 10021	\$ 15,000.00
AMERICAN FRIENDS OF SHALVA ISRAEL	3288	1170 BROADWAY SUITE 806 NEW YORK, NY 10001	\$ 1,000.00
AMERICAN FRIENDS OF THE HEBREW UNIVERSITY	27	11 EAST 65TH ST NEW YORK, NY 10021	\$ 20,000.00
AMERICAN FRIENDS OF THE HEBREW UNIVERSITY, INC.	1515	3659 CREEK FC #306 EACHUSCC, CT 04122	\$ 14,950.00
AMERICAN FRIENDS OF THE ISRAEL ARTS AND SCIENCE ACADEMY	3400	211 E. CHICAGO AVE #102C CHICAGO, IL 60611	\$ 2,000.00
AMERICAN FRIENDS OF THE ISRAEL MUSEUM	29	500 FIFTH AVE. #254C NEW YORK, NY 10110	\$ 42,350.00
AMERICAN FRIENDS OF THE MANCHESTER	3103	1736 48TH STREET BROCKLYN, NY 11208	\$ 500.00
AMERICAN FRIENDS OF THE OPEN UNIVERSITY OF ISRAEL, INC.	1172	180 W 80 ST MEZZ 10C NEW YORK, NY 10122	\$ 100.00
AMERICAN FRIENDS OF THE RAMBAM MEDICAL CENTER	3038	850 SEVENTH AVE 305 NEW YORK, NY 10019	\$ 1,000.00
AMERICAN FRIENDS OF YESHIVA OMIR INC.	32	1334 43RD ST BROCKLYN, NY 11219	\$ 3,000.00

REPORT NAME - PHECF3LT
REPORT DATE - 07/08/99

ENDOWMENT/PHILANTHROPIC SYSTEM
CLEVELAND FEDERATION
GRANTS FROM PHILANTHROPIC FUNDS
FROM 07/01/98 TO 03/31/99

PAGE 5

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	FY98	ADDRESS	FY98 GRANTS
AMERICAN FRIENDS OF YESHIVA MEAT SHEARIM, INC.	4458	6 BOX LINE SPRING VALLEY NY 10917	\$ 360.00
AMERICAN FRIENDS OF YESHIVAS TORAS MOSHE	2881	1145 EAST 21ST ST. BROOKLYN NY 11210	\$ 2,500.00
AMERICAN FRIENDS OF YESHIVOT ONEI AKIVA	599	11 EPCAWAY NEW YORK NY 10025	\$ 100.00
AMERICAN FRIENDS SERVICE COMMITTEE	36	1501 CHEFFY ST PHILADELPHIA PA 19102	\$ 2,200.00
AMERICAN HEART ASSOCIATION	38	1689 EAST 115TH ST CLEVELAND OH 44106	\$ 2,250.00
AMERICAN INDIAN COLLEGE FUND	2298	PC BOX 15019 NEW YORK NY 10021	\$ 250.00
AMERICAN INTERFAITH INSTITUTE	1842	321 CHESTNUT STREET PHILADELPHIA PA 19106	\$ 3,433.33
AMERICAN ISRAEL EDUCATION FOUNDATION	2012	440 1ST STREET NW WASHINGTON DC 20001	\$ 65,975.00
AMERICAN JEWISH COMMITTEE	40	625 HANNA BLEC. CLEVELAND OH 44115	\$ 37,275.00
AMERICAN JEWISH COMMITTEE	41	165 EAST 56TH ST NEW YORK NY 10022	\$ 32,450.00
AMERICAN JEWISH COMMITTEE	4435	900 NORTH FEDERAL HWY SUITE 210 ECCA PATCH FL 33432	\$ 350.00
AMERICAN JEWISH CONGRESS	42	23715 MERCANTILE RD CLEVELAND OH 44122	\$ 2,325.00
AMERICAN JEWISH CONGRESS	43	15 EAST 84TH ST NEW YORK NY 10028	\$ 300.00
AMERICAN JEWISH CONGRESS	1466	P.O. BOX 17305 MILWAUKEE WI 53217	\$ 100.00
AMERICAN JEWISH HISTORICAL SOCIETY	44	15 WEST 16TH ST NEW YORK NY 10011	\$ 40,100.00

REPORT NAME - PRECELT
REPORT DATE - 07/08/99

ENDOWMENT/PHILANTHROPIC SYSTEM
CLEVELAND FEDERATION
GRANTS FROM PHILANTHROPIC FUNDS
FROM 07/01/98 TO 03/31/99

PAGE 6

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	ALPB	ADDRESS	YIC	GRANTS
AMERICAN JEWISH JOINT DISTRIBUTION COMMITTEE, INC.	45	711 THIRD AVE. 10TH FLOOR NEW YORK, NY 10017	\$	12,100.00
AMERICAN JEWISH WORLD SERVICE	1935	989 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, 10 FL NEW YORK, NY 10018	\$	1,550.00
AMERICAN KIDNEY FOUNDATION	4341	PO BOX 56507 WASHINGTON, DC 20077	\$	100.00
AMERICAN LUNG ASSOCIATION	1069	1621 EUCLID AVENUE 8930 CLEVELAND, OH 44115	\$	800.00
AMERICAN C R T FEDERATION	52	24917 FAZELPHERE FC. CLEVELAND, OH 44122	\$	55,405.00
AMERICAN C. R. T. FEDERATION	53	817 EFCALWAY NEW YORK, NY 10003	\$	5,300.00
AMERICAN PARDES FOUNDATION	1588	136 E. 39TH ST NEW YORK, NY 10018	\$	15,000.00
AMERICAN PARKINSON DISEASE ASSOCIATION, INC.	4225	1250 FULPA BLVD SUITE 4E STATEN ISLAND, NY 10305	\$	100.00
AMERICAN PSYCHIATRIC ASSOCIATION	4199	1400K STREET NW WASHINGTON, DC 20005	\$	390.00
AMERICAN RED CROSS	51	3747 EUCLID AVE. CLEVELAND, OH 44115	\$	31,200.00
AMERICAN RED CROSS	1555	P.O. BOX 37243 WASHINGTON, DC 20013	\$	60,000.00
AMERICAN RED CROSS	1754	150 AMSTERDAM NEW YORK, NY 10023	\$	100.00
AMERICAN RED PACEN DAVIC FOR ISRAEL	55	3645 WARRENSVILLE CTR FC SHAKER PTS, OH 44122	\$	800.00
AMERICAN RED PACEN DAVIC FOR ISRAEL	56	888 SEVENTH AVE #402 NEW YORK, NY 10106	\$	250.00

REPORT NAME - PHEG3LT
REPORT DATE - 07/08/99

ENDOWMENT/PHILANTHROPIC SYSTEM
CLEVELAND FEDERATION
GRANTS FROM PHILANTHROPIC FUNDS
FROM 07/01/98 TO 03/31/99

PAGE 7

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NUPE	ADDRESS	YTD GRANTS
AMERICAN SCANDINAVIAN FOUNDATION	3575	725 PARK AVE NEW YORK , NY 10021	\$ 30,000.00
AMERICAN SOCIETY FOR TECHNOION	3469	6393 FENN AVE SUITE 315 PITTSBURGH , PA 15206	\$ 16,666.66
AMERICAN SOCIETY FOR TECHNOION-ISRAEL INSTITUTE FOR TECHNOLOGY, INC	59	810 SEVENTH AVENUE NEW YORK , NY 10019	\$ 200.00
AMERICAN SOCIETY FOR THE PROTECTION OF NATURE IN ISRAEL, INC.	1555	28 ARRACALE AVE GREAT NECK , NY 11024	\$ 100.00
AMERICAN SOCIETY OF CLINICAL PATHOLOGISTS	4360	2100 WEST HARRISON ST CHICAGO , IL 60678	\$ 100.00
AMERICAN SOCIETY OF TECHNOION, INC.	4415	3475 SPERDIAN ST SUITE 207 HOLLYWOOD , FL 33021	\$ 2,500.00
AMERICAN TITMITS ASSOCIATION	945	F. C. BOX 5 FOOTLAND , OR 97207	\$ 100.00
AMERICAN UNIVERSITY	972	4400 MASSACHUSETTS AVE NW WASHINGTON , DC 20016	\$ 1,000.00
AMERICANS FOR A SAFE ISRAEL	544	147 EAST 76TH STREET NEW YORK , NY 10021	\$ 100.00
AMERICANS FOR CXCPC, INC.	4445	198 PACISON AVE 13TH FL NEW YORK , NY 10016	\$ 10,000.00
AMERICANS FOR PEACE NOW, INC.	1365	114 WEST 26TH ST SUITE 1000 NEW YORK , NY 10001	\$ 5,000.00
AMERICARES FOUNDATION, INC.	2612	161 CHEFFY ST NEW CANAN , CT 06840	\$ 300.00
AMHERST COLLEGE	60	BOX 27, STATION 2 AMHERST , MA 01002	\$ 1,000.00
AMNESTY INTERNATIONAL U. S. A.	1478	FC BOX 96756 WASHINGTON , DC 20017	\$ 3,143.45

REFCRT NAME - PFECE3LT
 REFCRT DATE - 07/08/99

ENDOWMENT/PHILANTHROPIC SYSTEM
 CLEVELAND FEDERATION
 GRANTS FROM PHILANTHROPIC FUNDS
 FROM 07/01/98 TO 03/31/99

PAGE 6

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	FLPB	ADDRESS	YTD GRANTS
AMNESTY INTERNATIONAL U.S.A. INC.	591	322 EIGHTH AVENUE NEW YORK, NY 10001	\$ 100.00
AN UNCOMMON LEGACY FOUNDATION, INC.	2623	150 WEST 26TH ST SUITE 503 NEW YORK, NY 10001	\$ 1,000.00
ANDERSON FANCH ART FOUNDATION	2225	P. O. BOX 8558 SACKWASS VILLAGE, CO 81212	\$ 1,800.00
ANESTHESIA FOUNDATION	3617	520 N. NORTHWEST HIGHWAY PARK PLACE, IL 60068	\$ 100.00
ANIMAL PROTECTIVE LEAGUE	126	1729 WILLEY AVENUE CLEVELAND, OH 44112	\$ 350.00
ANIMAL RESCUE FORCE, INC.	4430	PO BOX 5443 LAKE WORTH, FL 33466	\$ 100.00
ANNA ELEANOR ROOSEVELT'S CENTER AT VAL KILL, INC.	4250	STONE COTTAGE PO BOX 90 PO BOX 235 HYDE PARK, NY 12538	\$ 100.00
ANTI DEFAMATION LEAGUE	589	505 TERMINAL TOWER CLEVELAND, OH 44112	\$ 350.00
ANTI DEFAMATION LEAGUE FOUNDATION	4313	1100 CONNECTICUT AVE., NW WASHINGTON, DC 20036	\$ 850.00
ANTI-DEFAMATION LEAGUE	62	823 UNITED NATIONS PLAZA SUITE 900 NEW YORK, NY 10017	\$ 11,100.00
ANTI-DEFAMATION LEAGUE	1541	324 CATLERA STREET #223 WEST PALM BEACH, FL 33401	\$ 32,300.00
ANTI-DEFAMATION LEAGUE	2233	CNE FINANCIAL PLAZA #2600 FT. LAUDERDALE, FL 33354	\$ 500.00
AFELLC'S FIRE	3196	3324 HESCHERPOCK BLVD. CLEVELAND, OH 44118	\$ 100.00
AFLEWCCI CENTERS, INC.	115	2525 EAST 22ND STREET CLEVELAND, OH 44112	\$ 3,500.00

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	ALPB	ADDRESS	YTD GRANTS
ARCHIVES OF AMERICAN ART OF THE SMITHSONIAN INSTITUTION	427	8TH AND F STREETS, NW AA-FG BUILDING WASHINGTON, DC 20560	\$ 125.00
ARIZONA DEVELOPMENT FUND	2651	1414 SOUTH GREEN RD SUITE 105 CLEVELAND, OH 44121	\$ 1,300.00
ARMERIAN GENERAL BENEVOLENT UNION	3153	31 WEST 52ND STREET NEW YORK, NY 10019	\$ 200.00
ARMY RETIREMENT RESIDENCE FOUNDATION - SAN ANTONIO	4454	7400 CRESTWAY SAN ANTONIO, TX 78239	\$ 1,600.00
ARTHRITIS FOUNDATION	793	23811 CHAGRIA BLVD 1210 CLEVELAND, OH 44122	\$ 3,325.00
ARTS MICHIGAN	1539	528 KENNEDY AVE. MINNEAPOLIS, MN 55403	\$ 1,625.00
ASPEN ART MUSEUM	2161	590 N HILL ST. ASPEN, CO 81611	\$ 16,750.00
ASPEN BALLET COMPANY AND SCHOOL	4308	110 EAST HALLAM ST #107 ASPEN, CO 81611	\$ 1,875.00
ASPEN CAMP SCHOOL FOR THE DEAF, INC.	2226	P. O. BOX 1454 ASPEN, CO 81612	\$ 1,875.00
ASPEN CENTER FOR ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES	3156	100 PUPPY SMITH STREET ASPEN, CO 81611	\$ 36,000.00
ASPEN EDUCATION FOUNDATION	3740	P.O. BOX 2200 ASPEN, CO 81612	\$ 1,500.00
ASPEN HISTORICAL SOCIETY	2242	620 WEST ELEEKER ST ASPEN, CO 81611	\$ 6,375.00
ASPEN INSTITUTE, INC.	2224	1333 NEW HAMPSHIRE AVE SUITE 1070 WASHINGTON, DC 20036	\$ 100,150.00
ASPEN JEWISH CONGREGATION	2684	0077 PENACHECKS CR ASPEN, CO 81611	\$ 150.00

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NPPE	ADDRESS	YTC GRANTS
ASSISTANCE LEAGUE OF SANTA CLARA COUNTY	4344	169 STATE ST LCS ALTES CA 94022	\$ 500.00
ATAxia TELANGIECTASIA CHILDREN'S PROJECT, INC.	4251	1 WEST CAMINO REAL SUITE 212 BOCA RATON FL 33432	\$ 5,000.00
ATERES TZVI, INC.	4414	5818 SEVEN MILE LN BALTIMORE MD 21215	\$ 500.00
ATTC XXXI FOUNDATION	4434	1750 EUCLID AVE CLEVELAND OH 44115	\$ 70,266.91
AUDITORY-VERBAL INTERNATIONAL, INC.	4455	2121 EISENHOWER AVE SUITE 402 ALEXANDRIA VA 22314	\$ 1,000.00
AUDUBON SOCIETY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE	4366	PO BOX 404 LEE'S MILLS FC MULTICRESCENT NH 03254	\$ 100.00
AUSTIN LYRIC OPERA	4421	PO BOX 984 AUSTIN TX 78767	\$ 5,000.00
AUTISM SOCIETY OF AMERICA	3387	7910 WILSON AVE #650 EETPESCA NC 28614	\$ 100.00
AUTOMOTIVE FOUNDATION FOR THE AFTERMARKET INC.	2458	PO BOX 2889 TEQUESTA FL 33465	\$ 1,000.00
AVENTURA TURNBERRY JEWISH CENTER	3531	20400 NE 30TH AVE AVENTURA FL 33180	\$ 11,500.00
B'NAI B'RITH FOUNDATION OF THE UNITED STATES	83	1640 RICE ISLAND AVENUE, NW WASHINGTON DC 20036	\$ 1,015.00
B'NAI E'RITH HILLEL	4306	381 PARK AVE SCOUT SUITE 613 NEW YORK NY 10016	\$ 500.00
B'NAI E'RITH HILLEL FOUNDATION	1080	HILLEL JEWISH STUDENT CT 2615 CLIFTON AVE. CINCINNATI OH 45220	\$ 100.00

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NUMB	ADDRESS	AMOUNT
B'NAI B'RIIT YOUTH ORGANIZATION	86	26001 S. MCGILANE RD CLEVELAND , OH 44122	\$ 4,700.00
B'NAI JESHURUN	89	27501 FAIRMOUNT ECULEVARD PEPPER PIKE , OH 44124	\$ 314,515.00
EAIS KAILA TORAH PREPARATORY HIGH SCHOOL	1533	P.O. BOX 952 LAKEWOOD , NJ 08101	\$ 7,250.00
EAIS YAAKOV OF BOSTON, INC.	4314	561 WARE ST NEWTON CENTRE , MA 02159	\$ 600.00
EALCWIN WALLACE COLLEGE	70	275 EASTLAND BEREA , OH 44017	\$ 200.00
BALLET FLORIDA INC.	4009	500 FERN ST WEST PALM BEACH , FL 33411	\$ 400.00
EALTIMORE SCHOOL FOR THE ARTS FOUNDATION, INC.	4333	712 CATHEDRAL ST BALTIMORE , MD 21201	\$ 3,000.00
BAR ILAN UNIVERSITY OF ISRAEL	1246	6735 TELEGRAPH RD #130 BLCKFIELD HILLS , MI 48301	\$ 18,400.00
BAR-ILAN UNIVERSITY	72	91 FIFTH AVE #200 NEW YORK , NY 10003	\$ 5,400.00
EAYIT LEFLEITCT, INC.	2665	1362 EAST 21ST ST. BROCKLYN , NY 11210	\$ 2,000.00
BEACHWOOD ARTS COUNCIL	73	25511 FAIRMOUNT ECULEVARD BEACHWOOD , OH 44122	\$ 500.00
BEACHWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION	1162	24601 FAIRMOUNT BLVD. CLEVELAND , OH 44122	\$ 250.00
BEAUMONT SCHOOL FOR GIRLS	645	3301 N. PARK ECULEVARD CLEVELAND HEIGHTS , OH 44116	\$ 2,500.00
BECK CENTER FOR THE CULTURAL ARTS	1505	17801 DETROIT AVE LAKEWOOD , OH 44107	\$ 200.00
BEETH BECK	557	3737 LAMAR BLVD PEPPERPIKE , OH 44124	\$ 2,750.00

REPORT NAME - PHECF3LT
 REPORT DATE - 07/08/99

ENDOWMENT/PHILANTHROPIC SYSTEM
 CLEVELAND FEDERATION
 GRANTS FROM PHILANTHROPIC FUNDS
 FROM 07/01/98 TO 03/31/99

PAGE 12

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NUMB	ADDRESS	STG. GRANTS
BELLEFAIRE	74	22001 FAIRMOUNT ECULEVARE CLEVELAND , OH 44116	\$ 16,035.15
BELLEFAIRE JCE	274	P.O. BOX 72264 CLEVELAND , OH 44192	\$ 6,650.00
BELLFLOWER CENTER FOR PREVENTION OF CHILD ABUSE, INC.	1503	11811 SHAKER BLVD SUITE 220 CLEVELAND , OH 44120	\$ 5,550.00
BENJAMIN FCSE INSTITUTE	75	850 EUCLID AVE 41100 THE CITIZENS ELEC CLEVELAND , OH 44114	\$ 7,375.00
BEREA CHILDRENS HOME	3538	202 EAST EAGLEY RD BEREA , OH 44017	\$ 135.00
BEREA COLLEGE	746	101 CHESTNUT ST BEREA , KY 40403	\$ 538.00
BERKELEY CARROLL STREET SCHOOL	4238	181 LINCOLN PLACE BRUCKLYN , NY 11217	\$ 5,000.00
BETH EL SYNAGOGUE CENTER	4429	NORTHFIELD RD AT ACFTT AVE NEW ROCHELLE , NY 10804	\$ 200.00
BETH MEDFASH GCVCHA INSTITUTE FOR ADVANCED LEARNING	609	617 SIXTH STREET LAKENESS , NJ 08701	\$ 51,500.00
BETH MEDFASH GCVCHA OF AMERICA	78	1251 51ST STREET BRUCKLYN , NY 11215	\$ 3,000.00
BETH MIFIAH TEMPLE	4422	FC BOX 1057 ELBERFEN , NJ 07140	\$ 500.00
BETHESDA CHEVY CHASE RESCUE SQUAD, INC.	4309	5020 BATTERY LANE CHEVY CHASE , MD 20814	\$ 250.00
EIC BROTHERS/EIG SISTERS OF AMERICA	1692	P O BOX 22476 CLEVELAND , OH 44122	\$ 1,000.00
BIKUR CHILIM	4028	FC BOX 21270 CLEVELAND , OH 44121	\$ 500.00

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NUPIB	ADDRESS	YTD GRANTS
BIKUR CHOLIK OF WASHINGTON HEIGHTS	4386	600 WEST 169TH ST NEW YORK , NY 10032	\$ 500.00
BIRCH WATKIN LENOX SCHOOL	4420	210 EAST 77TH ST NEW YORK , NY 10021	\$ 10,950.00
BIRMINGHAM JEWISH FEDERATION	2800	P. O. BOX 130219 BIRMINGHAM , AL 35212	\$ 1,000.00
ELECTMINCTON NORMAL NEW SCHOOL CORPORATION	4228	320 E. PLEERRY ELECTMINCTON , IL 61701	\$ 20,500.00
ELUECCATS, INC.	81	621 HANNA BLEC. CLEVELAND , OH 44115	\$ 1,450.00
BNAI BRITH FOUNDATION OF THE U.S.	4044	1640 FENCE ISLAND AVE, NW WASHINGTON , DC 20036	\$ 3,700.00
BNAI BRITH FILLEL FOUNDATION	4155	233 BAY STATE RD BOSTON , MA 02215	\$ 500.00
BNAI BRITH FILLEL FOUNDATION	4227	40 MASSACHUSETTS AVE CAMBRIDGE , MA 02139	\$ 250.00
BNAI TCFAR CONGREGATION	3173	6261 SW 18TH STREET BCCA PATCA , FL 33433	\$ 1,650.00
BNAI ZION FOUNDATION, INC.	4395	4400 N. FEDERAL HIGHWAY #210 BCCA PATCA , FL 33431	\$ 300.00
BCCA PATCA SYNAGOGUE, INC.	3458	7900 MONTCYP CIRCLE BCCA PATCA , FL 33433	\$ 3,000.00
BOSTON BALLET, INC.	4364	15 CLARENCE ST BOSTON , MA 02114	\$ 300.00
BOSTON PUBLIC LIBRARY FOUNDATION	4425	700 BOSTON STREET BOSTON , MA 02114	\$ 1,000.00
BOULDER VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT	4348	4545 SIXTH FIVE BOULDER , CO 80303	\$ 300.00
BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA	87	WHEELAND AT E 22ND STREET CLEVELAND , OH 44115	\$ 350.00

REPORT NAME - PHECF3LT
 REPORT DATE - 07/08/99

ENDOWMENT/PHILANTHROPIC SYSTEM
 CLEVELAND FEDERATION
 GRANTS FROM PHILANTHROPIC FUNDS
 FROM 07/01/98 TO 03/31/99

PAGE 14

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NUMB	ADDRESS	YTD GRANTS
BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS OF GREATER CLEVELAND	1220	3340 TOWERPLACE AVE CLEVELAND , OH 44105	\$ 500.00
BOYS AND GIRLS CLUBS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY	4340	800 NORTHPOINT PARKWAY SUITE 204 WEST PALM BEACH , FL 33407	\$ 10,000.00
BRANDEIS UNIVERSITY	95	OFFICE OF DEVELOPMENT P.O. BOX 9110 WALTHAM , MA 02254	\$ 112,250.00
BRANDEIS UNIVERSITY -- NATIONAL WOMEN'S COMMITTEE	749	411 EAST 57TH ST NEW YORK , NY 10022	\$ 663.05
BRANDEIS UNIVERSITY, NATIONAL WOMEN'S COMMITTEE	1384	415 SOUTH STREET WALTHAM , MA 02154	\$ 100.00
BRATENAFI COMMUNITY FOUNDATION	1125	10300 BRIGHAM DRIVE CLEVELAND , OH 44106	\$ 300.00
BRIDGEWAY AREA FOCUSING COALITION	4265	5620 BRIDGEWAY AVE CLEVELAND , OH 44127	\$ 25,000.00
BROWN UNIVERSITY	98	BOX 1877 PROVIDENCE , RI 02912	\$ 3,000.00
BUFFALO FINE ARTS ACADEMY	4315	1285 ELMHURST AVENUE ALDRIGHT-KNOX ART GALLERY BUFFALO , NY 14222	\$ 1,200.00
BURTON PUBLIC LIBRARY	3801	14588 W. PARK ST P.O. BOX 427 BURTON , OH 44021	\$ 100.00
BUSINESS VOLUNTEERISM COUNCIL	2792	50 PUBLIC SQUARE SUITE 950 CLEVELAND , OH 44113	\$ 1,100.00
BUTLER INSTITUTE OF AMERICAN ART	2762	524 WICK AVE YOUNGSTOWN , OH 44502	\$ 150.00
CAMP MC MITA KCCA, INC.	102	14040 ALEURN ROAD NEWBURY , OH 44065	\$ 350.00
CAMPFESTIPS FOR NEBACAMCA, INC.	3618	P.O. BOX 429 LAKE NEBACAMCA , WI 54649	\$ 500.00

REPORT NAME - PRECF3LT
REPORT DATE - 07/08/99

ENDOWMENT/PHILANTHROPIC SYSTEM
CLEVELAND FEDERATION
GRANTS FROM PHILANTHROPIC FUNDS
FROM 07/01/98 TO 03/31/99

PAGE 15

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NUFB	ADDRESS	YTD GRANTS
CANCER HOTLINE OF CUYAHOGA COUNTY INC.	1544	23200 CHAGRIN BLVD ELCC. 4 #600 CLEVELAND , OH 44122	\$ 100.00
CANTON COUNTRY DAY SCHOOL	2505	3000 DEWINGTON AVE. N.W. CANTON , OH 44718	\$ 1,000.00
CANTON JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION	548	2631 FARVARE AVENUE, NW CANTON , OH 44705	\$ 3,750.00
CARE AND REHABILITATION OF WILDLIFE, INC.	4416	PO BOX 150 SANIBEL , FL 33557	\$ 100.00
CARRIER FOUNDATION	4446	PO BOX 609 BELLE MEAD , NJ 08502	\$ 2,000.00
CASE ALUMNI ASSOCIATION, CASE INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY	105	107 CRAWFORD HALL 10900 EUCLID AVENUE CLEVELAND , OH 44106	\$ 1,200.00
CASE WESTERN RESERVE UNIVERSITY	566	10900 EUCLID AVE UNIVERSITY CIRCLE CLEVELAND , OH 44106	\$ 51,347.63
CASE WESTERN RESERVE UNIVERSITY	740	WEATHERHEAD SCH PKMT 500 ENTERPRISE HALL CLEVELAND , OH 44106	\$ 5,000.00
CASE WESTERN RESERVE UNIVERSITY ELDRED THEATRE	712	2070 ACELEERT ROAD CLEVELAND , OH 44106	\$ 3,200.00
CASE WESTERN RESERVE UNIVERSITY, ALUMNI ANNUAL FUND	106	BAKER BLDG. 10900 EUCLID AVE. CLEVELAND , OH 44106	\$ 5,050.00
CASE WESTERN RESERVE UNIVERSITY, DIABETES RESEARCH FUND	540	SCHOOL OF MEDICINE 10900 EUCLID AVE RM EESC CLEVELAND , OH 44106	\$ 1,000.00
CASE WESTERN RESERVE UNIVERSITY, HANDEL SCHOOL OF APPLIED SOCIAL S	109	11235 BELLFLOWER RD. CLEVELAND , OH 44106	\$ 2,000.00
CASE WESTERN RESERVE UNIVERSITY, SCHOOL OF LAW	108	11075 EAST EUCLID AVE CLEVELAND , OH 44106	\$ 46,000.00

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION

UFR#

ACCESS

FY90 GRANTS

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	UFR#	ACCESS	FY90 GRANTS
CASE WESTERN RESERVE UNIVERSITY, SCHOOL OF MEDICINE	107	10900 ELLICIE AVE. RCHR #6 25 CLEVELAND	\$ 11,950.00
CATC INSTITUTE	4166	1000 MASSACHUSETTS AVE #4 WASHINGTON	\$ 100.00
CENTER FOR CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS	1007	666 PEECHWAY 717 ELLICE NEW YORK	\$ 1,500.00
CENTER FOR DEFENSE INFORMATION	1511	1500 MASSACHUSETTS AVE NW WASHINGTON	\$ 100.00
CENTER FOR FAMILIES AND CHILDREN	110	1468 W. 917 ST. 1125 WESTERN RESERVE ELLIC CLEVELAND	\$ 27,636.00
CENTER FOR INTEGRATIVE MEDICINE	3944	FC ECX 44085 TUCSON	\$ 205,659.00
CENTER FOR JEWISH HISTORY	3795	111 E 61ST ST NEW YORK	\$ 2,000.00
CENTER FOR MENTAL RETARIATION	179	1621 EUCCLIC AVE #514 CLEVELAND	\$ 1,600.00
CENTER FOR PREVENTION OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE	2559	23875 CUMBERCE PARK RC. CLEVELAND	\$ 1,450.00
CENTER THEATRE GROUP OF LOS ANGELES	4352	135 N. GRANT AVE LOS ANGELES	\$ 2,500.00
CENTER TO PREVENT HANGCUN VIOLENCE	2265	1225 EYE ST NW #1100 WASHINGTON	\$ 1,200.00
CHABAC FOCUS OF CLEVELAND	111	3499 EAINPERICE RT CLEVELAND	\$ 17,264.00
CHABAC JEWISH CENTER OF SOLON	3553	32915 ALPORA RT SUITE 40 SCLCN	\$ 16,300.00
CHABAC OF SARASOTA AND MANATEE COUNTIES	2594	2142 REYNOLDS ST. SARASOTA	\$ 250.00

GRANTEE - ORGANIZATION	NAME	ADDRESS	YTD GRANTS
CHAEUS CHILDREN CF CHERNOBYL	3654	535 FIFTH AVE, #301 NEW YORK NY 10011	500.00
CHAGRIN FALLS ALUMNI ASSOCIATION	4335	77 E. WASHINGTON ST CHAGRIN FALLS	200.00
CHAGRIN RIVER LAKE CONSERVANCY	3943	FC ECX 148 CHAGRIN FALLS	1,000.00
CHAGRIN VALLEY THERAPEUTIC RIDING CENTER, INC.	844	F.C. ECX 144 ACVELTY	250.00
CHAMBER MUSIC AMERICA, INC.	1431	305 SEVENTH AVE NEW YORK NY 10001	3,100.00
CHARLES CARLIN FOUNDATION, INC.	4259	FC ECX 56605 WASHINGTON	10,000.00
CHAPMA PERPETUAL ZAKARAT FUND	4243	B ELYON RD MCNSEY	2,000.00
CHAUTAUQUA EDUCATION, INC.	3179	ECX 28 CHAUTAUQUA	10,100.00
CHAUTAUQUA INSTITUTION	113	P C ECX 1055 CHAUTAUQUA	22,450.00
CHESTNUT HILL HOSPITAL HEALTH-CARE CENTER	4273	428 EAST 72ND ST NEW YORK NY 10021	100.00
CHICAGO HEALTH CONNECTION	4312	3411 N. GIVERSEY SUITE 5 CHICAGO	500.00
CHICAGO ZOOLOGICAL SOCIETY	4356	3300 CLIF RD BROOKFIELD	200.00
CHILDREN'S DEFENSE FUND	1830	25 E STREET NW WASHINGTON	2,650.00
CHILDREN'S MEMORIAL HOSPITAL	3368	2300 CHILDRENS PLAZA CHICAGO	750.00
CHILDRENS AIC SOCIETY	117	10427 CLEVELAND AVE CLEVELAND OH 44102	250.00

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	PHONE	ADDRESS	YIC GRANTS
CHILDRENS LUNG FOUNDATION	3654	2300 CLEVELAND BLVD SUITE 406 CLEVELAND OH 44106	500.00
CHILDRENS SUPPORT RIGHTS	2742	614 SUFFICE AVE N. W. 23CC CLEVELAND OH 44113	750.00
OHIOATI FOUNDATION	4035	FC BOX 1135 1 CAVALEY RD PARFA TX 75243	1,000.00
CHRIST THE KING CHURCH	4264	1862 NCELE RD CLEVELAND OH 44122	1,000.00
CITIZENS FOR WELLESLEY PUBLIC EDUCATION, INC.	4376	FC BOX 612221 WELLESLEY MA 02452	2,000.00
CITIZENS LEAGUE RESEARCH INSTITUTE	224	50 PUBLIC SQUARE 843 TERMINAL TOWER CLEVELAND OH 44112	1,450.00
CITY CLUB FROM FOUNDATION	549	850 EUCLEA AVE CLEVELAND OH 44114	4,770.00
CITY COLLEGE FUND	4236	13917 ST AND CONVENT AVE NEW YORK NY 10021	150.00
CITY LIGHTS YOUTH THEATRE, INC.	4453	130 W 56TH ST NEW YORK NY 10019	748.00
CITY OF CPEE	507	208 WEST EIGHTH ST LCS ANGLES CA 90014	100.00
CITY OF MAPLE HEIGHTS	4276	5353 LEE RD CLEVELAND OH 44131	2,500.00
CLARK UNIVERSITY	1152	950 MAIN STREET MORCHESTER MA 01810	1,000.00
CLEVELAND #20 TRUE SISTERS NURSERY SCHOOL	161	2655 LEE ROAD CLEVELAND OH 44116	2,150.00
CLEVELAND ARTISTS FOUNDATION	1139	23811 CHAPMAN BLVD. ALL41 CLEVELAND OH 44122	100.00

GRANT#	GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	PURP	ACCESS	YTD GRANTS
2312	CLEVELAND ARTISTS FOUNDATION			1,750.00
127	CLEVELAND ELLET			64,147.83
128	CLEVELAND ESSEAL FEDERATION			1,500.00
896	CLEVELAND ESCAF OF EDUCATION			300.00
214	CLEVELAND ECTHICAL GARDEN			5,550.00
4389	CLEVELAND EGY CHOR			100.00
366	CLEVELAND CENTER FOR CONTEMPORARY ART			35,713.00
130	CLEVELAND CHAMBER MUSIC SOCIETY			2,100.00
132	CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION			54,400.00
133	CLEVELAND COLLEGE OF JEWISH STUDIES			76,360.00
4207	CLEVELAND COLLEGE OF JEWISH STUDIES ASSOCIATION			125.00
177	CLEVELAND COUNCIL ON MCRAL AFFAIRS			300.00
135	CLEVELAND DEVELOPMENT FOUNDATION			1,800.00
1557	CLEVELAND EDUCATION FUND			5,000.00

REPORT NAME - SPECIAL
REPORT DATE - 07/08/99

ENDORSEMENT/PHILANTHROPIC SYSTEM
CLEVELAND FEDERATION
GRANTS FROM PHILANTHROPIC FUNDS
FROM 07/01/98 TO 03/31/99

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION ALPH ADDRESS YTC GRANTS

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	ALPH	ADDRESS	YTC GRANTS
CLEVELAND ERUV SOCIETY	560	2511 RUEYVALE ROAD CLEVELAND OH 44116	580.00
CLEVELAND EYE BANK, INC.	136	WEAFA BLDG # 215 1100 ECLIPSE AVE CLEVELAND	750.00
CLEVELAND FILM SOCIETY	1327	1621 ECLIPSE AVE., #428 CLEVELAND OH 44115	7,350.00
CLEVELAND FIDELITY BANK, INC.	226	1557 E. 27TH STREET CLEVELAND OH 44114	700.00
CLEVELAND FOUNDATION	137	1400 PARKA BLDG. CLEVELAND OH 44115	7,600.00
CLEVELAND FOUNDATION FOR ARCHITECTURE, INC.	2678	21380 LORAIN AVE SUITE 200 CLEVELAND OH 44122	600.00
CLEVELAND GRAND PRIX CHARITIES	4248	1360 EAST 9TH ST CLEVELAND OH 44114	525.00
CLEVELAND HEALTH EDUCATION MUSEUM	138	8911 ECLIPSE AVENUE CLEVELAND OH 44132	1,300.00
CLEVELAND HEARING & SPEECH CENTER	139	11206 ECLIPSE AVENUE CLEVELAND OH 44132	5,525.00
CLEVELAND HEBREW SCHOOL AND INSTITUTE	140	25400 RIVERSIDE ESTATE CLEVELAND OH 44122	1,500.00
CLEVELAND HEIGHTS/UNIVERSITY HEIGHTS BOARD OF EDUCATION	883	2155 PARKWAY BLVD UNIVERSITY HTS. OH 44118	100.00
CLEVELAND HILFEL FOUNDATION, INC.	141	11291 ECLIPSE AVENUE CLEVELAND OH 44132	5,250.00
CLEVELAND HYS/UNIVERSITY HYS PUBLIC SCHOOL FOUNDATION	2615	REACHING HEIGHTS 2130 WYFIELD RD #2225 CLEVELAND OH 44116	100.00
CLEVELAND INSTITUTE OF ART	142	11141 EAST ECLEVARD CLEVELAND OH 44132	15,750.00

REPORT NAME - PEEF3LT
REPORT DATE - 07/08/99

ENDOWMENT/PHILANTHROPIC SYSTEM
CLEVELAND FEDERATION
GRANTS FROM PHILANTHROPIC FUNDS
FROM 07/01/98 TO 03/31/99

PAGE 21

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	PLPB	ADDRESS	YTD GRANTS
CLEVELAND INSTITUTE OF MUSIC	143	11021 EAST ECULEVARE CLEVELAND , OH 44106	\$ 25,243.45
CLEVELAND INTL PROGRAM FOR YOUTH LEADERS AND SOCIAL WORKERS	144	1700 EAST 13TH ST, 445E CLEVELAND , OH 44114	\$ 1,350.00
CLEVELAND JAZZ ORCHESTRA	1656	3203 PASADENA DRIVE CLEVELAND , OH 44121	\$ 2,000.00
CLEVELAND MUSEUM OF ART	148	11150 EAST ECULEVARE CLEVELAND , OH 44106	\$ 117,900.00
CLEVELAND MUSEUM OF NATURAL HISTORY	149	1 WACE CVAL CR CLEVELAND , OH 44106	\$ 10,050.00
CLEVELAND MUSIC SCHOOL SETTLEMENT	150	11125 MACCLIA DRIVE CLEVELAND , OH 44106	\$ 4,555.66
CLEVELAND PERFORMANCE ART FESTIVAL INC.	2345	1365 WEBB RD. CLEVELAND , OH 44101	\$ 300.00
CLEVELAND PHILHARMONIC ORCHESTRA	3219	P.O. BOX 16251 CLEVELAND , OH 44116	\$ 2,500.00
CLEVELAND FCPS ORCHESTRA	3532	5914 MAYFIELD RD CLEVELAND , OH 44124	\$ 1,100.00
CLEVELAND PUBLIC RADIO	997	3100 CHESTER AVE. SUITE 300 CLEVELAND , OH 44114	\$ 263,510.00
CLEVELAND PUBLIC THEATRE	1375	6415 DETROIT AVE. CLEVELAND , OH 44102	\$ 25,550.00
CLEVELAND RAPE CRISIS CENTER	155	1370 CATHARIC STREET CLEVELAND , OH 44113	\$ 3,500.00
CLEVELAND RESTORATION SOCIETY	1128	3751 PERSPECT AVE CLEVELAND , OH 44113	\$ 1,000.00
CLEVELAND FACTORY FOUNDATION	156	STATLER OFFICE TOWER 3812 EUCLID AVE CLEVELAND , OH 44113	\$ 2,300.00
CLEVELAND SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAMS, INC.	157	850 EUCLID AVE. 11000 CLEVELAND , OH 44114	\$ 14,050.00

RECEIPT NAME - RECEIPTS
RECEIPT DATE - 07/08/99

ENDORSEMENT/PHILANTHROPIC SYSTEM
CLEVELAND FEDERATION
GRANTS FRCH PHILANTHROPIC FUNDS
FRCH 07/01/99 TO 03/31/99

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION PURB ADDRESS TYPE GRANTS

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	PURB	ADDRESS	TYPE	GRANTS
CLEVELAND SIGNSTAGE THEATRE, INC.	703	6900 EUCLEID AVENUE CLEVELAND	OF 4410E	590.00
CLEVELAND SKILLED INDUSTRIES	2070	2239 E. 55TH ST. CLEVELAND	OF 4410E	1,400.00
CLEVELAND SOCIETY FOR CONTEMPORARY ART	930	11150 EAST ELVE CLEVELAND	OF 4410E	325.00
CLEVELAND SOCIETY FOR THE BLIND	159	1909 EAST 101ST STREET F.C. BOX 1988 CLEVELAND	OF 4410E	26,520.00
CLEVELAND STATE UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC.	160	2605 EUCLEID AVENUE CLEVELAND	OF 4410E	59,500.00
CLEVELAND WOMEN INC.	1974	F.C. BOX 5466 CLEVELAND	OF 4410E	200.00
CLEVELAND WOMEN'S CITY CLUB FOUNDATION	850	F.C. BOX 14455 CLEVELAND	OF 4410E	100.00
CLEVELAND WORKS, INC.	1926	812 PURCH RD SE SUITE 800 CLEVELAND	OF 4410E	7,150.00
CLEVELAND SCOLOGICAL SOCIETY	162	FC BOX 605281 CLEVELAND	OF 4410E	10,350.00
CLUB 24 INC	4388	1635 LEE RD CLEVELAND	OF 4410E	100.00
COMMISSION FOR ADVANCEMENT OF JEWISH EDUCATION	550	261 WEST 35TH ST FL. 12A NEW YORK	NY 10001	1,100.00
COATS FOR KIDS - CLEVELAND	1674	1468 N. 9TH ST SUITE 805 CLEVELAND	OF 4410E	250.00
CLEBY COLLEGE	4372	4760 HAYFLOWER HILL MATERVILLE	ME 04501	100.00
CLEGGATE UNIVERSITY	4235	13 CAK CR HAMILLTON	NY 13344	7,500.00

REPORT NAME - SPECIAL
RECEIPT DATE - 07/08/59

ENDOWMENT/PHILANTHROPIC SYSTEM
CLEVELAND RECEIPT
GRANTS ERCP PHILANTHROPIC FUNDS
FRCH 07/01/58 TO 03/31/99

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION NAME ADDRESS YTC GRANTS

COLUMBIA UNIVERSITY 1610 622 WEST 112TH STREET \$ 250.00

COLUMBIA UNIVERSITY LAW SCHOOL 1976 435 WEST 116TH STREET \$ 1,000.00

COLUMBIA UNIVERSITY, INC. IN THE CITY OF NEW YORK 163 100 HAMILTON HALL \$ 1,100.00

COHEINEK JEWISH PHILANTHROPIES OF GREATER BOSTON, INC. 165 126 PINE ST \$ 1,053.04

COMMITTEE FOR ACCURACY IN MIDDLE EAST REPORTING IN AMERICA 2556 F.O. BOX 426 \$ 600.00

COMMITTEE FOR PUBLIC ART 2818 1220 WEST 52ND ST., 43CC \$ 400.00

COMMITTEE FOR THE RESCUE OF ISRAEL'S BABIES 4374 1612 57TH ST \$ 500.00

COMMUNITY FOUNDATION OF GREATER LCRAIN COUNTY 1016 1865 NORTH RIDGE RD EAST \$ 5,000.00

COMMUNITY TELEVISION FOUNDATION OF SOUTH FLORIDA 684 P.O. BOX 610002 \$ 425.00

CONGREGATION ARAH YERUSH 4107 189 MILSCON ST \$ 360.00

CONGREGATION ARAVAS ISRAEL 4097 1700 S. TAYLOR RD \$ 1,500.00

CONGREGATION BENEI YAKOV 2940 1768 54TH ST. \$ 125.00

CONGREGATION ERETZ AM 178 3557 WASHINGTON ECULEVAFC \$ 5,635.00

CONGREGATION ERETZ ISRAEL 1668 2512 TRIFF AVENUE \$ 1,300.00

CONGREGATION ERETZ ISRAEL 4293 1972 AM LAWRENCE ST \$ 1,450.00

RECEIPT NAME - PHOENIX

RECEIPT DATE - 07/08/99

ENDOWMENT/FILANTHOPIC SYSTEM
CLEVELAND FEDERATION
GRANTS FROM PHILANTHOPIC FUNDS
FROM 07/01/98 TO 03/31/99

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION

NUMB

ADDRESS

YTC GRANTS

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NUMB	ADDRESS	YTC GRANTS
CONGREGATION BETS SCHULL ANCHEI CH-51	3627	1251 51ST STREET BROCKLYN NY 11215	100.00
CONGREGATION ESTAYNU	570	27900 C/755 PILLS BLVD CLEVELAND OH 44124	3,525.55
CONGREGATION ENAI ISRAEL	2673	3600 RIVERSIDE BLVD SACRAMENTO CA 95818	1,800.00
CONGREGATION ENAI SPALCH	3932	P.O. BOX 1015 WESTCHESTER MA 01581	5,000.00
CONGREGATION CARCHEI TORAF	3253	257 BEACH 17TH ST PAR ROCKAWAY NY 11651	160.00
CONGREGATION KEPLAT JESHURUN	884	117-25 E. 89TH ST. NEW YORK NY 10022	2,615.00
CONGREGATION KHAL YEREIN	756	1771 SCULY TAYLOR ROAD CLEVELAND HEIGHTS OH 44118	2,000.00
CONGREGATION MERCAZ PATRAF OF BELLE HARBOR	4157	505 BEACH 125 ST BELLE HARBOR NY 11654	400.00
CONGREGATION PESITA CH-EL TORAF	3321	3 CUNFILL LN PANSY NY 10522	250.00
CONGREGATION SPAREY IIRAV	324	26811 FAIRMOUNT BLVD. CLEVELAND OH 44122	7,400.00
CONGREGATION SHEARIT ISRAEL	520	8 WEST 10TH STREET NEW YORK NY 10023	3,100.00
CONGREGATION SPINRE SHABOTI	713	1801 S. TAYLOR ROAD CLEVELAND HEIGHTS OH 44118	410.00
CONGREGATION T-CHIVAT	4337	10835 ECHMAN AVE PUNTINGTON HILLS MI 48070	100.00
CONGREGATION TORAF U'VEEILAT	1065	1861 SCULY TAYLOR ROAD CLEVELAND OH 44118	1,000.00
CONGREGATION TORAF VEENUNAT, INC.	1354	1060 NE 177 TERR NORTH MIAMI BEACH FL 33162	1,000.00

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NUMBER	ADDRESS	YTC GRANTS
CONGREGATION YESHIVA AVIR YAKOV	4353	766 N. MAIN ST NEW SCUFFE NY 10577	250.00
CONGREGATION YESHIVA CE TELSHE ALMNI	2620	4904 INDEPENDENCE AVE BRONX NY 10473	180.00
CONGREGATION ZEMACH DAVID CE DINEV	4385	43 ALBERT CRIVE MANSEY NY 10552	100.00
CONGREGATION ZICRON CHAIM	1952	2203 SCLTI GREEN RD. CLEVELAND OH 44121	4,800.00
CUNY HISTORICAL SOCIETY	4367	FC EX 1545 CUNY NY 10016	500.00
COOPERATIVE FOR AMERICAN RELIEF EVERYWHERE, INC.	104	660 FIRST AVENUE NEW YORK NY 10016	600.00
CELEST SCHURMAN EDUCATION	173	P.O. EX 398 ACELTY OH 44312	5,500.00
CORNELL UNIVERSITY	172	DEVELOPMENT OFFICE 55 ECHM RD. ITHACA NY 14850	402,000.00
CELEST MUSEUM CE CLASS	2555	CHE MUSEUM WAY CUNY NY 10020	500.00
CORNUCCIA, INC.	3563	18120 SLCANE AVE CLEVELAND OH 44131	100.00
CETA CHILDRENS ORGAN TRANSPLANT ASSOCIATION, INC.	4349	2501 CCTA CE BLCCPHICTA IN 47003	6,350.00
COUNCIL FOR INITIATIVES IN JEWISH EDUCATION	3055	P.O. EX 94552 CLEVELAND OH 44101	725,000.00
COUNCIL OFFERS	174	2501 TAYLOR PLAC CLEVELAND OH 44116	5,700.00
GRAFT EFFECENCY RELIEF FUND INC	2527	FC EX 838 MCATHELIEF VI 05001	100.00
GRHS AND COLIIS EDUCATION OF AMERICA	1800	23366 COPPERE PARK RD #203 CLEVELAND OH 44122	550.00

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NUMBER	ADDRESS	YTD GRANTS
CELENS AND COLLETS FOUNDATION OF AMERICA, INC.	4438	6220 EAST 116TH RD SCOTTSDALE AZ 85251	\$ 100.00
CURTIS INSTITUTE OF MUSIC	3739	1726 LOCUST ST PHILADELPHIA PA 19103	\$ 5,086.56
CUYAHOGA COMMUNITY COLLEGE	4304	700 CARPACIE AVENUE CLEVELAND OH 44115	\$ 300.00
CUYAHOGA COMMUNITY COLLEGE FOUNDATION	652	700 CARPACIE AVE. CLEVELAND OH 44115	\$ 600.00
CUYAHOGA VALLEY PRESERVATION & SCENIC RAILWAY ASSOCIATION	2270	P. O. BOX 156 PENINSULA OH 44264	\$ 100.00
CYSTIC FIBROSIS FOUNDATION	2052	6931 ARLINGTON ROAD BETHESDA MD 20814	\$ 100.00
DAILY BREAD BAKERY	4439	5850 W. 32ND AVE P14P1 FL 33142	\$ 12,575.00
CALTON SCHOOL	1658	108 EAST 89TH ST. NEW YORK NY 10128	\$ 11,500.00
CANA-FARBER, INC.	3583	375 LINDBERG AVE ROCKY HILL MA 02215	\$ 1,100.00
CANOELEVELAND	147	1148 EUCLEIA AVE. #311 CLEVELAND OH 44115	\$ 200.00
DARWIN SCHOOL	3867	110 CARRON RD NEW LEBAON NY 12125	\$ 600.00
DAVID N. MYERS COLLEGE	187	112 PROSPECT AVE. CLEVELAND OH 44115	\$ 1,000.00
DEFENDERS OF WILDLIFE INC.	2115	1101 14TH ST NW STE 1400 WASHINGTON DC 20003	\$ 100.00
DESERT FLOW, INC.	4013	1700 E. TARCUMITZ CYN WAY SUITE 5 PALM SPRINGS CA 92262	\$ 25,000.00

ENDOWMENT/PHILANTHROPIC SYSTEM
 CLEVELAND FEDERATION
 GRANTS FRGM PHILANTHROPIC FUNDS
 FROM 07/01/98 TO 03/31/99

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NUMB	ADDRESS	YTD GRANTS
ELBERTS TEL	566	75 FEDERAL ST. DOSTON MA 02110	200.00
ELBERTS STREET PROJECT, INC.	3202	12 ELDRIDGE ST NEW YORK NY 10022	100.00
ELANOR E. RAINEY INSTITUTE	651	1523 EAST 55TH STREET CLEVELAND OH 44103	647.63
ELIZA GRANT CENTER	1065	7201 WAKE PARK AVE. CLEVELAND OH 44103	500.00
EMANEL EDUCATION FOR HUNGARIAN CULTURE	2724	97-45 CLENS ELVE. 4614 REGG PARK NY 11234	100.00
ENCUMBRANT FOR DEMOCRACY IN EASTERN EUROPE	2823	49 WEST 45TH ST #1100 NEW YORK NY 10036	1,750.00
ENSEMBLE THEATRE	1646	3130 MAYFIELD RD. CLEVELAND OH 44131	200.00
ENVIRONMENTAL DEFENSE FUND, INC.	1426	1875 COMPLEXTION AV. NW WASHINGTON DC 20005	1,347.83
EPILEPSY FOUNDATION OF NORTHEAST OHIO	581	2800 EUCLID AVENUE SUITE 450 CLEVELAND OH 44115	1,000.00
ERIZON FOUNDATION, INC.	778	160 BUCKINGHAM #1000 NEW YORK NY 10036	4,830.00
EXPERIENS INC.	2137	151 WEST 26TH ST NEW YORK NY 10001	20,000.00
F.P.C. FOCUSING CORPORATION	1643	2520 NCELE RD CLEVELAND OH 44122	250.00
FACING HISTORY AND OURSELVES NATIONAL FOUNDATION, INC.	4025	16 FURC RD BROOKLINE MA 02146	1,000.00
FACIAL LOCK AT THE MIDDLE EAST	762	P.C. BOX 550359 SAN FRANCISCO CA 94155	360.00
FAIRHILL INSTITUTE FOR THE ELDERLY	2529	12200 FAIRHILL RD CLEVELAND OH 44132	400.00

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION

PHONE

ADDRESS

YTD GRANTS

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	PHONE	ADDRESS	YTD GRANTS
FAIRBANKS MCNEESSER ASSOCIATION	4329	3380 FAIRBANKS BLVD CLEVELAND	800.00
FAIRBANKS TEMPLE	159	2373 FAIRBANKS BLVD CLEVELAND	263,601.85
FAIRVIEW EDUCATION	1358	1801 LEFAY AVE. CLEVELAND	300.00
FAPICCS EDUCATION	1211	7049 SUPERIOR AVE CLEVELAND	750.00
FARMWORKER INSTITUTE FOR EDUCATION AND LEADERSHIP DEVELOPMENT	4275	FC BOX 62, LT P22 KEENE	100.00
FEDERATION FOR COMMUNITY PLANNING	200	ROCKEFELLER BLDG. 614 SUPERIOR AVE NW ASCC CLEVELAND	100.00
FEDERATION OF RECONSTRUCTIONIST CONGREGATIONS AND PARISH	4323	270 W 85TH ST NEW YORK	100.00
FILM CLESSEY, INC.	4424	2030 W 51 NH SUITE 400 NEW YORK	10,000.00
FLORENCE ATLANTIC UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC.	3281	777 GLACES ROAD CLEVELAND	250.00
FLORENCE DISTRICT 10 LITTLE LEAGUE BASEBALL, INC.	3764	5024 W 57 DRIVE CENTRAL SPINNS	1,000.00
FLORENCE INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION, INC.	4237	1001 WASHINGTON AVE P14PI BEACH	100.00
FLORENCE WEST COAST SYMPHONY, INC.	2281	709 N. TAMMARA TRAIL SARASOTA	4,500.00
FCCC ALLERGY INITIATIVE, INC.	4334	250 WEST 57TH ST SUITE 2217 NEW YORK	100.00
FOR THE CHILDREN	4426	3615 SUPERIOR AVE ELEC 31 ELEC 31 FL CLEVELAND	5,000.00

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION NUMBER ADDRESS YTD GRANTS

FEDERATION FOR CONSERVATIVE MESORIT ULCAISM IN ISRAEL	1853	6225 BELCEST RD SUITE 305 Plyattsville	2,250.00
FEDERATION FOR JEWISH PHILANTHROPIES, INC.	4459	1918 LIBERTY BANK BLDG BUFFALO	500.00
FEDERATION FOR SPINE RESEARCH AND EDUCATION	3481	2074 ABINGTON RD CLEVELAND	10,000.00
FEDERATION FOR MEDICINE MERCY AND SHARING	3810	201 N HILL ST SUITE 201 ASPER	750.00
FEDERATION OF THE AMERICAN SOCIETY OF ASSOCIATION EXECUTIVES	4318	1575 I STREET NW WASHINGTON	250.00
FREE MEDICAL CLINIC OF GREATER CLEVELAND	208	12201 ECLIC AVENUE CLEVELAND	10,250.00
FREYMAN'S GREEK CHARITIES FOUNDATION, INC.	3098	13495 TURBENT CR PALM BEACH GARDENS FL 33410	500.00
FRESH AIR FUND	2965	1040 AVE OF THE AMERICAS NEW YORK	200.00
FRIENDS OF EACHWOOD LIBRARY, INC.	723	25501 STARKER ECULEVARE EACHWOOD	300.00
FRIENDS OF SABA CONSERVATION EDUCATION	3181	506 TIFFANY TRAILS RICHMOND	100.00
FRIENDS OF SHAKER SQUARE, INC.	211	13125 STARKER SQUARE Rd 102 CLEVELAND	250.00
FRIENDS OF THE CLEVELAND PUBLIC LIBRARY, INC.	1531	325 SUPERIOR AVE. CLEVELAND	1,650.00
FRIENDS OF THE CLEVELAND SCHOOL OF THE ARTS	1957	2064 STEARNS PL. CLEVELAND	34,450.00
FRIENDS OF THE EARTH	2522	1025 VERNON AVE NW WASHINGTON	250.00

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION NUPB ACCESS YTC GRANTS

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NUPB	ACCESS	YTC GRANTS
FRIENDS OF THE ISRAEL DEFENSE FORCES	1285	21 WEST 28TH STREET 5TH FLOOR NEW YORK	250.00
FT WAYNE PHILHARMONIC ORCHESTRA, INC.	4447	2340 FAIRFIELD AVE FT WAYNE	1,000.00
FUND FOR THE FUTURE OF SHAKER HEIGHTS	1504	3400 LEE BL. SHAKER HEIGHTS	700.00
FUNDERS CONCEPTEC ABOUT AIDS, INC.	4224	50 EAST 42ND ST 19 FL NEW YORK	100.00
GALLER SCHOOL AT MIDDLEBURY	3504	19 SPANCON ST MIDDLEBURY	3,500.00
GARDEN CONSERVANCY	2618	8CX 219, ALEANY FCST BL. CCLC SFFINC	1,100.00
CATEWAYS HOSPITAL AND MENTAL HEALTH CENTER	4216	216 S. LAKE ST LOS ANGELES	1,000.00
GAUGA COUNTY HUMAN SOCIETY	1679	FC ECX 116 MCELTY	200.00
GEALGA COUNTY LIBRARY FOUNDATION	3680	121 SCUIT ST CHARCA	5,500.00
GENERAL ISRAEL CRIPANS HOME FOR GIRLS JERUSALEM, INC.	215	FC ECX 2147 NEW YORK	100.00
GEORGE WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY	216	PHILLIPS HALL 212 WASHINGTON	10,000.00
GEORGETOWN UNIVERSITY	1501	WASHINGTON	100.00
GESHER EDUCATION, INC.	217	421 SEVENTH AVE. NEW YORK	160.00
GESTALT INSTITUTE OF CLEVELAND, INC.	3669	1586 HAZEL CR CLEVELAND	565.00
CILICUR ACADEMY	658	SCR CENTER BLDG CATES WILLS	400.00

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION

ADDR

ADDRESS

YTD GRANTS

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	ADDR	ADDRESS	YTD GRANTS
GLOBAL ISSUES RESOURCE CENTER	1918	4250 RICHMOND RD. CLEVELAND	150.00
CLEVELAND CENTERS OF GREATER CLEVELAND	219	12200 FAIRHILL RD. CLEVELAND	6,500.00
CLEVELAND INDUSTRIES OF CLEVELAND	222	2295 EAST 25TH STREET CLEVELAND	500.00
GRANT BECKSTRAND CANCER FOUNDATION	4210	FC BOX 15451 LINC EFFCT	25,000.00
GREAT LAKES MUSEUM OF SCIENCE, ENVIRONMENT AND TECHNOLOGY	3292	601 ERISSIDE CLEVELAND	1,550.00
GREAT LAKES THEATER FESTIVAL	230	BURLEY BUILDING, 2250 1501 EURLIE AVE CLEVELAND	8,157.63
GREATER CHICAGO FOOD DEPOSITORY	4311	4501 S TRIFF CHICAGO	500.00
GREATER CLEVELAND BEEBALL LEAGUE	4233	FC BOX 55504 CLEVELAND	100.00
GREATER CLEVELAND COMMUNITY SHARES	2004	3130 MAYFIELD RD CLEVELAND	7,250.00
GREATER CLEVELAND HABITAT FOR HUMANITY INC.	1342	6920 UNION AVE CLEVELAND	1,000.00
GREATER CLEVELAND ROUNDTABLE	1356	1111 CHESTER AVE CLEVELAND	3,000.00
GREATER LITTLE ZION BAPTIST CHURCH	3084	5090 QUEENS HCCO CR BURKE	250.00
GREATER MIAMI JEWISH FEDERATION	229	4200 EISENHART EGLEVARC MIAMI	525,000.00
GREATER WASHINGTON EDUCATIONAL TELECOMMUNICATIONS ASSOCIATION INC.	2234	3700 S FURR WILE BLVD CR ARLINGTON	100.00
GREEN PAC SYMPOSIUM	231	2437 GREEN FCR CLEVELAND	6,565.50

REPORT NAME - PHECF3LT
 REPORT DATE - 07/08/99

ENDOWMENT/PHILANTHROPIC SYSTEM
 CLEVELAND FEDERATION
 GRANTS FROM PHILANTHROPIC FUNDS
 FROM 07/01/98 TO 03/31/99

PAGE 34

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NUPI	ADDRESS	YTD GRANTS
GREENFACE INTERNATIONAL, INC.	1619	1436 U. ST. N.W. WASHINGTON, DC 20005	\$ 350.00
GRUNCWGRKS DANCE THEATER	4300	FC BOX 18191 CLEVELAND, OH 44118	\$ 13,000.00
GUIDE DOG FOUNDATION FOR THE BLIND, INC.	2759	371 E. JERICHO TURNPIKE SPITFICHN, NY 11167	\$ 200.00
HABITAT FOR HUMANITY CHAGRIN FALLS PARK, INC.	3110	BOX 542 CHAGRIN FALLS, OH 44022	\$ 100.00
HABITAT FOR HUMANITY INTERNATIONAL, INC.	681	121 HABITAT ST APEFICUS, GA 31705	\$ 150.00
HALAR BALS YAAKCV, INC.	4331	351 LAWRENCE AVE LAKEWOOD, NJ 08701	\$ 1,100.00
HACASSAH THE WOMEN'S ZIONIST ORGANIZATION	725	50 WEST 58TH STREET NEW YORK, NY 10015	\$ 300.00
HACASSAH THE WOMENS ZIONIST ORGANIZATION	575	233 TANCYER ROAD PALM BEACH, FL 33460	\$ 800.00
HACASSAH THE WOMENS ZIONIST ORGANIZATION OF AMERICA, INC.	232	23980 CHAGRIN BLVD CLEVELAND, OH 44122	\$ 6,295.72
HAMILTON COLLEGE TRUSTEES	2005	HAMILTON COLLEGE CLINTON, NY 13323	\$ 100.00
HARRA PERKINS SCHOOL	233	2084 CCFWELL ROAD CLEVELAND, OH 44106	\$ 2,600.00
HARRY S. TRUMAN LIBRARY INSTITUTE FOR NATIONAL AND INTL AFFAIRS	4342	500 WEST US HIGHWAY 24 INDEPENDENCE, NC 28750	\$ 1,000.00
HARVARD BUSINESS SCHOOL FUND	805	SCLEIERS FIELD ROSTON, MA 02123	\$ 2,500.00
HARVARD COLLEGE FUND	234	UNIVERSITY PLACE 124 MT AUBURN ST. CAMBRIDGE, MA 02138	\$ 3,200.00
HARVARD LAW SCHOOL ASSOCIATION	236	CAMBRIDGE CAMBRIDGE, MA 02138	\$ 500.00

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION NAME ADDRESS YTD GRANTS

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NAME	ADDRESS	YTD GRANTS
HARVARD UNIVERSITY	237	124 MT. AUBURN STREET RECEIVING SECRETARY CAMBRIDGE MA 02138	7,000.00
HARVARD/PESLAKE SCHOL	3483	REVELLCPENT OFFICE 700 NORTH FAHNS RD LOS ANGELES CA 90017	2,500.00
HATTAWAY BROWN SCHOL	240	19600 HERTZ PARK SCULLEVAE CLEVELAND OH 44122	16,675.00
HATTIE LABLAP FOUNDATION	306	9772 CLEVELAND BOULEVARD WAINUVA OH 44215	4,500.00
HAWKEN SCHOL	241	12465 COUNTY LINE RD FC BOX 6002 GATES MILLS OH 44040	35,183.00
HAZLETON FOUNDATION	928	P.O. BOX 11 CENTER CITY MN 55012	500.00
HEALTH HILL HOSPITAL FOR CONVALESCENT CHILDREN	1854	2801 W LUTHER KING JR DR CLEVELAND OH 44104	1,700.00
HEATHER HILL, INC.	556	12340 BASS LAKE ROAD CLEVELAND OH 44024	100.00
HEBREW ACADEMY FOR SPECIAL CHILDREN INC	3135	1311 55TH ST. BROCKLYN NY 11215	1,000.00
HEBREW ACADEMY OF CLEVELAND	243	1860 SC. TAYLOR RD. CLEVELAND OH 44118	165,105.00
HEBREW FREE LAM ASSOCIATION	244	2245 WARRENSVILLE CENTER #207 CLEVELAND OH 44118	4,462.00
HEBREW UNION COLLEGE JEWISH INSTITUTE OF RELIGION	1048	3101 CLIFTON AVE. CINCINNATI OH 45220	500.00
HEIGHTS JEWISH CENTER	247	14270 CEDAR ROAD UNIVERSITY HEIGHTS OH 44121	557.83
HEIGHTS PARENT CENTER	1627	14760 SUFFRIDGE ROAD CLEVELAND OH 44118	1,500.00

REPORT NAME - PEFCBLT	GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NUFB	ACCESS	YIC GRANTS
HEIGHTS SYNAGOGUE	3505 MAYFIELD RD CLEVELAND	4319	OF 4411E	1,325.00
SELF EDUCATION, INC.	3622 PROSPECT AVE EAST DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT CLEVELAND	1678	OF 4411E	12,550.00
PEFCBLT FOUNDATION	FC BOX 101810 DENVER	4427	CD 6225C	10,000.00
HEPATITIS EDUCATION INTERNATIONAL, INC.	30 SUNRISE TERRACE CEAR GROVE	4234	NJ 37CC5	150.00
HERITAGE HOUSE INC.	P.O. BOX 45 KENTLAND	2538	NJ 07033	100.00
HEPSEY MENTESSORI SCHOOL	10229 PICURY RD. CHICAGO ILL	1671	OF 4417J	1,000.00
HILLET ACADEMY OF PITTSBURGH	5685 EEECON ST PITTSBURGH	3822	PA 15217	100.00
HILLET EDUCATIONAL FOR JEWISH CAMPLS LIFE	1640 FICE ISLANC AVE NW WASHINGTON	4167	CC 20036	200.00
HILLET EDUCATION OF NEW ORLEANS, INC.	912 EEECONWAY NEW ORLEANS	4362	LA 7011E	100.00
HILLET EDUCATION OF OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY	46 EAST 16TH AVE COLUMBUS	2874	OF 4320J	150.00
HIRAN COLLEGE ADMINISTRATION	HIRAN HIRAN	253	OF 44234	57,500.00
HIRAN HOUSE	33775 HIRAN TRAIL CARGRAV FALLS	254	OF 44023	2,890.00
HITCHCOCK HOUSE	1227 ANSEL RD CLEVELAND	1535	OF 441CE	650.00
HILLEN RECETURN	9500 SERRAY BLVD KIRTLAND	255	OF 44054	5,350.00
FELCCARST MEMORIAL COMMITTEE, INC.	1933-45 WERLICH AVI MIAMI BEACH	2799	FL 33135	50,000.00

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION AUPB ADDRESS YTD GRANTS

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	AUPB	ADDRESS	YTD GRANTS
POLY FAMILY HOME	598	6707 STATE ROAD CLEVELAND	450.00
HOME SAFE OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, INC.	4452	2840 SIXTH AVE SC LAKE MICH	500.00
MCFEELL INN	3347	5637 STATE RTE 524 P.O. BOX 35 PESCECUTIA	14,725.00
POSTICE OF THE WESTERN RESERVE	1749	300 EAST 185 ST CLEVELAND	550.00
FUSE EAR INSTITUTE	2149	2100 WEST 3RD ST 5TH FL LOS ANGELES	500.00
WRCF FOUNDATION	3504	1101 14TH ST NW SUITE 200 WASHINGTON	37,500.00
HUMAN SOCIETY OF THE UNITED STATES	1883	2100 L STREET NW WASHINGTON	300.00
FUNGER NETWORK OF GREATER CLEVELAND	3578	614 WEST SUPERIOR AVE SUITE 744 CLEVELAND	1,250.00
WASHINGTON DISEASE SOCIETY OF AMERICA	2269	140 WEST 22ND STREET 6TH FL NEW YORK	100.00
HYMAN BEACH PEREM ACADEMY, INC.	959	5801 WEST 115TH ST. CLEVELAND PARK	100.00
I KACH I CAN	3586	270 EAST STATE ST CLEVENS	3,477.20
INDEPENDENT FILMS, INC.	3683	110 EAST PALM SUITE 102 ASPEN	13,425.00
INDIANA UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION	3413	P.O. BOX 2256 ELCUMMINCTON	2,000.00
INDIANAPOLIS PEREM CONGREGATION	1747	6501 N. PEPPIAN STREET INDIANAPOLIS	500.00

ENDCUMENT/PHILANTHROPIC SYSTEM
 CLEVELAND FEDERATION
 GRANTS FRCP PHILANTHROPIC FUNDS
 FROM 07/01/98 TO 03/31/99

YTD GRANTS

GRANT NAME - PEGE2LT	GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NUMB	ADDRESS	YTD GRANTS
INFANT FORMULA ACTION ALLIANCE	256 PANTHER STREET ECSTON MA 02113	2042		\$ 250,000.00
INNOVATIVE RESOURCES MANAGEMENT	2421 PENNSYLVANIA AVE NW WASHINGTON	4295		\$ 5,000.00
INSTITUTE FOR CONTEMPORARY ART P.O. 1 MUSEUM, INC.	22-25 JACKSON AVE AT 46 AVE LONG ISLAND NY 11101	4263		\$ 5,000.00
INSTITUTE FOR THE ADVANCEMENT OF EDUCATION IN JAFFA, INC.	171-06 76TH AVE FLUSHING	3675		\$ 100.00
INTERCITY COUNCIL OF GREATER CLEVELAND	2230 EUCLID AVENUE CLEVELAND OH 44115	227		\$ 5,235.15
INTERLACE	CENTER FOR THE ARTS INTERLACE MI 48443	1669		\$ 3,000.00
INTERNATIONAL CAMPAIGN FOR TIBET	1735 EYE STREET, NW, 4115 WASHINGTON	2994		\$ 100.00
INTERNATIONAL CENTER FOR THE PRESERVATION OF WILD ANIMALS, INC.	1400 INTERNATIONAL RD CUMBERLAND CT 03732	3150		\$ 1,000.00
INTERNATIONAL CENTER OF PHOTOGRAPHY	1130 FIFTH AVE NEW YORK NY 10126	4417		\$ 5,000.00
INTERNATIONAL FUND FOR ANIMAL WELFARE	F C BOX 57105 WASHINGTON	3706		\$ 200.00
INTERNATIONAL INSIGHT, INC.	1200 18TH ST NW SUITE 205 WASHINGTON	4239		\$ 10,000.00
INTERNATIONAL PLANNED PARENTHOOD FEDERATION WESTERN HEMISPHERE	120 WALL ST 9TH FL NEW YORK NY 10003	3684		\$ 4,000.00
INTERNATIONAL RESCUE COMMITTEE, INC.	122 EAST 42ND ST. NEW YORK NY 10116	259		\$ 5,200.00
INTERNS FOR PEACE, INC.	475 RIVERSIDE CR 16TH FL NEW YORK NY 10115	1618		\$ 200,000.00

ENDOCRINAL/PHILADELPHIC SYSTEM
 CLEVELAND RECEIPTING
 GRANTS FROM PHILADELPHIC FUNDS
 FROM 07/01/98 TO 03/31/99

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION

ALPH

ADDRESS

YTD GRANTS

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	ALPH	ADDRESS	YTD GRANTS
INTEACASTAL HEALTH EDUCATION	3186	P.C. BOX 3565 WEST FALL BEACH FL 33402	\$,075.00
IRVING SIGNE EDUCATION	4339	1750 EURLIE AVE. CLEVELAND OH 44115	\$,510,000.00
ISLE RYALE NATURAL HISTORY ASSOCIATION	3607	800 E. LAKEVIEW CR MICHIGAN	100.00
ISRAEL CHILDREN'S CENTERS	1464	2151 N. HILLSIDE BLVD SUITE 100 CLEVELAND OH 44115	507,000.00
ISSA EDUCATION	3293	7373 NORTH LINCOLN AVE CHICAGO IL 60644	15,000.00
JAMES PENICK ALLIANCE	2346	209 N. ELLIOTT ST APRILIA	100.00
JERUSALEM BAPTIST CHURCH	2750	366 PENNELL AVE, NE CANON	250.00
JERUSALEM EDUCATION, INC.	264	60 EAST 42ND ST. #1534 NEW YORK NY 10018	100.00
JESSE CHENS EDUCATION, INC.	4223	401 N. RICHMOND AVE CHICAGO IL 60611	250.00
JEWISH ASSOCIATION FOR RESIDENTIAL CARE	4411	16544 JENNINGS CR CLEVELAND OH 44115	300.00
JEWISH RIG BROTHER/ERIC SISTER ASSOCIATION	275	2201 RICHMOND CLEVELAND CLEVELAND OH 44115	1,175.00
JEWISH BEALLE INSTITUTE OF AMERICA, INC.	266	110 EAST 30TH STREET NEW YORK NY 10017	100.00
JEWISH CENTER FOR SPECIAL EDUCATION	2343	4312 19TH AVE. LITTLETON CO 80120	260.00
JEWISH CENTER OF THE HAMPTONS	3914	44 WOODS LANE EAST HAMPTON NY 11937	1,200.00

ENDORSEMENT/FULL/PARTIAL SYSTEM
CLEVELAND TELEPHONE
GRANTS TRUST FUND/TELEPHONE
TRCK 01/01/56 TO 03/31/59

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION

ALPHA

ADDRESS

YIC GRANTS

JEWISH CHALTAUCVA SOCIETY

450

838 FIFTH AVENUE
NEW YORK

NY 10022

JEWISH COMMUNITY CENTER

269

2601 SOUTH MCCLELLAN BLVD
CLEVELAND

OH 44122

JEWISH COMMUNITY CENTER OF GREATER WASHINGTON

4419

6125 PORTER ST
COCKVILLE

MD 20852

JEWISH OPPORTUNITY FEDERATION OF SAN FRANCISCO, THE PENINSULA

1611

121 SIEMAR STREET
SAN FRANCISCO

CA 94133

JEWISH COUNCIL FOR PUBLIC AFFAIRS

4292

443 PARK AVE SUITE
NEW YORK

NY 10017

JEWISH DAY NURSERY CHILD CARE CENTER

273

2201 FIFTH AVE SUITE
CLEVELAND

OH 44118

JEWISH DAY SCHOOL ASSOC SLOMON SCHECHTER DAY SCHOOL

432

1910 WILSON BLVD
CLEVELAND

OH 44122

51,546.00

130.00

1,100.00

10,000.00

500.00

60,505.61

500.00

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NUMB	ADDRESS	YIC GRANTS
JEWISH EDUCATION CENTER OF CLEVELAND	100	2030 SCOTT TAYLOR ROAD CLEVELAND OHIO 44115	67,800.00
JEWISH FAMILY AND CHILDRENS SERVICE OF PALM BEACH COUNTY INC	2215	4605 COMMUNITY DRIVE WEST PALM BEACH	500.00
JEWISH FAMILY SERVICE ASSOCIATION	275	2060 S. TAYLOR ROAD CLEVELAND	20,500.00
JEWISH FAMILY SERVICE OF GREATER ALBQUERQUE, INC.	4412	5050 ELIZABETH LANE NE ALBUQUERQUE	1,000.00
JEWISH FAMILY SERVICE OF SARASOTA-MANATEE, INC.	3412	1970 MAIN ST, 4TH FL SARASOTA	410.00
JEWISH FEDERATION OF AUSTIN	3569	11713 JULLYVILLE ROAD AUSTIN	20,000.00
JEWISH FEDERATION OF BRCHARD COUNTY, INC.	282	8950 N. CARLTON PARK BLVD FORT LAUDERDALE	400.00
JEWISH FEDERATION OF COLLIER COUNTY	2550	1250 TAHITI TRAIL NORTH #304 C NAFLES	6,600.00
JEWISH FEDERATION OF GREATER CAYTON	780	4501 CENTINER ROAD CAYTON	500.00
JEWISH FEDERATION OF GREATER PHOENIX	1374	32 WEST COLUMBIA ST. #200 PHOENIX	6,500.00
JEWISH FEDERATION OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, INC.	281	4601 COMMUNITY DRIVE WEST PALM BEACH	113,450.00
JEWISH FEDERATION OF PALM SPRINGS AND DESERT AREA	291	255 NORTH EL CIELO ROAD PALM SPRINGS	1,000.00
JEWISH FEDERATION OF PINELLAS COUNTY INC.	2136	12191 STARKEY ROAD, 1E LIPCC	15,700.00
JEWISH FEDERATION OF THE SACRAMENTO REGION	4050	2351 WYCA WAY SACRAMENTO	1,000.00
JEWISH FEDERATION-COUNCIL OF GREATER LOS ANGELES	277	6505 WILSHIRE ECLIFF ROAD LOS ANGELES	27,100.00

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	PLPD	ADDRESS	YTD GRANTS
JEWISH GEN INC.	4060	12 GREENWAY PLZZ #1100 HCUSTON TX 77044	100.00
JEWISH GENERALGY SOCIETY OF CLEVELAND	3741	996 EASTLAWN DR CLEVELAND OH 44143	120.00
JEWISH HOME FOR THE AGED OF LOS ANGELES	525	7150 TAPPA AVE RESIDA CA 91335	5,000.00
JEWISH INSTITUTE FOR NATIONAL SECURITY AFFAIRS	2052	1717 K ST. N. W. #300 WASHINGTON DC 20005	200.00
JEWISH LABOR COMMITTEE	620	25 EAST 21 STREET NEW YORK NY 10010	100.00
JEWISH LEARNING CONNECTION	1378	2120 S. GREEN RD CLEVELAND OH 44121	12,750.00
JEWISH NATIONAL FUND	285	24100 CLEVELAND BLVD. CLEVELAND OH 44122	50,652.15
JEWISH NATIONAL FUND	286	42 EAST 65TH STREET NEW YORK NY 10021	613.00
JEWISH CATIMOD FEMINIST ALLIANCE, INC.	4370	459 CLEVELAND AVE SUITE 325 NEW YORK NY 10024	100.00
JEWISH RENAISSANCE CENTER	4101	441 WEST END AVE NEW YORK NY 10024	400.00
JEWISH SOCIAL SERVICE AGENCY	1719	6123 HORTON RD. KCKVILLE MO 64085	3,500.00
JEWISH THEOLOGICAL SEMINARY OF AMERICA	289	3080 BROADWAY NEW YORK NY 10027	5,206.00
JEWISH WAR VETERANS OF THE UNITED STATES	773	1811 F STREET, N.W. WASHINGTON DC 20005	100.00
JEWISH WOMEN INTERNATIONAL	555	3645 WASHINGTONVILLE CIR #235 CLEVELAND OH 44122	100.00

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION

ALPHA

ADDRESS

YTD GRANTS

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	ALPHA	ADDRESS	YTD GRANTS
JENIST MCMEN'S ARCHIVE, INC.	4428	68 FAYETTE ST SPRINGFIELD MA 02146	100.00
JCFR CAPITAL UNIVERSITY	253	20700 NORTH PARK BLVD CLEVELAND	41,250.00
ALVA F. KENNEDY CENTER FOR THE PERFORMING ARTS	4205	1701 PENNSYLVANIA AVE, NW WASHINGTON	1,132.00
JCFR THOMAS DYE SCHOOL	3046	11414 CLEVELAND RD. LCS ANGLES	2,100.00
JCFRNS HOKINS UNIVERSITY	1763	600 NORTH WILFIE STREET FALLS CHURCH VA 22024	5,000.00
JOSEPH L. KRUSE GERIATRIC CENTER	920	4847 FREE CLYBURN DRIVE WEST PALM BEACH FL 33411	500.00
JUSCAN RETIREMENT COMMUNITY	1250	2181 APPELLE RD. CLEVELAND	500.00
JULIE BILLIART SCHOOL	900	4982 CLYBURN RD. LYNCHBURG	201,000.00
JULIUS STUBERG AUDITIONS, INC.	4358	RCX 50107 KALAMAZOO	1,000.00
JUNICE ACHEMENT, INC.	255	850 EUCLEID AVE #1315 CLEVELAND	2,110.00
JUNICE LEVINE OF CLEVELAND, INC.	256	10819 WINDCLIFF RD CLEVELAND	400.00
JUVENILE DIABETES FOUNDATION	807	4500 HICKSIELE RD. SUITE 420 CLEVELAND	4,700.00
JUVENILE DIABETES FOUNDATION	4440	85 MARCUS BLVD HUNTSVILLE	1,300.00
JUVENILE DIABETES FOUNDATION INTERNATIONAL	1459	120 WALK ST, 15TH FL NEW YORK	200.00
JUVENILE FUNDS	1017	COLUMBIA CITY JUVENILE CRT EAST 22ND & CEDAR AVENUE CLEVELAND	100.00

ENDOWMENT/PHILANTHROPIC SYSTEM
 CLEVELAND RECEIPTS
 GRANTS FROM PHILANTHROPIC FUNDS
 FROM 07/01/98 TO 03/31/99

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION

ALPH

ADDRESS

YTC GRANTS

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	ALPH	ADDRESS	YTC GRANTS
KAROLAN LEARNING CENTER	4212	7086 BEECHCROFT WAY ECCA RAICH FL 33422	5,000.00
KACRIST FOUNDATION	3670	3496 GENCREEPER HC CLEVELAND	360.00
KAFMU FOCUS	300	2355 EAST 89TH STREET CLEVELAND	450.00
KCET COMMUNITY TELEVISION OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA	456	F.C. EX 46502E ESCAPIC	100.00
KENT STATE UNIV	714	DEPT OF JEWELRY STUDIES 314 SATTLEFIELD HALL KENT	200.00
KENT STATE UNIVERSITY	1283	F.C. EX 5150 KENT	120.00
KENT STATE UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION	806	F.C. EX 5150 KENT	35,800.00
KEREN CO, INC.	302	350 SEVENTH AVE A200 NEW YORK NY 10011	1,000.00
KEREN YEPESHUA VIVISRELL, INC.	2773	222 14TH ST. LAKELAND	54,000.00
KIRBY FOUNDATION OF OHIO, INC.	303	1370 WEST 6TH ST. A,01 CLEVELAND	2,500.00
KICS' STUFF FOUNDATION, INC.	3245	F.C. EX 1057C ASPER	31,750.00
KIFF, INC.	4267	F.C. EX 740427 FOUNTCN	100.00
KIKAVIS FOUNDATION OF CLEVELAND, INC.	3472	140 PUBLIC SQUARE SUITE 507 CLEVELAND	100.00
KASSET YERUSA, INC.	304	1218 EAST 12TH ST HICKORY	450.00
KINCANA PAPER, INC.	1251	5755 WANDER BOLT INDEPENDENCE TOWER A22 INDEPENDENCE	500.00

ENDOWMENT/PHILANTHROPIC SYSTEM
 CLEVELAND FEDERATION
 GRANTS FROM PHILANTHROPIC FUNDS
 FROM 07/01/58 TO 03/31/59

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION

NUMBER

ADDRESS

YTD GRANTS

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NUMBER	ADDRESS	YTD GRANTS
KILLEB BNEI YESHIVAS	3450	2402 AVE P BROOKLYN NY 11225	18,500.00
KILLEB LE BRANCH-IN YAC CHAIM MORDECHAI	3628	2573 LAFAYETTE RD CLEVELAND	1,436.00
LAKWOOD CREEPER SCHOOL	1778	1210 CLIFTON AVE FC BOX 638 LAKWOOD NJ 08701	350.00
LAKWOOD HOSPITAL FOUNDATION	556	1458 ELLER AVENUE P.O. BOX 0716 LAKWOOD	1,000.00
LAKWOOD SCHOOL CORPORATION	4343	6101 WILSON LN EATON	500.00
LUREL SCHOOL	307	CHE LYNAM CIRCLE SPAKER HEIGHTS	13,200.00
LARENCE GENERAL HOSPITAL FOUNDATION, INC.	3151	1 GENERAL STREET LARENCE MA 01842	200.00
LARENCE SCHOOL	1001	1551 E. WALLINGS ROAD BROOKVIEW HTS. OH 44147	1,350.00
LARENCEVILLE SCHOOL	4222	FC BOX 6125 LAKENHILL NJ 08848	5,000.00
LEAGUE OF WOMEN VOTERS OF CLEVELAND EDUCATIONAL FUND, INC.	1670	2217 EAST 9TH ST. A302 CLEVELAND	1,200.00
LEGAL AID SOCIETY OF CLEVELAND	2844	1223 WEST 6TH ST. CLEVELAND	100.00
LEONARD AND SUSAN FUCHS BET SEFER WIZRACHI	658	2301 FENHICK RD. UNIVERSITY HTS. OH 44118	17,010.00
LEUKEMIA SOCIETY OF AMERICA INC NORTHERN OHIO CHAPTER	209	20525 CENTER RICE RD CLEVELAND	100.00
LIFE DIRECTIONS, INC.	2533	15442 ST. CLAIR CLEVELAND	100.00
LIGHT OF HEARTS VILLA	3351	283 UNION ST BROOKLYN	125.00

REFRNT NAME - PEECEALY	GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	ALPE	ADDRESS	TYPE GRANTS
LINDSAY RCHEN WEAK FCUCATION	LINDSAY CENTER FOR THE PERFORMING ARTS, INC.	4317	70 LINCOLN CENTER PLAZA NEW YCRK NY 10023	\$ 24,445.00
LITKING EMPLOYMENT, ABILITIES & POTENTIAL		1515	1468 WEST 25TH STREET CLEVELAND	\$ 100.00
LITERATURE FOR ALL CF US		4040	2010 CECRY AVE EVAASTCN	\$ 100.00
LITTLE SISTERS OF THE PCCR		4171	4291 RICHMOND RC CLEVELAND	\$ 250.00
LONG TERM CARE CHEUGSMAN		4432	1468 W. 25TH ST CLEVELAND	\$ 250.00
LORAIN CCUNY CCMPUNITY CCLLEGE FCUCATION INC.		1446	1005 NC. AEEE RC. ELYFA	\$ 3,000.00
LCS ANGELES HERREN HIGH SCPCCL		1932	5900 SEFULVECA ELYC #306	\$ 200.00
LNDY FCUCATION		4229	1301 NCFR SPERR ELYC #1105 ENVER	\$ 15,000.00
LUFUS FCUNATION CF AMERICA, INC., GREATER CLEVELAND CHAPTER		4359	8879 BRECKSVILLE RC CLEVELAND	\$ 250.00
LITHERAN RETRCPCLITAN MINISTRY ASSOCIATION OF GREATER CLEVELAND		1015	1468 W. 25TH ST CLEVELAND	\$ 1,250.00
LYRIC CEEFA CLEVELAND		365	P.C. RCX 06158 CLEVELAND	\$ 550.00
MAKE-A-WISH CF NGRTEAST OHIO, INC.		1408	24100 CHACHIN ELYC SUITE 125 CLEVELAND	\$ 6,000.00
PALACHI FCUSE INC		2220	2810 CLIVTON AVE CLEVELAND	\$ 500.00

PERCENT NAME - PERCENT	GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	TYPE	ADDRESS	1710 GRANTS
WANTICCA, INC.		4379	PC ECX 245 GARFISON NY 10524	250.00
PARCH CE LINES BIRTH DEFECTS FOUNDATION		558	5700 LCMERCC CTR. #218 CLEVELAND	800.00
MARY MOUNT HOSPITAL		1889	12300 MCCRAKEN RD. CLEVELAND	1,600.00
PATAN B. SAASER, INC.		2119	3528 ELAHCHE AVE. CLEVELAND	26,335.00
PATCO, INC.		1817	12401 WILSHIRE BLVD. #303 LOS ANGELES	2,150.00
PROVERA FAMILY FOUNDATION		4345	PC ECX 3293 WASHINGTON	100.00
REGINA L. HERRA		4387	168 MAPLE AVENUE MANSEY NY 10552	360.00
MEMORIAL SLCAN KETTERING CANCER CENTER		318	1275 YCFK AVENUE BOX E NEW YORK NY 10022	1,600.00
MEMPHIS JEWISH FEDERATION		3441	6560 PEARL AVE MEMPHIS TN 38138	5,100.00
RENCRAFT PARK FOUNDATION		320	27100 GEGAN ROAD CLEVELAND	613,605.15
MENTAL HEALTH REHABILITATION AND RESEARCH, INC.		321	11101 WACONLIA DRIVE CLEVELAND	300.00
PERICIA HEALTH FOUNDATION		3429	17325 ELCLIC AVE 4TH FL CLEVELAND	7,666.66
PERICIA HILLCREST HOSPITAL		1217	6780 PAYFIELD RD CLEVELAND	500.00
RESVITA TIFERET JERUSALEM		1033	141-7 EAST FREEMAN NEW YORK NY 10022	500.00

REPORT NAME - PHECFBLT
 REPORT DATE - 07/08/99

ENDOWMENT/PHILANTHROPIC SYSTEM
 CLEVELAND FEDERATION
 GRANTS FROM PHILANTHROPIC FUNDS
 FROM 07/01/98 TO 03/31/99

PAGE 46

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NUMB	ADDRESS	YTC CRRNTS
METRO HEALTH FOUNDATION, INC.	180	2500 METROHEALTH CR CLEVELAND , OH 44109	\$ 1,750.00
METROPOLITAN MUSEUM OF ART	838	FIFTH AVE. & E2ND STREET NEW YORK , NY 10028	\$ 3,700.00
METROPOLITAN OPERA ASSOCIATION, INC.	325	LINCOLN CENTER NEW YORK , NY 10023	\$ 10,500.00
MIAMI UNIVERSITY	1252	MURSTEIN ALUMNI CTR 725 E CHESTNUT ST OXFORD , OH 43056	\$ 3,250.00
MICHAELS HOUSE, INC.	3974	10 N MAIN ST CHAGRIN FALLS , OH 44022	\$ 2,600.00
HIGHEST CAMP FABONIM A/K/A FABONIM CAMP TAYLOR	4418	1595 HIGHLAND HIGHLAND PARK , IL 60035	\$ 250.00
MONTFICORE FOUNDATION	332	CNE CAVIC N MYERS PARKWAY CLEVELAND , OH 44122	\$ 110,226.45
MERELAKE HILLS POLICE AND EMPLOYEES FOUNDATION	1091	3850 CHAGRIN FIVER ROAD MERELAKE HILLS , OH 44022	\$ 600.00
MORIAN SCHOOL OF ENGLEWOOD	3290	53 SCOTT WOODLAND ST ENGLEWOOD , NJ 07631	\$ 1,000.00
PGSDCS CFF PATROL	334	1508 WARRENSVILLE CENTER CLEVELAND PTS. , OH 44121	\$ 134,760.00
POTTERS AGAINST DRUNK DRIVERS OF CLEVELAND	3139	401 EUCLID AVENUE CLEVELAND , OH 44114	\$ 600.00
POTTERS AGAINST DRUNK DRIVING	1986	511 E JOHN CARPENTER FRKY #700 IRVING , TX 75062	\$ 200.00
MOUNT HOLYCKE COLLEGE ADMINISTRATION	335	SCOTT FALEY SCOTT FALEY , MA 01075	\$ 600.00
MOUNT SINAI MEDICAL CENTER, INC.	3417	CNE GUSTAVE L. LEVY PLACE BOX 1050 NEW YORK , NY 10026	\$ 15,550.00

ENDCPCNENT/PHILANTHROPIC SYSTEM
 CLEVELAND RECEPATION
 GRANIS FRCH PHILANTHROPIC FUNDS
 FRCH 07/01/98 TO 03/31/99

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	ATYPE	ACCESS	YTC GRANIS
MCUNT ZICA HEALTH SYSTEMS, INC.	4383	3330 CERRY ELVE SAN FRANCISCO	250.00
NS FOUNDATION FOR WOMEN	2053	120 WALL STREET 33RD FL NEW YORK	1,000.00
MT. SINAI HEALTH CARE FOUNDATION	337	1100 ECLLIE AVENUE CLEVELAND	300.00
MUSCULAR DYSTROPHY ASSOCIATION	579	3561 EAST SUBURSE CR. TUCSON	100.00
MUSCULAR DYSTROPHY ASSOCIATION, INC. NORTHWEST OHIO AFFILIATE	339	16600 W. SPRUCE ROAD SUITE 150 CLEVELAND	100.00
MUSEUM OF AFRICAN AMERICAN HISTORY, INC.	4274	PC BOX 1802 MAINTUCKET	1,000.00
MUSEUM OF CONTEMPORARY ART	2558	250 SCUIT GRANT AVE CALIFORNIA PLAZA LOS ANGELES	15,000.00
MUSEUM OF MODERN ART	1434	11 WEST 53RD STREET NEW YORK	12,160.00
MUSICAL ARTS ASSOCIATION	338	SEVERANCE HALL 11001 ECLLIE AVENUE CLEVELAND	226,222.66
PSYCHIS ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA, INC.	3856	1420 PURCH CRT PARRISCHENUEFC	600.00
NATIONAL USA	350	14055 CECAR ROAD ASSC CLEVELAND	3,570.00
MAINTUCKET ATTENEUM	4019	PC BOX 608 MAINTUCKET	10,000.00
NATIONAL AGRICGN RIGHTS ACTION LEAGUE OF CHIC ECLCATION FCIN.	122	760 EAST BECAT STREET CELLUMES	1,350.00
NATIONAL ALLIANCE FOR RESEARCH ON SCHIZOPHRENIA AND DEPRESSICH	2641	60 CUTLER WLL RC GREAT NECK	750.00

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION NUMBER ADDRESS YIC GRANTS

NATIONAL ALLIANCE FOR THE MENTALLY ILL	2723	F.O. BOX 79179 BALTIMORE	1,000.00
NATIONAL ADOPT GAY EDUCATION	2011	100 ARCADE AVE. NEBRASKA CITY	100.00
NATIONAL ASSEMBLY OF STATE ARTS AGENCIES	1519	1010 VEEPCNT AVE. NW ASSC WASHINGTON	1,000.00
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION FOR THE ADVANCEMENT OF COLORED PEOPLE	2051	4805 MT PINE CR BALTIMORE	150.00
NATIONAL BRAIN TUMOR EDUCATION	4061	785 PARKET ST SUITE 1600 SAN FRANCISCO	283.00
NATIONAL COMMITTEE FOR RESPNSIVE PHILANTHROPY	3285	2001 S STREET NW #620 WASHINGTON	1,000.00
NATIONAL CONFERENCE FOR COMMUNITY AND JUSTICE	345	3645 WARFENSVILLE CTR. RC #221 CLEVELAND	6,300.00
NATIONAL COUNCIL OF JEWISH WOMEN	349	23500 MERCANTILE RC SUITE F CLEVELAND	50,700.00
NATIONAL COUNCIL OF JEWISH WOMEN	560	53 WEST 23TH STREET NEW YORK	1,500.00
NATIONAL COUNCIL OF JEWISH WOMEN	3543	3739 LALRA CT SACRAMENTO	1,500.00
NATIONAL COUNCIL OF JEWISH WOMEN INCORPORATED	2528	26400 LAHSEER ROAD, A100 SCOTT-FIELD	500.00
NATIONAL COUNCIL OF MIZRACHI SCHOOLS	4241	23530 WENDOVER CLEVELAND	30,000.00
NATIONAL COUNCIL OF YOUNG ISRAEL	350	3 WEST 16TH STREET NEW YORK	100.00
NATIONAL CRIME PREVENTION COUNCIL, INC.	3747	1700K STREET, NW SECTION 11 WASHINGTON	1,000.00

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	ALPHA	ADDRESS	YTD GRANTS
NATIONAL FEDERATION OF JEWISH MEN'S CLUBS, INC.	4226	475 RIVERSIDE DR SUITE 450 NEW YORK NY 10115	\$ 100.00
NATIONAL FOUNDATION FOR ADVANCEMENT IN THE ARTS, INC.	3197	800 BRICKHILL AVE 5TH FL MIAMI FL 33131	\$ 30,000.00
NATIONAL FOUNDATION FOR CANCER RESEARCH	4370	PC BOX 96021 WASHINGTON	\$ 100.00
NATIONAL FOUNDATION FOR JEWISH CULTURE	352	330 SEVENTH AVE 21ST FLOOR NEW YORK NY 10011	\$ 3,500.00
NATIONAL JEWISH CENTER FOR IMMUNOLOGY AND RESPIRATORY MEDICINE	256	1400 JACKSON STREET DENVER CO 80202	\$ 3,877.87
NATIONAL JEWISH CENTER FOR LEARNING AND LEADERSHIP	357	440 PARK AVE SCUIT 4TH FL NEW YORK NY 10017	\$ 2,300.00
NATIONAL MINORITY COLLEGE GOLF SCHOLARSHIP FUND	4058	3700 MCFTFIELD RD SUITE 21 CLEVELAND OH 44122	\$ 500.00
NATIONAL MULTIPLE SCLEROSIS SOCIETY	359	1422 EURLIC AVENUE 4333 PANA ELEC. CLEVELAND OH 44115	\$ 21,570.00
NATIONAL MULTIPLE SCLEROSIS SOCIETY	2835	2440 S. SEPULVEDA BLVD #115 LOS ANGELES CA 90064	\$ 3,000.00
NATIONAL MULTIPLE SCLEROSIS SOCIETY	4288	520 SCUIT MAIN ST AKRON OH 44311	\$ 100.00
NATIONAL COTECPCRISIS FOUNDATION	3620	1150 17TH ST NW SUITE 6500 WASHINGTON	\$ 1,000.00
NATIONAL PARKS AND CONSERVATION ASSOCIATION	4154	PC BOX 97202 WASHINGTON	\$ 2,000.00
NATIONAL PARTNERSHIP FOR WOMEN AND FAMILIES, INC.	3701	1875 CONNELL AVE, NW SUITE 710 WASHINGTON	\$ 200.00

ENDORSEMENT/PHILANTHROPIC SYSTEM
 CLEVELAND RECEIPT
 GRANTS FROM PHILANTHROPIC FUNDS
 FROM 07/01/98 TO 03/31/99

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION

PURP

ADDRESS

YIC GRANTS

REFRUIT NAME - PEECEALT	GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	PURP	ADDRESS	YIC GRANTS
NATIONAL PEACE CARCER FOUNDATION	3456	1800 CLEVELAND RD SUITE C ALEXANDRIA	VA 22314	2,000.00
NATIONAL RESOURCES DEFENSE COUNCIL	3548	40 WEST 20TH ST NEW YORK	NY 10011	1,000.00
NATIONAL SOCIETY FOR HEBREW DAY SCHOOLS	360	160 BUCKHAM 4TH FL NEW YORK	NY 10036	1,800.00
NATIONAL SOCIETY TO PREVENT BLINDNESS - OHIO AFFILIATE	1010	1500 WEST TRIPLE AVE. #200 CLEVEBUS	OH 43212	1,000.00
NATIONAL SWEDEN INFANT CARE SYNCHROME FDI NORTHEASTERN OH CHAPTER	1673	281 LOCUST STREET AKRON	OH 44302	100.00
NATIONAL TRUST FOR HISTORIC PRESERVATION IN THE U.S.A.	361	1785 MASSACHUSETTS AVE NW WASHINGTON	DC 20036	200.00
NATIONAL WILDLIFE FEDERATION	3704	1400 16TH ST NW WASHINGTON	DC 20036	200.00
NATIONAL VICIST-BECK CENTER	1681	1021 WEST STREET AMHERST	MA 01002	1,750.00
NATIONAL YOUTH ADVOCACY COALITION	4282	1711 CONNECTICUT AVE. NW SUITE 206 WASHINGTON	DC 20005	7,500.00
NATURE CONSERVANCY INC.	1113	1815 NORTH LYNN ST. ARLINGTON	VA 22205	1,200.00
NATURE CONSERVANCY OHIO CHAPTER	2179	6375 FIFTH ST CURLIN	OH 43017	1,625.00
NEAR WESTSIDE MULTI-SERVICE CORP.	2831	4115 BRIDGE AVE. CLEVELAND	OH 44113	750.00
NEIGHBORHOOD CENTERS ASSOCIATION	363	3135 EUCLEA AVE #103 CLEVELAND	OH 44115	1,450.00

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	PHONE	ADDRESS	170 GRANTS
NEIGHBORHOOD FAMILY PRACTICE	2173	3565 RICE RD CLEVELAND OH 44132	100.00
NEW ISRAEL RAEBINICAL COLLEGE, INC.	364	400 MOUNT WILSON LANE EATWATER NC 27208	1,000.00
NEVIA INSTITUTE	2473	3505 MAYFIELD RD CLEVELAND OH 44118	13,500.00
NEURATIC YOUNG ORGANIZES	4001	1999 AVE OF THE STARS MC 700 LOS ANGELES CA 90067	600.00
NEVE YERUSHALAIM, INC	2623	25 ECHOLAY NEW YORK NY 10004	600.00
NEW CLEVELAND GREFA COMPANY	151	1422 EULCIE AVENUE A1052 CLEVELAND OH 44115	41,447.83
NEW DIRECTIENS	855	10800 CIPRIAN BLVD. CLEVELAND OH 44124	1,050.00
NEW ENCLAVE ACADEMY OF TORAH INC.	1231	262 BLAKSTONE BLVD. PROVIDENCE RI 02906	500.00
NEW ENCLAVE INSTITUTE OF JEWISH STUDIES, INC.	4246	358 CHESTNUT HILL SUITE 301 BROCKLINE MA 02144	500.00
NEW ISRAEL FUNG	1143	165 EAST 56TH STREET NEW YORK NY 10022	1,000.00
NEW ISRAEL FUNG	2564	1625 K STREET NW #500 WASHINGTON DC 20006	5,250.00
NEW LIFE COMMUNITY	2176	P.O. BOX 1255 CLEVELAND OH 44120	4,050.00
NEW ORGANIZATION FOR THE VISUAL ARTS	973	PRECPECT PARK BUILDING 4614 EFFECT AVENUE A410 CLEVELAND OH 44103	2,350.00
NEW SEED FOUNDATION	3052	199 AYLICG AVE PASSAIC PARK NJ 07055	660.00

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION

PURP

ADDRESS

TO GRANTS

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	PURP	ADDRESS	TO GRANTS
NEW YORK GREEN CENTER, INC.	3146	83 SPRING STREET NEW YORK	\$ 25,000.00
NEW YORK UNIVERSITY	367	550 FIRST AVENUE NEW YORK	\$ 17,500.00
NEW YORK UNIVERSITY	1158	SCHOOL OF LAW 40 WASHINGTON SQUARE S. NEW YORK	\$ 250.00
NORTH AMERICAN CONFERENCE ON ETHIOPIAN JEWRY	1807	P.O. BOX 257 MILWAUKEE	\$ 100.00
NORTH WEST COMMUNITY HOMES, INC.	4240	#3 5410 TRINITY STREET CLEVELAND	\$ 2,600.00
NORTHEAST FOOD RESCUE	3424	24650 TRINITY STREET SUITE 200 CLEVELAND	\$ 1,725.00
NORTHEAST CHIC COALITION FOR THE HOMELESS	2426	1468 WEST 25TH ST CLEVELAND	\$ 100.00
NORTHEAST CHIC JAZZ SOCIETY, INC.	3498	3109 MAYFIELD RD CLEVELAND	\$ 100.00
NORTHEASTERN EDUCATIONAL TELEVISION OF OHIO INC.	2006	1750 CAPUS CENTER DRIVE KENT	\$ 100.00
NORTHERN CHIC CHILDREN'S PERFORMING MUSIC FOUNDATION, INC.	368	THE HANNA EULIENIC 2075 EAST 14TH STREET CLEVELAND	\$ 400.00
NORTHWESTERN MEMORIAL FOUNDATION	4257	750 N LAKESHORE DR SUITE 542 CHICAGO	\$ 200.00
NORTHWESTERN UNIVERSITY	370	633 CLARK STREET EVANSTON	\$ 1,100.00
ARTS GALLERY AND SCHOOL OF ART, INC.	528	1451 SCOTT CLIVE AVENUE WEST PALM BEACH	\$ 1,550.00
AMERICAN IMMIGRATION ASSOCIATION, INC.	4278	15 COLLETT DR FURNITON	\$ 25,000.00

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION NAME ADDRESS CITY GRANTEE

C F E C INSTITUTE INC.	1374	27801 ECLIPSE AVE A43C CLEVELAND	CF 44322	\$	2,600.00
COSSISSIVE COMPREHENSIVE FOUNDATION, INC.	2315	P. O. BOX 9573 NEW HAVEN	CT 06522	\$	2,500.00
OCEAN REEF MEDICAL CENTER FOUNDATION, INC.	3309	30 OCEAN REEF CR KEY LAKE	FL 33731	\$	5,000.00
CE YCSEF (FBI), INC.	4375	1556 58TH ST BRCKLYN	NY 11215	\$	100.00
CHAVI ZELER SYMPOSIUM	1645	188 N. PROSPECT ST BURLINGTON	VT 05401	\$	4,000.00
CHIL AVIHAM	2918	3552 N. SCULPTURE AVE. CHICAGO	IL 60613	\$	100.00
CHIL AVIHAM	2962	JEWISH STUDENT INFC CTR 5315 N 16TH AVE BRCKLYN	NY 11204	\$	600.00
CHIC ARTS FOUNDATION, INC.	3386	727 EAST MAIN ST CLUMBLS	CT 06203	\$	3,050.00
CHIC CHAMBER PALLET	3790	C/C THE UNIVERSITY OF ARCHA	CT 06204	\$	400.00
CHIC CHAMBER ORCHESTRA	736	3659 GREEN RD. #121 CLEVELAND	CT 44122	\$	200.00
CHIC CHICAGO ART PROJECT, INC.	4327	3130 MAYFIELD RD CLEVELAND	CT 44136	\$	5,000.00
CHIC CANOE	1481	77 SCOTT HIGH ST CLUMBLS	CT 06215	\$	100.00
CHIC FOUNDATION OF INDEPENDENT COLLEGS, INC.	376	21 EAST STATE ST. #111C CLUMBLS	CT 06215	\$	1,000.00
CHIC FURNITURES COUNCIL	1430	P. O. BOX 06234 CLUMBLS	CT 06206	\$	100.00
CHIC ISRAEL ECONOMIC INSTITUTE	4026	1801 E. 5TH ST SUITE 1520 CLEVELAND	CT 44114	\$	2,000.00

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	ALPH	ADDRESS	YTC GRANTS
CHICACAGO NORTHERN UNIVERSITY	2266	525 S MAIN ST ACA	1,200.00
ETHIC SPECIAL OLYMPICS	796	3303 WINCHESTER PIKE COLUMBUS	350.00
CHICAGO STATE EAR EDUCATION	4307	1700 LAKE SHORE DR FC BOX 16562	600.00
CHICAGO STATE UNIVERSITY DEVELOPMENT FUND	379	OFFICE OF UNIV DEVELOPMENT FC BOX 210811 COLUMBUS	33,582.65
CHICAGO UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION	618	PC GRABER 865 ATHENS	100.00
CHRISTIAN SCAVYACH INTERNATIONAL, INC.	2828	38 E. 25TH ST 10TH FLOOR NEW YORK	141,250.00
CHRISTIAN INSTITUTIONS OF ISRAEL, INC.	4003	155 E. 55TH ST SUITE 303 NEW YORK	360.00
CLEVELAND STONE CHURCH	3461	91 PUELIC SQUARE CLEVELAND	100.00
CLEVELAND STONE FOUNDATION	3431	91 PUELIC SQUARE CLEVELAND	4,000.00
CLEVELAND FUNDS LTD	2133	17 EAST 45TH ST. 4610 NEW YORK	1,350.00
GREEN HOUSE	2752	2460 FAIRMOUNT BLVD. 4222 CLEVELAND	300.00
CR CHURCH	1339	3134 YERKSPIRE RD CLEVELAND	2,500.00
CR CIVIC OUTREACH	4247	1314 AVENUE J BROCKLYN	440.00
CHANGE EFFORTS OF EDUCATION	529	3200 CLEVELAND ECLIPSE BLVD CLEVELAND	500.00

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION ADDR NUMB ADDRESS

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	ADDR	NUMB	ADDRESS
GRANGE COMMUNITY ARTS COUNCIL	1077	31500 CAGRAIN BLVD.	CLEVELAND
CRCHARDS CHILDREN'S SERVICES, INC.	4332	30215 SCUTFILLIC RD	SOUTHFIELD MI 48034
CATIPACIFIC RESEARCH AND EDUCATION FOUNDATION	3422	6300 ACFTF RIVER RD	SUITE 700 ROSEMONT ILL 60018
CELANO OF AMERICA, INC.	1209	26 WEST STREET	ECSTON MA 02113
F M FOUNDATION, INC.	356	2401 MASSACHUSETTS AVE	CLEVELAND OH 44113
PALM BEACH CIVIC ASSOCIATION, INC	2037	230 PALM BEACH WAY, AACC	PALM BEACH FL 33480
PALM BEACH COMMUNITY TRUST, INC.	283	F.C. BOX 1141	PALM BEACH FL 33480
PALM BEACH FELLOWSHIP OF CHRISTIANS AND JEWS, INC.	3058	251 SCOUT COUNTY RD	PALM BEACH FL 33480
PALM BEACH FACILITY CENTER INC.	2212	4522 SCOUT CONGRESS AVE.	LAKE BUTTE FL 33461
PALM BEACH OPERA, INC.	3457	415 SCOUT CLIVE AVE	WEST PALM BEACH FL 33401
PARK AVENUE SYMPOSIUM	1166	50 EAST 87TH STREET	NEW YORK NY 10022
PARK SYMPOSIUM	354	3300 MAYFIELD ROAD	CLEVELAND OH 44118
PARFACAL	3425	6753 STATE ROAD	CLEVELAND OH 44134
PATFINDERS FOUNDATION	4382	8941 BALCON BLVD	ACHTHARTS OH 43122
PELIPIC FICS FOUNDATION	2209	2950 JIST ST	SUITE 125 SANTA MONICA CA 90405

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION NAME ADDRESS YTC GRANTS

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NAME	ADDRESS	YTC GRANTS
PEP ISRAEL ENJOYMENT FUNDS, INC.	616	317 WILSON AVENUE SUITE 607 NEW YORK NY 10017	10,750.00
PEOPLE FOR ETHICAL TREATMENT OF ANIMALS	2021	P.O. BOX 42516 WASHINGTON	100.00
PEOPLE FOR THE AMERICAN WAY	121	2000 M STREET NW SUITE 400 WASHINGTON	9,500.00
PEOPLE TO PEOPLE HEALTH FOUNDATION PROJECT HOPE	385	HOPE CENTER P.O. BOX 250 WILLIAMS	300.00
PERMAN MUSIC PROGRAM, INC.	4290	P.O. BOX 4163 EAST HARTON NY 11537	1,000.00
PEASANT TRAVEL-TOPE DEVELOPMENT INC	2236	18 WILSON ST BROOKLYN NY 11224	500.00
PHI BETA KAPPA SOCIETY	3841	6710 CHAFFEE CRT, #3 CLEVELAND OH	100.00
PHILADELPHIA CENTER ON THE HOLLAND GENOCIDE AND HUMAN RIGHTS	4361	P.O. BOX 10 MERCIA STATION PA 15064	100.00
PHILHARMONIC CENTER FOR THE ARTS, INC	2832	5833 PELICAN BAY BLVD MAPLES FL 34108	2,250.00
PHYLIS AND GERRA ANN KUMBER CHILDREN'S FUND	4350	1750 EUCLEA AVE CLEVELAND OH	55,365.63
PHYSICIANS FOR SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY	530	1975 EAST 107TH ST. CLEVELAND OH	100.00
PHYSICIANS FOR SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY	1561	1101 1471 ST NW SUITE 700 WASHINGTON	500.00
PHYSICIANS FOR SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY	4413	NORTHEAST CHURCH 1915 E. 107TH ST CLEVELAND OH	100.00
PLANS INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF NORTHERN OHIO	2275	C/O CLEVELAND INST OF MUSIC 11021 EAST AVE CLEVELAND OH	4,530.00

RECEIPT NAME - PEECEAL
RECEIPT DATE - 07/08/99

ENDORSEMENT/PHILANTHROPIC SYSTEM
CLEVELAND RECEPTION
GRANTS FROM PHILANTHROPIC FUNDS
FROM 07/01/98 TO 03/31/99

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION

PHONE

ADDRESS

YIC GRANTS

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	PHONE	ADDRESS	YIC GRANTS
PILCHUCK CLASS SCHOOL	2222	315 SECONC AVE S SEATTLE WA 98104	3,000.00
PINE CREST PREPARTRY SCHOOL, INC.	3251	2700 ST. ANDREWS BLVD BCCA PATCN	100.00
FINE STREET INN, INC.	4326	444 PAFRISON AVE ECSTCN	100.00
PITKIN COUNTY LIBRARY	3259	120 NCRTH MILL ST ASPEN	375.00
PITTSBURGH KOLLEL BAIS YITZCHOK	351	5706 GARFLETT STREET PITTSBURGH PA 15217	1,000.00
PLAIN DEALER CHARITIES, INC.	2189	1801 SUPERIOR AVE CLEVELAND OH	300.00
PLAINVIEW JEWISH CENTER	4287	95 FICHL CR PLAINVIEW NY 11603	200.00
PLANETEC LIFE ASSISTANCE NETWORK OF NORTHEAST OHIO	3140	3130 WYFIELD RD. #C4112 CLEVELAND OH	10,300.00
PLANETEC ASSOC OF METRO WASHINGTON D.C., INC.	4423	PC BOX 57166 WASHINGTON DC 20017	150.00
PLANETEC FEDERATION OF AMERICA, INC.	392	820 SEVENTH AVENUE NEW YORK NY 10019	4,220.00
PLANETEC OF GREATER CLEVELAND, INC.	353	3135 EUCLEA AVE. #102 CLEVELAND OH	7,890.00
PLANETEC PARENTHOOD OF SANTA BARBARA, VENTURA & SAN LUIS OBISPO CITY	3209	518 GARDEN ST SANTA BARBARA CA 93101	500.00
PLANETEC PARENTHOOD OF THE PALM BEACHES AND TREASURE COAST AREA INC	2652	5312 PALMWAY M. PALM BEACH FL 33407	4,500.00
PLASTIC SURGERY EDUCATIONAL FOUNDATION	3152	444 EAST ALLENWOOD ROAD ARLINGTON HEIGHTS IL 60005	550.00
PLAYHOUSE SQUARE FOUNDATION	395	1501 EUCLEA AVE. CLEVELAND OH	33,450.00

ENDOWMENT/PHILANTHROPIC SYSTEM
CLEVELAND FEDERATION
GRANTS FRCP PHILANTHROPIC FUNDS
FRCH 07/01/58 TC 03/31/59

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION PLPB ACCESS YTD GRANTS

PLEASANT RIDGE WALTORF SCHCL, INC.	2276	321 EAST LEXER ST VIRGINIA	MI 54665	\$ 1,150.00
FLUGHSHARES FUNG	1809	FRT WASH SAN FRANCISCO	CA 94122	\$ 5,000.00
PCNA COLLEGE	3138	323 ACFT COLLEGE WAY CLAREMONT	CA 91711	\$ 1,500.00
PRETRM CLEVELAND, INC.	153	1200 SPAKER BLVD CLEVELAND	OH 44120	\$ 113,700.00
PREVATIVE MEDICINE INSTITUTE	2713	428 E 72 ST NEW YORK	NY 10021	\$ 1,450.00
PRINCETON COLLEGE DEVELOPMENT INSTITUTE	3388	300 COLLEGE SCUL PT PRINCETON	NJ 08540	\$ 100.00
PRINCETON PROJECT 55, INC.	2626	32 MASSACHU ST. PRINCETON	NJ 08542	\$ 20,000.00
PRINCETON UNIVERSITY	1354	CHE MASSACHU FLL PRINCETON	NJ 08544	\$ 20,000.00
PRINCETON UNIVERSITY, TRUSTEES OF	398	PRINCETON PRINCETON	NJ 08544	\$ 5,000.00
PRINT CLUB OF CLEVELAND	355	1150 EAST CLEVELAND CLEVELAND	OH 44106	\$ 200.00
PROFESSIONAL FLAIR, INC.	2425	EURLLEY ELEC. 1501 EURLLEY AVE. CLEVELAND	OH 44115	\$ 5,500.00
PROJECT HEAD THE WALK FOR HUNGER, INC.	4363	160 N WASHINGTON ST COSTON	MA 02114	\$ 400.00
PROJECT INTERCHANGE	706	1156 15TH ST N.W. #1201 WASHINGTON	DC 20005	\$ 3,400.00
PROJECT JUTICA FOUNDATION INC.	1554	900 SECUND ST N E WASHINGTON	DC 20002	\$ 1,000.00
PROJECT LEFFN	2344	2728 EURLLEY AVE #200 CLEVELAND	OH 44115	\$ 250.00

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NAME	ADDRESS			
PROJECT LOVE REMEMBER THE CHILDREN FOUNDATION	322E	5275 LITTLEFIELD DR SUITE 230 CLEVELAND	1	5,570.00	CF 44124
PROJECT PEOPLE FOUNDATION	4404	110 EAST 55TH ST 2ND FL NEW YORK	1	500.00	NY 10022
PROJECT YES, INC.	2913	5275 SUNSET CR MIAMI	1	15,000.00	FL 33143
PROVIDENCE HOUSE, INC.	1460	2037 WEST 32ND STREET CLEVELAND	1	1,200.00	OH 44115
PSYCHOLOGICAL CLINIC OF GREATER CLEVELAND	4377	2940 ACELE FC CLEVELAND	1	2,600.00	OH 44121
PTACH	1180	4612 13TH AVE. BRICKLVA	1	360.00	NY 11215
PUBLIC ANIMAL WELFARE SOCIETY	2210	P.O. BOX 24451 CLEVELAND	1	200.00	OH 44124
PUBLIC CITIZEN FOUNDATION	1752	1600 20TH ST NW WASHINGTON	1	300.00	DC 20005
PURDUE FOUNDATION, INC	2760	1801 PURDUE PEN LN1CN WEST LAFAYETTE	1	200.00	IN 47531
RHEINICAL COLLEGE OF TELSPE, INC.	404	2840 ELCIE AVENUE MICKLIFE	1	47,810.00	OH 44022
RACLIFFE COLLEGE	789	CAMPBICE CAMBRICE	1	5,100.00	MA 02138
RABORN BABIES AND CHILDRENS HOSPITAL	405	11001 CECAR AVE. #305 CLEVELAND	1	12,616.00	OH 44106
RABORN CHILDRENS MUSEUM AND TRN LEARNING CENTER	1111	10720 ELCIE AVE. CLEVELAND	1	660.00	OH 44106
RAPID RECOVERY, INC. CLEANLAND OHIO	1236	1836 EUCIE AVE. UNIVERSITY PLAZA BLDG. CLEVELAND	1	1,800.00	OH 44115

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION NAME ADDRESS CITY GRANTS

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NAME	ADDRESS	CITY	GRANTS
FASHI SCHOOL, INC.	4266	400 PICK ST CEDDAH	MA 02026	10,000.00
RAYMOND F. KRAVIS CENTER FOR THE PERFORMING ARTS, INC	1571	701 CRESCENT BLVD WEST PALM BEACH	FL 33401	13,500.00
RECONSTRUCTIONIST HAVRA OF CLEVELAND	3521	2021 ELLIOTT RD CLEVELAND	OH 44112	300.00
RECEIPTS FOR THE ELINA, INC.	1185	20 FOSZEL PL. SPRINGFIELD	MA 01540	100.00
RECOVERY RESOURCES	517	3950 CHESTER AVE CLEVELAND	OH 44112	5,700.00
REPERITY PROJECT	2560	3130 MAYFIELD RD 305E CLEVELAND	OH 44112	280.00
RET UNITED FC FOR THE EDUC OF RUSSIAN IMMIGRANT CHILDREN IN ISRAEL	2702	39 BRUCKWAY #300 NEW YORK	NY 10006	100.00
RETIREE SENIOR VOLUNTEER PROGRAM	1401	2611 CLARK AVE CLEVELAND	OH 44112	1,000.00
ROCK & FULL HALL CE FARE AND MUSEUM	1548	1 KEY PLAZA CLEVELAND	OH 44114	2,100.00
ROYAL HOSPITAL HOUSE OF CLEVELAND, INC.	120	10415 ELLIOT AVENUE CLEVELAND	OH 44106	5,300.00
RESEARCH FUND FOR CHILDREN	3149	1145 MAIN STREET, #302 SPRINGFIELD	MA 01103	1,500.00
SALVATION ARMY & ITS COMPONENTS	411	P. O. BOX 5647 CLEVELAND	OH 44101	12,486.56
SAN FRANCISCO AIDS EDUCATION	4461	995 MARKET ST SUITE 200 SAN FRANCISCO	CA 94103	750.00
SAN FRANCISCO EDUCATION	4114	685 MARKET ST SUITE 910 SAN FRANCISCO	CA 94103	264.74

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION

NUPE

ADDRESS

YTD GRANTS

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NUPE	ADDRESS	YTD GRANTS
SANTA BARBARA JEWISH FEDERATION	2638	P.O. BOX 52113 SANTA BARBARA CA 93150	2,500.00
SCAN NEW YORK VOLUNTEER PARENT AIDS ASSOCIATION	3823	207 EAST 27TH ST NEW YORK NY 10016	1,000.00
SCARBUROCK FALLS, INC.	4338	2430-20 WEST 10TH ST CLEVELAND OH 44113	100.00
SCOTTISDALE CULTURAL COUNCIL	4258	7380 E. SECONA ST SCOTTSDALE AZ 85211	10,000.00
SCULPTURE CENTER	1911	12206 ELLIC AVENUE CLEVELAND OH 44136	50,150.00
SEATTLE YOUTH ACADEMY	2268	1617 INTERLAKER CR. EAST SEATTLE WA 98112	16,000.00
SECURE HARVEST	3357	116 S. MICHIGAN AVE, #4 CHICAGO IL 60603	100.00
SEES OF PEACE, INC.	2669	370 LEXINGTON AVE SUITE 1409 NEW YORK NY 10017	6,500.00
SEEING EYE, INC.	3579	P.O. BOX 2068 MCFFISTON NJ 07562	500.00
SEGULA	3791	23366 CEMPERE PK CR SUITE 100 CLEVELAND OH 44122	5,510.00
SEMAC SEER R.I.A.S.	2308	2004 S GREEN RD CLEVELAND OH 44121	3,450.00
SERVICE CITIZEN RESOURCES INC.	1848	1400 CRESTLINE AVE. #305 CLEVELAND OH 44115	100.00
SENIOR HEALTH AND PEER COUNSELING CENTER	3457	2125 ARIZONA AVE SANTA MONICA CA 90404	500.00
SERVICES FOR INDEPENDENT LIVING	1422	25100 ELLIC AVE. SUITE 105 CLEVELAND OH 44111	250.00

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	ALPH	ADDRESS	AMOUNT
SHARAF FAMILI CENTER	2683	19824 SLSSEX RD CLEVELAND	500.00
SHARAF HEIGHTS / EACHWOOD HEALS CN WHEELS	1212	3450 LEE RD SUITE 202 CLEVELAND	300.00
SHARAF HEIGHTS ALUMNI ASSOCIATION	1556	15600 PARKLANE CR SHARAF HEIGHTS	100.00
SHARAF HEIGHTS YOUTH AND FAMILY COUNSELING CENTER	3411	16700 VAN AKEN BLVD CLEVELAND	1,000.00
SHARAF HISTORICAL SOCIETY	2676	16740 SCOTT PARK BLVD CLEVELAND	600.00
SHARAF HIS PUBLIC LIBRARY	3335	16500 VAN AKEN BLVD CLEVELAND	1,305.00
SHARAF SCHOOLS FOUNDATION	1878	15600 PARKLANE DRIVE SHARAF HEIGHTS	1,126.00
SHARAF SQUARE AREA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION	3873	13125 SHARAF SC RM 102 CLEVELAND	300.00
SHARAF TEMPLE CONGREGATION OF THE CITY OF CANTON, CHIC	421	432 30TH STREET, NW CANTON	1,000.00
SHARAF TEMPLE ISRAEL	3596	432 SCOTLAND RD S. CANTON	1,000.00
SHEPARD USA CHARITABLE TRUST	3237	101 N. V1577 AVE LOS ANGELES	100.00
SHERIT ISRAEL, INC.	4244	1362 E. 51ST ST BRICKLYN	1,000.00
SHIPLEY SCHOOL	3707	816 YARFEN STREET BETH NABE	2,000.00
SHOES FOR KIDS, INC.	1547	4614 PERSPECT AVE #511 CLEVELAND	5,000.00

NAME	ADDRESS	GRANTEE ORGANIZATION
2438	3825 MISCELLANEOUS AVE. N.W. WASHINGTON	SICHELL FRIENDS SCHOOL
1387	180 MCNICCMEYER ST. #1400 SAN FRANCISCO	SIERRA CLUB LEGAL DEFENSE FUND, INC.
1640	651 NORTH RANCHO LINE RD. CARMEL	SICMA ALPHA MU FOUNDATION
1630	9760 WEST PIKE BLVD. LOS ANGELES	SIPCA MISSIONAL CENTER
424	3246 DESCOTA AVENUE CLEVELAND	SINAI SYNAGOGUE
2357	F. C. EXX 1882B CLEVELAND	SINGER'S CLUB
4249	1606 PASSEY LE PERALTA SANTA FE	SITE SANTA FE
1088	200 PARK AVE SCUIT SUITE 1116 NEW YORK	SKETCHMAN SCHOOL OF PAINTING AND SCULPTURE
4294	149 MADISON AVE SUITE 205 NEW YORK	SLE FOUNDATION, INCORPORATED
426	NORTHAMPTON NORTHAMPTON	SMITH COLLEGE
1238	1479 A & I ELEC BLDG 43E WASHINGTON	SPITHSCHMAN INSTITUTION
4231	1000 RICHMOND TERRACE STATEN ISLAND	SNUG HARBOR CULTURAL CENTER, INC.
2186	700 11TH ST NW #510 WASHINGTON	SOCIETY OF INDUSTRIAL AND OFFICE REALTORS EDUCATIONAL FC
1382	25112 CLEVELAND RD. CLEVELAND	SOCIETY OF ISRAEL PHILATELISTS
1470	2 FOUR FORTS PLAZA FALL FERTH	SOCIETY OF THE FOUR ARTS
2438	3825 MISCELLANEOUS AVE. N.W. WASHINGTON	SOCIETY OF THE FOUR ARTS
1387	180 MCNICCMEYER ST. #1400 SAN FRANCISCO	SOCIETY OF THE FOUR ARTS
1640	651 NORTH RANCHO LINE RD. CARMEL	SOCIETY OF THE FOUR ARTS
1630	9760 WEST PIKE BLVD. LOS ANGELES	SOCIETY OF THE FOUR ARTS
424	3246 DESCOTA AVENUE CLEVELAND	SOCIETY OF THE FOUR ARTS
2357	F. C. EXX 1882B CLEVELAND	SOCIETY OF THE FOUR ARTS
4249	1606 PASSEY LE PERALTA SANTA FE	SOCIETY OF THE FOUR ARTS
1088	200 PARK AVE SCUIT SUITE 1116 NEW YORK	SOCIETY OF THE FOUR ARTS
4294	149 MADISON AVE SUITE 205 NEW YORK	SOCIETY OF THE FOUR ARTS
426	NORTHAMPTON NORTHAMPTON	SOCIETY OF THE FOUR ARTS
1238	1479 A & I ELEC BLDG 43E WASHINGTON	SOCIETY OF THE FOUR ARTS
4231	1000 RICHMOND TERRACE STATEN ISLAND	SOCIETY OF THE FOUR ARTS
2186	700 11TH ST NW #510 WASHINGTON	SOCIETY OF THE FOUR ARTS
1382	25112 CLEVELAND RD. CLEVELAND	SOCIETY OF THE FOUR ARTS
1470	2 FOUR FORTS PLAZA FALL FERTH	SOCIETY OF THE FOUR ARTS

ENDOWMENT/PHILANTHROPIC SYSTEM
 CLEVELAND RECEIPTICAL
 GRANTS FROM PHILANTHROPIC FUNDS
 FROM 07/01/58 TO 03/31/59

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION TYPE ADDRESS YTD GRANTS

SELICMAN F. CUGGENHEIM FOUNDATION	2671	1071 FIRST AVE. NEW YORK	NY 10122	116,216,375.00
SELICMAN SPECTER DAY SCHOOL, INC.	1573	120 WHEELER RD. NEWTON	MA 02155	750.00
SCNS OF LOVE, INC.	4291	PC BOX 75063 CREST HILLS	NY 11375	200.00
SOUTH AFRICA PUBLIC TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.	1701	505 SCOUT CONGRESS AVE. RYANTON BEACH	FL 33422	100.00
SOUTH PALM BEACH JEWISH FEDERATION, INC.	764	9501 CANA KLEIN BLVD RCCA MATCH	FL 33422	25,563.33
SOUTHEAST CENTER FOR JUDAISM	3615	9000 EAST CLEVELAND AVE SUITE 100 ENGLEWOOD	CO 80111	375.00
SOUTHERN ILLINOIS UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION	4079	1301 W. CHALTAUGLA CARBONALE	IL 62502	500.00
SOUTHERN POVERTY LAW CENTER	431	400 WASHINGTON AVE PC BOX 548 MONTICEMERY	AL 36101	1,020.00
SPACES	1256	2220 SUPERIOR VIADUCT CLEVELAND	OH 44113	3,400.00
ST LOUIS HILLET OF WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY	4394	6300 PERSYTT BLVD ST LOUIS	MO 63103	2,200.00
ST LUKES MEMORIAL HOSPITAL FOUNDATION	4373	PC BOX 475 UTICA	NY 12502	125.00
ST. ALCYONUS CHURCH	4256	10932 ST CLAIR AVE CLEVELAND	OH 44108	500.00
ST. AUGUSTINE CHURCH	541	2486 WEST 14TH STREET CLEVELAND	OH 44113	350.00
ST. ELIZABETH'S MEDICAL CENTER	4051	736 CLEVELAND ST CLEVELAND	OH 44113	500,000.00
ST. IGNATIUS HIGH SCHOOL	1402	1911 WEST 30TH STREET CLEVELAND	OH 44113	550.00

RECEIPT NAME - PECEBALI
RECEIPT DATE - 07/08/99

ENDOWMENT/PHILANTHROPIC SYSTEM
CLEVELAND FEDERATION
GRANTS FROM PHILANTHROPIC FUNDS
FROM 07/01/98 TO 03/31/99

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION NUPR ACCESS YTD GRANTS

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NUPR	ACCESS	YTD GRANTS
ST. JUDE CHILDRENS RESEARCH HOSPITAL	415	501 ST JUDE PLACE MEMPHIS	\$ 578,000
ST. LOUIS UNIVERSITY	416	P.O. BOX 8005 PIERRE LAURETTE STATION ST. LOUIS	\$ 200,000
ST. THOMAS AQUINAS HIGH SCHOOL	2355	2121 PENC CR. LOUISVILLE	\$ 100,000
ST. VINCENT CHARITY HOSPITAL DEVELOPMENT FUND	418	2351 EAST 22ND STREET CLEVELAND	\$ 500,000
STATE APPALACHIAN FRIENDS, INC.	2912	6300 FRK CR CORKRIDGE BLVD ECHA FAIRCH	\$ 2,000,000
STANFORD UNIVERSITY	434	FC BOX 5 STANFORD	\$ 2,700,000
STANTINE FLINT	2272	2000 EAST 9TH ST SUITE 1220 CLEVELAND	\$ 200,000
STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW YORK	4270	155 ELIZABETH BLACKWELL SYRACUSE	\$ 1,000,000
STATE UNIVERSITY OF NEW YORK COMSTATE MEDICAL CENTER	531	BOX 62 450 CLAFKSCA AVENUE EFCCKLYN	\$ 32,000,000
STATUE OF LIBERTY-ELLIS ISLAND FOUNDATION, INC.	667	P.O. BOX 5200 NEW YORK	\$ 100,000
STELLA PARIS, INC.	952	1320 WASHINGTON AVE. CLEVELAND	\$ 3,250,000
STEFFINGSTONE EDUCATION, INC.	4365	126 HIGH ST BCSTON	\$ 300,000
STUDENTS IN FREE ENTERPRISE	4067	1959 EAST KERR SPRINGFIELD	\$ 1,000,000
SUBURBAN SYMPHONY ORCHESTRA	792	P.O. BOX 2255 EACHMOUTH	\$ 1,100,000

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NUMB	ADDRESS	YIC GRANTS
SUBURBAN TEMPLE	436	22401 CLEVELAND BLVD. CLEVELAND	\$ 55,550.63
SLAVIGERS OF THE SHOH VISUAL HISTORY FOUNDATION	3565	P.O. BOX 3166 LOS ANGELES	\$ 12,000.00
SUSAN C. KEENE FOUNDATION, INC.	2350	P O BOX 22423 CALLAS	\$ 300.00
SMARTKRE COLLEGE	1661	SMARTKRE SMARTKRE	\$ 500.00
SYRACUSE UNIVERSITY	1528	820 CUMSTOCK AVE SYRACUSE	\$ 400.00
TALMUDIC RESEARCH CENTER OF NORTHERN NEW JERSEY	438	35 ASCENSION STREET PASSAIC PARK	\$ 3,000.00
TALMUDICAL YESHIVA OF PHILADELPHIA	2847	6063 GREENEL RD. PHILADELPHIA	\$ 720.00
TAMPA BAY ISRAELI MUSEUM AND EDUCATIONAL CENTER INC	2798	5001 113TH ST ST PETERSBURG	\$ 15,000.00
TAYLOR HIGGINS SYRACUSE	446	1970 SC. TAYLOR RD. CLEVELAND	\$ 675.00
TEAM FELLOWSHIP, INC.	4328	9 E. 40TH ST 10TH FLOOR NEW YORK	\$ 500.00
TELLURIDE HISTORICAL MUSEUM	4380	PC BOX 1557 TELLURIDE	\$ 250.00
TELSHE YESHIVA - CHICAGO RABBINICAL	819	3535 WEST FOREST AVE CHICAGO	\$ 1,500.00
TEMPLE B'NAI BERACHA	3326	200 E. LITCHFIELD ST BEVERLY	\$ 1,000.00
TEMPLE BETT EL	879	F.C. BOX 5217 SANTA MARIA	\$ 1,200.00
TEMPLE BETT EL	2168	400 PASADENA AVE S. ST. PETERSBURG	\$ 400.00

ENDOWMENT/PHILANTHROPIC SYSTEM
 CLEVELAND RECEIPTS
 GRANTS FROM PHILANTHROPIC FUNDS
 FROM 07/01/58 TO 03/31/59

----- GRANTEE ORGANIZATION -----
 ----- NAME -----
 ----- ADDRESS -----
 ----- CITY GRANTS -----

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NAME	ADDRESS	CITY GRANTS
TEMPLE BETH EL	4020	1607 CENTISE ST AT SCOTT UTICA	1,600.00
TEMPLE BETH EL CONGREGATION	439	15808 CAGRAIN ECULEWARE SHAKER HEIGHTS	230.00
TEMPLE BETH ISRAEL	680	567 BAY ISLE DRIVE LAKESIDE KEY	1,250.00
TEMPLE BHAI BRITH	3573	9020 SAN ANTONIO SANTA BARBARA	2,000.00
TEMPLE EMANU EL	515	2200 SCOTT GREEN RC. CLEVELAND	66,750.00
TEMPLE EMANU-EL	2036	8500 HILLCREST ROAD CALLAS	400.00
TEMPLE EMANU-EL PALM BEACH, INC.	1453	190 NORTH COUNTRY RD. PALM BEACH	3,750.00
TEMPLE EMANUEL	1467	385 MAPLE ST. NEWTON	3,000.00
TEMPLE EMANUEL OF BEVERLY HILLS	3613	8844 BURTON WAY BEVERLY HILLS	3,000.00
TEMPLE ISRAEL OF GREATER CLEVELAND	1485	1732 LANCEP RD. MAYFIELD HEIGHTS	1,500.00
TEMPLE KOL AMI	4279	15030 N 64TH ST SCOTTSDALE	1,000.00
TEMPLE SHALOM	1912	4630 FIRE RIDGE RD. EXTENSION MAPLES	11,500.00
TEMPLE SHEL	4050	6805 E PCCONALE CR PARADISE VALLEY	1,457.00
TEMPLE SHEL, INC.	4272	5100 SPRING ST HILLYCOTT	200.00
TEMPLE UNIVERSITY	4384	3401 NORTH ROCK ST SUITE 920 PHILADELPHIA	500.00

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION NAME ADDRESS

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NAME	ADDRESS
TEIGN COUNTY LIBRARY FOUNDATION, INC.	3271	BOX 1625 JACKSON HOLE WY 83001
TEXTILE MUSEUM	4297	2320 S ST, NW WASHINGTON
THOMAS TC SCANDINAVIA, INC.	440	745 FIFTH AVENUE NEW YORK NY 10151
THE ART STUDIO, INC.	750	12200 FAIRHILL RD. CLEVELAND OH 44122
THE AVENUE ASSOCIATION, INC.	3953	950 THIRD AVE NEW YORK NY 10022
THE BOX PROJECT	1718	P.O. BOX 435 FLAIVILLE OH 43002
THE CATHOLIC CHARITIES CORPORATION	566	1111 SUPERIOR AVE CLEVELAND OH 44114
THE CITY PHYSICIAN	123	5310 CARPENT AVE CLEVELAND OH 44103
THE CLEVELAND PLAY HOUSE	152	P. O. BOX 1969 CLEVELAND OH 44102
THE COLLEGE OF MCGSTER	1205	MCGSTER MCGSTER
THE ELIZA JENNINGS GROUP	2335	10603 CECILIT AVE. CLEVELAND OH 44103
THE FRONTIER NURSING SERVICE FOUNDATION INC.	2144	PC BOX 143 MENCHEFF CFT 135E LEXINGTON KY 40522
THE HASTINGS CENTER	2456	RCUTE 91 GARRISON NY 10524
THE HEARC MUSEUM	2612	22 EAST MCNIE VISTA RD. FRENCH AZ 85004
THE LIVING DESERT	2819	47900 PCTCLZ AVE. PALM DESERT CA 92261

REPORT NAME - PROJECT
REPORT DATE - 07/06/55

ENDORSEMENT/PHILANTHROPIC SYSTEM
CLEVELAND FEDERATION
GRANTS FROM PHILANTHROPIC FUNDS
FROM 07/01/58 TO 03/31/99

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION

NUMBER

ADDRESS

YTD GRANTS

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NUMBER	ADDRESS	YTD GRANTS
THE MESSIAH HERITAGE FOUNDATION	2125	4401 SECONE AVE. BROOKLYN	16,000.00
THE NATURE CENTER AT SPAKER LAKES	423	2600 S. PARK ECLIPSE CLEVELAND	500.00
THE NEW MUSEUM	1713	583 BROOKWAY NEW YORK	22,500.00
THE FAITHFULNESS FUND	1940	NINE CALLEN STREET SUITE 217 WATERBURY	6,000.00
THE BATHURST DAY SCHOOL	595	4500 ANTWERP RD. LYNCHBURST	11,450.00
THE THRESHOLDS	1482	2700 N. LAKELAND CHICAGO	2,000.00
TIFFANY 12V1	4135	1221 E. 7TH ST BROOKLYN	2,500.00
TIFFANY ISRAEL ASSOCIATION TEMPLE	448	6000 50TH ST CLEVELAND	144,240.00
TIFFANY TALMUDIC CENTER	3770	748 BEARDS LANE BROOKLYN	750.00
TIFFANY TOWER CENTER	2774	17 MAPLE TERRACE MANHATTAN	1,250.00
TELCO AIRFLOW SYSTEMS, INC.	4271	1451 60TH ST BROOKLYN	360.00
THE EVERETT DANCE COMPANY	1857	71 EAST 214TH ST CLEVELAND	150.00
THE CHESTER STREETS	2665	4712 14TH ST. BROOKLYN	360.00
THE GRAM ACADEMY FOR GIRLS	3655	444 BEAUFORT ST BROOKLYN	6,000.00
THE GRAM ACADEMY OF MINNEAPOLIS	3658	2800 JEFFERSON AVE SOUTH ST LOUIS PARK	500.00

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION ALPHB ACCESS YTD GRANTS

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	ALPHB	ACCESS	YTD GRANTS
TRFAM CENTER/PICHEST, INC.	3446	MC 63121	100.00
TRFAM INSTITUTE OF BALTIMORE, INC.	2020	MC 21225	100.00
TRFAM LIFE INSTITUTE OF CLEVELAND	4189	CF 44116	11,880.00
TRFAM SCHOOLS FOR ISRAEL	441	NY 10005	20,100.00
TRFAS CHEESE, INC.	0310	NJ 03101	360.00
TRFAT TRICA KELLER, INC.	3824	CF 44116	5,200.00
TRFARCS EMPLOYMENT INCORPORATED	1660	OH 44116	300.00
TRFAM OF CINCINNATI	4359	MA 01742	500.00
TRFANSITIONAL FOCUSING, INC.	1914	OH 44116	1,000.00
TRFANITY SCHOOL	4127	NY 10132	250.00
TRFUSTEES OF CARTRIGHT COLLEGE	444	MD 03755	17,500.00
TRUSTEES OF THE UNIVERSITY OF PENNSYLVANIA	445	PA 15104	5,600.00
TRFAY FOUR HOURS OF ASPEN FOUNDATION	4397	PC ECX 1860	16,140.00
TRFAYOFF FOR KIDS, INC.	3554	OH 44105	100.00
TRFIVIA COLLEGE	1727	NY 10105	350.00

ENDOWMENT/PHILANTHROPIC SYSTEM
 CLEVELAND FEDERATION
 GRANTS FROM PHILANTHROPIC FUNDS
 FROM 07/01/98 TO 03/31/99

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION NAME ADDRESS

AMOUNT	GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NAME	ADDRESS
\$ 600.00	UNITED NARC COLLECTOR FUND	519	120 WALL ST 9TH FL NEW YORK
\$ 2,450.00	UNITED STATES COMMITTEE FOR UNICEF	1097	331 EAST 36TH ST. NEW YORK
\$ 375.00	UNITED STATES COMMITTEE SPORTS FOR ISRAEL, INC.	564	1926 ARCH ST, 3RD FL. PHILADELPHIA
\$ 150.00	UNITED STATES COMMITTEE SPORTS FOR ISRAEL, INC.	1288	P O BOX 56462 WASHINGTON
\$ 25,560.00	UNITED STATES POLYCAUST MEMORIAL COUNCIL	1031	100 FACUL WILLENBERG PL SM WASHINGTON
\$ 4,625.00	UNITED WAY / CRUSADE OF MERCY	1415	125 SCOUT CLARK STREET CHICAGO
\$ 412.00	UNITED WAY COMMUNITY SERVICES	4456	1212 CRISPICK AVENUE DETROIT
\$ 375.00	UNITED WAY OF CENTRAL INDIANA, INC.	1776	1028 NORTH MERIDIAN INDIANAPOLIS
\$ 750.00	UNITED WAY OF GERRICK COUNTY	4457	508 W. ELFCRE ST GRIFFNEY
\$ 610,000.00	UNITED WAY OF GAGE COUNTY	3244	F.C. BOX 010750 WIAPI
\$ 2,500.00	UNITED WAY OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, INC.	553	F. C. BOX 20605 WEST PALM BEACH
\$ 100.00	UNITED WAY OF PERMATA COUNTY, INC.	4047	FE BOX 845 RAVENNA
\$ 1,200.00	UNITED WAY OF SHERIDAN COUNTY	464	F.C. BOX 1260 90 NORTH FRCSPECT AVENUE AKRON
\$ 672.00	UNITED WAY OF THE CAYTON AREA	1404	F.C. BOX 67 CAYTON

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NLFB	ADDRESS	YTD GRANTS
UNITED WAY OF WORCESTER, INC.	1405	P.O. BOX 548 WORCESTER	\$ 4,250.00
UNITED WAY SERVICES	466	1331 EUCLEIA AVENUE CLEVELAND	\$ 351,247.65
UNIVERSAL HEALTH CARE ACTION NETWORK	3068	2800 EUCLEIA AVE. CLEVELAND	\$ 1,150.00
UNIVERSITY CIRCLE, INC.	469	10831 WACHTIA DRIVE CLEVELAND	\$ 3,700.00
UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS OF CLEVELAND	470	11000 EUCLEIA AVE CLEVELAND	\$ 15,300.00
UNIVERSITY OF AKRON	598	DEVELOPMENT DEPT. AKRON	\$ 200.00
UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO	1546	DEVELOPMENT FUND OFFICE 5801 SCLIP ELLIS AVENUE CHICAGO	\$ 100.00
UNIVERSITY OF CINCINNATI FOUNDATION	2676	PC 193713 DEVELOPMENT OFFICE CINCINNATI	\$ 200.00
UNIVERSITY OF MARYLAND FOUNDATION, INC.	471	5401 WILKENS AVENUE BALTIMORE	\$ 300.00
UNIVERSITY OF MIAMI	1296	P. O. BOX 248122 CORAL GABLES	\$ 250.00
UNIVERSITY OF MICHIGAN	1321	P.O. BOX 966 ANN ARBOR	\$ 6,050.00
UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA FOUNDATION	472	120 WEFFEL FALL MINNEAPOLIS	\$ 250.00
UNIVERSITY OF NORTH CAROLINA	2311	600 NOME PLAZA #332-A CHAPEL HILL	\$ 300.00
UNIVERSITY OF PITTSBURGH	1770	OFFICE OF DEVELOPMENT 4200 FIFTH AVENUE PITTSBURGH	\$ 300.00

ENDOWMENT/PHILANTHROPIC SYSTEM
 CLEVELAND FEDERATION
 GRANTS FROM PHILANTHROPIC FUNDS
 FROM 07/01/98 TO 03/31/99

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION NAME ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP

AMOUNT	DATE	GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NAME	ADDRESS	CITY	STATE	ZIP
100.00		UNIVERSITY OF SCRIP CLIFTON EDUCATION, INC.	4232	12901 ERLICE E. CUMS BLVD RCC 50 TAPPA	FL	33612	
2,000.00		UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA	474	UNIVERSITY PARK LOS ANGELES	CA	90024	
5,000.00		UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS SYSTEM CANCER CENTER	2279	1515 POLLOCK BLVD. HOUSTON	TX	77030	
15,000.00		UNIVERSITY OF THE ARTS	3142	320 SCURT ERECT STREET PHILADELPHIA	PA	19102	
300.00		UNIVERSITY OF VERMONT	1502	411 MAIN STREET BURLINGTON	VT	05401	
600.00		UNIVERSITY OF MICHIGAN FOUNDATION	2430	F C BOX 8860 MICHIGAN	MI	48106	
355,500.00		UNIVERSITY SCHOOL	475	2705 SCF CENTER BLDG MOUNTAIN VIEW	OH	44022	
1,000.00		UNIVERSITY SETTLEMENT	2428	4800 ERFORD AVE CLEVELAND	OH	44127	
25,000.00		UNIVERSITY SUREBAN HEALTH CENTER FOUNDATION	1815	1611 S. GREEN RD. SUITE 200 CLEVELAND	OH	44121	
1,000.00		URBAN LAND FOUNDATION	477	1025 THOMAS JEFFERSON ST N.W. SUITE 500 N WASHINGTON	DC	20007	
1,000.00		RESURINE ACADEMY OF CLEVELAND	2399	2600 LANTER BL. CLEVELAND	OH	44124	
2,000.00		RESURINE COLLEGE	479	2550 LANTER BLDG CLEVELAND	OH	44124	
100.00		US ISRAEL WOMEN TO WOMEN, INC.	3354	275 SEVENTH AVE, 8TH FL NEW YORK	NY	10001	
1,000.00		VERBENT ORGANIZATION FOR JEWISH EDUCATION - LDBAVITCH	2025	317 MAPLE ST. BURLINGTON	VT	05401	

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION NAME ADDRESS

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NAME	ADDRESS	YIC GRANTS
VISIONS FOR YOUTH	2250	1501 EURLIN AVE., BLDG 22C CLEVELAND OH 44115	500.00
VISITING NURSE ASSOCIATION OF CLEVELAND	1252	2500 E 22ND ST. CLEVELAND OH 44115	200.00
VOCATIONAL GUIDANCE SERVICES	403	2235 EAST 55TH STREET CLEVELAND OH 44103	6,100.00
VICICES FOR ILLINIS CHILDREN	4310	208 S. LISALLE ST, A155C CHICAGO IL 60604	500.00
VOLUNTEERS OF AMERICA	465	3 BRICKVILLE COMMONS 8221 BRICKVILLE RD CLEVELAND OH 44131	100.00
WARRENSVILLE CENTER SYNAGOGUE	458	1508 WARRENSVILLE CENTER RD CLEVELAND OH 44121	3,550.00
WASHINGTON AND LEE UNIVERSITY ALUMNI INC.	3141	DEVELOPMENT OFFICE LEXINGTON VA 22450	100.00
WASHINGTON INSTITUTE FOR NEAR EAST POLICY	2253	1828 L ST. N A105C WASHINGTON DC 20036	11,250.00
WASHINGTON INSTITUTE OF JEWISH LEADERSHIP & VALUES	1425	6101 WENTWORTH RD SUITE 200 RICHMOND VA 23252	1,750.00
WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY	639	CAMPUS BOX 1062 ONE EFFINGHAM LN ST. LOUIS MO 63130	1,350.00
WAYNE STATE UNIVERSITY	2153	5475 MCCORMACK DETROIT MI 48202	700.00
WELFARE LAB CENTER, INC.	1461	275 SEVENTH AVE SUITE 1205 NEW YORK NY 10001	150.00
WELLESLEY COLLEGE	486	WELLESLEY WELLESLEY MA 02151	6,155.00
PESLEYAN UNIVERSITY	487	WILMINGTON WILMINGTON CT 06495	1,500.00

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	TYPE	ADDRESS	170 GRANTS
WEST SIDE ECUMENICAL MINISTRY	1177	5205 CETFICIT AVE CLEVELAND	225.00
WESTERN RESERVE ACADEMY	488	15 COLLEGE ST HUCSCA	41,600.00
WESTERN RESERVE HISTORICAL SOCIETY	459	10825 EAST ELYC. CLEVELAND	1,650.00
RESIDICE INDUSTRIAL RETENTION AND EXPANSION NETWORK	4431	6516 CETFICIT AVE SUITE 3 CLEVELAND	2,400.00
WHEELOCK COLLEGE	1060	200 RIVERWAY ECSTCA	1,250.00
WHITNEY MUSEUM OF AMERICAN ART	1008	945 MADISON AVE. NEW YORK	54,638.00
WIGS FOR KIDS, INC.	4325	21330 CENTER RIDGE RD SUITE C CLEVELAND	100.00
WILDFNESS SOCIETY	491	900 SEVENTEENTH ST. NW WASHINGTON	5,600.00
WILCOCK SCHOOL, INC.	3710	F C BOX 9290 ASPEN	675.00
WILLIAM FANCOLPH ELEMENTARY SCHOOL PARENT ORGANIZATION	4289	90 MCNTFRC AVE ASHEVILLE	2,000.00
WILSHIRE ECULEVARE TEMPLE	3871	3663 WILSHIRE ELYC LCS ANCELES	500.00
WINEHARC SCHOOL, INC.	2582	7 WINDH/FEC AVE. WHITE PLAINS	20,300.00
MISCOSIA INSTITUTE FOR TORAH STUDY	929	3288 ACFT-LAKE DRIVE MILWAUKEE	600.00
MISTAR INSTITUTE OF ANATOMY AND BIOLOGY	4450	3901 SFFUCE ST PHILADELPHIA	100.00
WCLTRFEE	3756	3735 SE CLFY ST FCRLL/NI	250.00

ENOGRENT/PHILANTHROPIC SYSTEM
CLEVELAND RECEPTEICN
GRANTS FRCP PHILANTHROPIC FUNCS
FRCH 07/01/98 TC 03/31/99

YTD GRANTS

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NUMB	ADDRESS	YTD GRANTS
WCPEN IN NEED, INC.	3797	115 WEST 21ST ST 7TH FL NEW YORK	2,500.00
WCPENS AMERICAN CRT FEDERATION	493	23715 MERCANTILE RCFC BEACHWOOD	2,100.00
WCPENS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION	1465	1836 EURLIC AVENUE SUITE 626 CLEVELAND	1,450.00
WPKR IN NCFHEAST CHIC CCOUNCIL	1409	6200 ROCKSIDE WCCCS BLVD SUITE 300 INDEPENDENCE	2,000.00
WCPENS CIRCLE EDUCATIONAL CENTER	496	1980 SCLT GREEN RCAC CLEVELAND	3,850.00
WCRIC JEWISH CONGRESS AMERICAN SECTION, INC.	1738	F.O. BOX 90400 WASHINGTON	1,650.00
WCRLO UNICN FOR PROGRESSIVE JUCAISM	497	838 FIFTH AVENUE NEW YORK	16,500.00
WCRIC WILDLIFE FUNG, INC.	1123	1250 TWENTY-FOURTH ST. NW WASHINGTON	1,500.00
YAC ELIEZER INC.	1390	1102 EAST 26TH ST. BRCKLYN	360.00
YAC L. ACH-IP FEYLET ISRAEL	500	579 FIFTH AVE R# 1420 NEW YORK	280.00
YALE UNIVERSITY	501	F.O. BOX 1890 NEW HAVEN	3,150.00
YAVNE TEACHERS COLLEGE FOR WOMEN	1553	2470 EIGHTH FC. MICKLIFE	300.00
YESHIVA FAIS YISPEL	4230	268 EAST BRUCKMAN SUITE 301 NEW YORK	6,350.00
YESHIVA CELELA FOR PATRAB INC	2804	25 CECILIA AVE SPRING VALLEY	1,425.00

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION ALPB ADDRESS YTD GRANTS

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	ALPB	ADDRESS	YTD GRANTS
YESHIVA KIARA OF PASSAIC	3880	181 PENNINGTON AVE PASSAIC NJ 07055	\$ 350.00
YESHIVA HAREET TGRAH	1224	1235 EAST 12TH STREET NEW YORK NY 11238	\$ 1,000.00
YESHIVA HIKASAF MELECH	3040	1326 CCEAN PARKWAY BRONX NY 11238	\$ 750.00
YESHIVA CH YISRUEL, INC	3012	6620 TAPPAN FL. FOREST HILLS NY 11374	\$ 1,300.00
YESHIVA TIFRETH TGRAH	634	P.C. BOX 420 75 EAST END AVENUE LAKENOOD NJ 06701	\$ 250.00
YESHIVA TGRAS CHAIN	3696	1170 WILLIAMS ST HELETT NY 11517	\$ 6,000.00
YESHIVA TGRAS CHAIN TALMUDIC SEMINARY	1066	1400 GUITMAN ST. BOX 4067 LEVER CO 02204	\$ 600.00
YESHIVA UNIVERSITY	511	725 CENTRAL RECREC 500 WEST 185TH ST. NEW YORK NY 10032	\$ 10,100.00
YESHIVA CHEFETZ CHAIM, INC.	3420	1648 47TH ST BRONX NY 11204	\$ 200.00
YESHIVA LEVAZ PETACH TIKVAH	1261	37 PARKVILLE AVE BRONX NY 11238	\$ 100.00
YESHIVA HAREGEV, INC.	2062	860 WEST 161 ST. NEW YORK NY 10032	\$ 250.00
YESHIVA KARNETI SHOMRON	2729	SARFA NATL BANK NY 1114 AVE OF AMER AT 42 ST NEW YORK NY 10036	\$ 300.00
YESHIVA ACATZ B'NAI ISRAEL	502	2308 WARENSVILLE CENTER FAC CLEVELAND OH 44118	\$ 500.00
YESHIVA ITI EITZ MOSHE	1815	930 PICKNEY STREET SCRANTON PA 18503	\$ 500.00

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION NAME ADDRESS

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION	NAME	ADDRESS
YIVC INSTITUTE FOR JEWISH RESEARCH, INC.	757	555 WEST 57TH #1100 NEW YORK NY 10019
YF-YMHA OF 92ND STREET	1443	1395 LEXINGTON AVENUE NEW YORK NY 10017
YPCA	4336	BOX 2272 EASTERN SHORE MD 20688
YPCA - WEST PARK - FAIRVIEW	1734	15501 LORAIN AVENUE CLEVELAND OH 44111
YOUNG AUDIENCES OF GREATER CLEVELAND, INC.	1534	10019 WCNCLIA DR CLEVELAND OH 44106
YOUNG AUDIENCES, INC.	1437	115 EAST 92ND STREET NEW YORK NY 10012
YOUNG ISRAEL CF BEACHWOOD	3744	2463 SCURT GREEN RD CLEVELAND OH 44122
YOUNG ISRAEL CF CLEVELAND	538	14141 CECIL ROAD SCURT CLEVELAND OH 44121
YOUNG MEN'S CHRISTIAN ASSOCIATION	507	2200 PERFECT AVENUE CLEVELAND OH 44115
YOUNG MEN'S CHRISTIAN ASSOCIATION OF CLEVELAND, OHIO	508	3101 EULCIE AVENUE SUITE 211 CLEVELAND OH 44115
YOUNG MEN'S CHRISTIAN ASSOCIATION	3757	2200 N. LORAIN PLAZA RD SUITE 102 WEST FARM BEACH CLEVELAND OH 44105
YOUTH CHALLENGE	3759	4320 W. 220 ST CLEVELAND OH 44122
YOUTH OPPORTUNITIES UNLIMITED	859	2000 E. 5TH ST SUITE 820 CLEVELAND OH 44115
ZETA BETA TAU FOUNDATION	1787	1505 WINCHESTER RD SUITE 101 INCIPANNACLI IS OH 44222

RECEIPT NAME - RECEIPT 1

RECEIPT DATE - 07/08/99

ENDORSEMENT/PHILANTHROPIC SYSTEM
CLEVELAND RECEIPT
GRANTS FROM PHILANTHROPIC FUNDS
TRCP 07/01/99 IC 03/31/99

GRANTEE ORGANIZATION

ALPC

ADDRESS

YTD GRANTS

ZIV TEEKAT FUND, INC.

563

384 MYCINAC AVE

1 NJ 07041

2,100.00

TOTAL

32,640.96

Grants From 4/1/99 → 6/30/99 (see p.1-14 attached)

22,768,072.66

Total Grants

55,409,036.68

ACCESS TO THE ARTS
 ACHIEVEMENT CENTER FOR CHILDRE
 ACLU FOUNDATION
 ACLU FOUNDATION,INC.
 ACLU OF OH FDTN INC
 ACLU OF OHIO FOUNDATION,INC.
 ADAS ISRAEL CONGREGATION
 ADLER FAMILY FOUNDATION
 AGNON SCHOOL
 AGUDATH ISRAEL OF AMERICA, INC
 AGUDATH ISRAEL OF CLEVELAND
 AIDS ACTION FOUNDATION
 AISH HATORAH OF CLEVELAND
 AKIVA HIGH SCHOOLS
 AKRON ART MUSEUM
 AKRON JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERAT
 ALLIED JEWISH FED DENVER
 ALZHEIMERS DISEASE ASSOC
 AM FRDS OPEN UNIV ISRAEL
 AMER ASSN BEN GURION UNIV
 AMER ASSOC BEN GURION UNIV OF
 AMER ASSOC ROYAL ACADEMY TRUST
 AMER COMM WEIZMANN INST
 AMER COMM WEIZMANN INSTITU
 AMER FRDS ATERET COHANIM
 AMER FRDS BET EL YESHIVA
 AMER FRDS HEBRON YESHIVA
 AMER FRDS ISRAEL MUSEUM
 AMER FRDS KIRYAT CHINUCH
 AMER FRDS TEL AVIV UNV
 AMER FRIENDS OF YESHIVA DMIR I
 AMER PARKINSON DISEASE
 AMER RED MAGEN DAVID ISRL
 AMER SOC TECHNION ISRAEL
 AMERICAN BAR FOUNDATION

250 00
 5,250 00
 250 00
 500 00
 12,250 00
 1,700 00
 500 00
 384 00
 22,875 00
 10,000 00
 140 00
 76,500 00
 3,300 00
 125 00
 1,500 00
 3,000 00
 1,050 00
 2,750 00
 100 00
 150 00
 1,000 00
 500 00
 501,500 00
 0 00
 100 00
 180 00
 1,000 00
 3,000 00
 2,000 00
 500 00
 200 00
 100 00
 50,000 00
 400,000 00
 250 00

8,950 00
 200 00
 3,000 00
 250 00
 1,800 00
 1,000 00
 2,150 00
 7,975 00
 250 00
 28,000 00
 250 00
 3,000 00
 2,650 00
 25,000 00
 10,000 00
 100 00
 2,000 00
 750 00
 4,700 00
 1,000 00
 100 00
 100 00
 10,000 00
 15,000 00
 750 00
 75,000 00
 1,125 00
 1,000 00
 600 00
 5,000 00
 100 00
 1,050 00
 37,600 00
 600 00
 2,850 00
 500 00

AMERICAN CANCER SOCIETY
 AMERICAN CANCER SOCIETY
 AMERICAN CANCER SOCIETY
 AMERICAN DIABETES ASSOCIATION
 AMERICAN FRIENDS OF SHALVA ISR
 AMERICAN FRIENDS OF THE MANCHE
 AMERICAN HEART ASSOCIATION
 AMERICAN JEWISH COMMITTEE
 AMERICAN JEWISH CONGRESS
 AMERICAN JEWISH HISTORICAL SOC
 AMERICAN LUNG ASSOCIATION
 AMERICAN O R T FEDERATION
 AMERICAN RED CROSS
 AMERICANS FOR OXFORD, INC.
 AMHERST COLLEGE
 AMNESTY INTERNATIONAL U. S. A.
 ANDERSON RANCH ART FOUNDATION
 ANGELS OF CHARITY, INC.
 ANTI-DEFAMATION LEAGUE
 ANTI-DEFAMATION LEAGUE
 APPLEWOOD CENTERS, INC.
 ARTHRITIS FOUNDATION
 ARTHUR I. MEYER JEWISH ACADEMY
 ASPEN BALLET COMPANY AND SCHO
 ASPEN BUDDY PROGRAM, INC.
 ASPEN FOUNDATION
 ASPEN HISTORICAL SOCIETY
 AUTO FDTN AFTERMARKET INC
 BAR ILAN UNIVERSITY OF ISRAEL
 BARD COLLEGE
 BEECH BROOK
 BELLEFAIRE
 BELLEFAIRE JCB
 BELFLOWER CTR PRV CHLAB
 BENJAMIN ROSE INSTITUTE
 BETAR EDUCATIONAL YTH ORG

500 00
700 00
10,600 00
4,000 00
100 00
5,000 00
7,450 00
350 00
100 00
1,350 00
400 00
6,000 00
250 00
1,970 00
350 00
64,100 00
26,450 00
200 00
500 00
11,000 00
800 00
25,575 00
1,650 00
250 00
1,200 00
2,100 00
86,150 00
1,200 00
450 00
1,000 00
207,050 00
3,200 00
600 00
2,400 00
6,220 00
18,750 00

CITY CLUB FORUM FOUNDATION
CITY LIGHTS YOUTH THEATRE, INC
CLEVE CTR FOR CONT ART
CLEVE HTS UNIV HTS SCH FD
CLEVE INTERNAL PROGRAM
CLEVE PERFORMANCE ART
CLEVE SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM
CLEVE SOCIETY CONT ART
CLEVE ST UNIV FDTN INC
CLEVELAND #30 TRUE SISTERS NUR
CLEVELAND ARTISTS FOUNDATION
CLEVELAND BALLET
CLEVELAND BOARD OF EDUCATION
CLEVELAND BOTANICAL GARDEN
CLEVELAND CHAMBER MUSIC SOCIET
CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION
CLEVELAND COLLEGE OF JEWISH ST
CLEVELAND DEVELOPMENT FOUNDATI
CLEVELAND EYE BANK, INC.
CLEVELAND FILM SOCIETY
CLEVELAND FOODBANK, INC.
CLEVELAND FOUNDATION
CLEVELAND GRAND PRIX CHARITIES
CLEVELAND HEARING & SPEECH CEN
CLEVELAND INSTITUTE OF ART
CLEVELAND INSTITUTE OF MUSIC
CLEVELAND MUSEUM OF ART
CLEVELAND MUSEUM OF NATURAL HI
CLEVELAND MUSIC SCHOOL SETTLEM
CLEVELAND POPS ORCHESTRA
CLEVELAND PUBLIC RADIO
CLEVELAND PUBLIC THEATRE
CLEVELAND RAPE CRISIS CENTER
CLEVELAND SIGNSTAGE THEATRE, I
CLEVELAND SOCIETY FOR THE BLIN
CLEVELAND TOMORROW

CLEVELAND WORKS, INC.
 CLEVELAND ZOOLOGICAL SOCIETY
 COALITION ADVANCEMENT JEWISH E
 COATS FOR KIDS - CLEVELAND
 COLUMBIA UNIVERSITY
 COMBINED JEWISH PHIL
 COMMISSION ON CEMETERY PRESERV
 COMMITTEE FOR PUBLIC ART
 COMMUNITY TORAH CENTER SYNAGOG
 COMMUNITY TV FDTN OF FL
 COMPASSION IN DYING
 COMPUTERS ASSISTING PEOPLE INC
 CONGREGATION BETH AM
 CONGREGATION BETHANYU
 CONGREGATION KEHILATH JESHURUN
 CONGREGATION MAALOS HATORAH, I
 CONGREGATION SHAREY TIKVAH
 CONGREGATION TORAH U'TEFILAH
 CONGREGATION ZICHRON CHAIM
 CONSERVATION INTERNATIONAL
 CORNELL UNIVERSITY
 COUNCIL GARDENS
 CREATIVE EDUCATION INSTITUTE,
 GROHNS AND COLTIS FDT AM
 CUYAHOGA COMMUNITY COLLEGE
 CWRU ELDRD THEATRE
 DALTON SCHOOL
 DC JCC
 DC PRISONERS LEGAL SERVICES PR
 DIABETES ASSOCIATION
 DOCTORS WITHOUT BORDERS USA, I
 DRESS FOR SUCCESS CLEVELAND
 DRISHA INST JEWISH EDUC
 DUNHAM TAVERN MUSEUM
 EAST CLEVELAND COMMUNITY THEAT
 ECHO NAT JSH INST FOR HTH

100 00
 550 00
 1,000 00
 500 00
 1,000 00
 1,000 00
 1,000 00
 500 00
 150 00
 10,000 00
 120 00
 100 00
 5,000 00
 1,050 00
 1,150 00
 1,800 00
 200 00
 1,500 00
 2,250 00
 2,000 00
 25,000 00
 2,500 00
 650 00
 500 00
 200 00
 2,500 00
 250 00
 25,000 00
 35,000 00
 10,000 00
 500 00
 100 00
 180 00
 5,000 00
 15,000 00
 500 00

EDUC TV ASSOCIATION
 EDUCATORS FOR SOCIAL RESPONSIB
 EIRGUN BARUCH UMARPEH
 EL BARRIO, INC.
 ENDMT DEMOCRACY E EUROPE
 EVEREN FOUNDATION
 EYE HOPES FOUNDATION
 F.H.C. HOUSING CORPORATION
 FAIRMOUNT TEMPLE
 FAIRVIEW FOUNDATION
 FAMILIES AGAINST MANDATORY MIN
 FDTN AMER SOCY ASSOC EXEC
 FDTN WORLDWIDE MERCY
 FL PHILHARMONIC ORCHESTRA
 FLORIDA STUDIO THEATRE INC.
 FLORIDA WEST COAST SYMPHONY, I
 FRDS CLEVE PUBLIC LIBRARY
 FREE MEDICAL CLIN GR CLEV
 FRESH AIR FUND
 FRIENDS OF THE AARON GARBER LI
 FRIENDS OF THE I D F
 FRIENDS OF YEMIN ORDE, INC.
 FUCHS BET SEFER MIZRACHI
 GEORGETOWN DAY SCHOOL, INC.
 GESHER FOUNDATION, INC.
 GESTALT INSTITUTE CLEVE
 GOLDEN AGE CTRS GTRR CLEV
 GREAT LAKES THEATER FESTIVAL
 GREATER CLEVELAND COMMUNITY SH
 GREATER MIAMI JEWISH FEDERATIO
 GREATER WAYNE COUNTY FOUNDATIO
 GREEN ROAD SYNAGOGUE
 GRT LAKES SCIENCE CTR
 HABITAT FOR HUMANITY
 HABONIM DROR FOUNDATION, INC.
 HADASSAH

5,040 00
 2,500 00
 200 00
 50,000 00
 500 00
 1,000 00
 2,500 00
 8,500 00
 63,326 00
 200 00
 250,000 00
 100 00
 750 00
 30,000 00
 100 00
 1,100 00
 100 00
 2,900 00
 100 00
 900 00
 100 00
 11,000 00
 31,330 00
 1,000 00
 4,635 00
 2,450 00
 2,750 00
 575 00
 500 00
 3,334 00
 8,375 00
 3,100 00
 100 00
 200 00
 3,500 00

175 00
2,500 00
250 00
2,600 00
1,000 00
500 00
1,000 00
30,283 00
63,130 00
1,000 00
150 00
2,680 00
1,615 00
1,200 00
100 00
100 00
100 00
100 00
350,000 00
10,000 00
300 00
400 00
1,100 00
1,000 00
100 00
200 00
365 00
1,000 00
100 00
250 00
28,237 50
35,105 00
8,400 00
12,500 00
100 00
1,800 00
5,000 00

HADASSAH
HANNA PERKINS SCHOOL
HARD HATTED WOMEN
HARVARD COLLEGE FUND
HARVARD LAW SCHOOL ASSOCIATION
HARVARD UNIVERSITY
HATHAWAY BROWN SCHOOL
HAWKEN SCHOOL
HEBREW ACADEMY OF CLEVELAND
HEBREW FREE LOAN ASSOCIATION
HELP FOUNDATION, INC.
HERITAGE HOUSE INC.
HILLEL FDTN JEWISH CAMPUS
HIRAM HOUSE
HOLDEN ARBORETUM
HOPEWELL INN
HUNGER NETWORK OF GREATER CLEV
INFACT
INTERNATIONAL LEUKEMIA ORGANIZ
INTL RESCUE COMMITTEE
INTL SOCIETY YAD VASHEM
ISRAEL CHILDREN'S CENTERS
J A S A
JAFA INSTITUTE
JCC ASSOC OF NORTH AMER
JCF SAN FRANCISCO
JERUSALEM FOUNDATION, INC.
JEWISH CENTER FOR SPECIAL EDUC
JEWISH COMM RETIREE ASSOC
JEWISH COMMUNITY CENTER
JEWISH DAY SCL SCHECHTER
JEWISH EDUC CTR OF CLEVE
JEWISH EDUC SERV OF NO AM
JEWISH FAMILY SERVICE ASSOCIAT
JEWISH FED GRTR NEW ORLNS
JEWISH FED OF DETROIT

JEWISH FED OF METRO CHIC
 JEWISH FED OF PALM BEACH
 JEWISH FEDERATION OF COLLIER C
 JEWISH FUND FOR JUSTICE
 JEWISH LEARNING CONNECTION
 JEWISH NATIONAL FUND
 JEWISH SOCIAL SERVICE AGENCY
 JEWISH THEOLOGICAL SEM
 JOHN CARROLL UNIVERSITY
 JUNIOR ACHIEVEMENT, INC.
 JUVENILE DIABETES FOUNDATION
 KENT STATE UNIVERSITY FOUNDATI
 KAREN OR, INC.
 KAREN YEHOSHUA V'ISROEL, INC.
 KESHET OF WISCONSIN, INC.
 KIRYAT TELZ STONE, INC.
 KOL ISRAEL FOUNDATION INC.
 KOLLEL BNEI YESHIVAS
 KOLLEL LE MECHANIM YAD
 LAKE CHAMPLAIN MARITIME MUSEUM
 LANDON SCHOOL CORPORATION
 LAUREL SCHOOL
 LAW ENFORCEMENT FOUNDATION, IN
 LIGHT OF HEARTS VILLA
 LIMUD LEARNING CENTER OF CENTE
 MAKE-A-WISH OF NORTHEAST OHIO,
 MALACHI HOUSE INC
 MARCH OF DIMES BIRTH DEFECTS F
 MASSACHUSETTS HISTORICAL SOCIE
 MASSACHUSETTS INST TECH
 MATAN B'SAYSER, INC.
 MAXIMUM DANCE COMPANY
 MAZON, INC.
 MEISEL FAMILY FOUNDATION
 MEM SLOAN KETTERING CANCR
 MENORAH PARK FOUNDATION

500 00
 8,600 00
 4,100 00
 250 00
 5,100 00
 15,625 00
 3,670 00
 5,500 00
 8,000 00
 750 00
 6,500 00
 25,350 00
 500 00
 63,200 00
 5,000 00
 360 00
 6,350 00
 7,000 00
 500 00
 500 00
 500 00
 5,000 00
 1,000 00
 100 00
 1,000 00
 1,000 00
 6,500 00
 600 00
 200 00
 5,000 00
 100 00
 12,400 00
 3,000 00
 100 00
 1,795,337 00
 6,000 00
 714,250 00

500 00
2,500 00
500 00
4,500 00
500 00
500 00
1,000 00
100 00
26,550 00
51,000 00
6,750 00
3,650 00
400 00
30,000 00
2,000 00
2,291 00
1,250 00
98,770 00
2,035 00
25,000 00
2,500 00
200 00
1,100 00
100 00
1,575 00
3,000 00
100 00
5,000 00
200 00
2,500 00
5,000 00
500 00
200 00
800 00
7,000 00
250 00
500 00

MERKAZ LECHINUCH TORANI
MESIVTA YESHIVA RABBI CHAIM BE
MESIVTHA TIFERETH JERUSALEM
MIAMI CITY BALLET
MIAMI STINGRAYS GIRLS SOFTBALL
MIAMI UNIVERSITY
MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY
MONTEFIORE FOUNDATION
MOSDOS OHR HATORAH
MOUNT SINAI MEDICAL CENTER, IN
MULTIPLE SCLEROSIS WOMENS COMM
MUSCULAR DYSTROPHY ASSOC
MUSEUM OF CONTEMPORARY ART
MUSEUM OF JEWISH HERITAGE
MUSEUM OF MODERN ART
MUSIC ASSOCIATES OF ASPEN, INC
MUSICAL ARTS ASSOCIATION
NA.AMAT USA
NAHALATH NAFTALI FOUNDATION
NARAL
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF THE DE
NATIONAL COUNCIL OF JEWISH WOM
NATIONAL COUNCIL OF JEWISH WOM
NATIONAL MULTIPLE SCLEROSIS SO
NATIONAL MULTIPLE SCLEROSIS SO
NATIONAL OSTEOPOROSIS FOUNDATI
NATL CNCL MIZRACHI SCH
NATL JSH CTR IMM AND RESP
NATL PARKS CONSERVATION
NATURAL RESORCE DEFENSE COUNC
NATURE CONSERVANCY OHIO CHAPTE
NEAR WEST THEATRE, INC.
NER ISRAEL RABBINICAL COLLEGE,
NESIYA INSTITUTE
NEVE YERUSHALAIM, INC
NEW CLEVELAND OPERA COMPANY

NEW ISRAEL FUND
 NEW ISRAEL FUND
 NEW YORK UNIVERSITY
 NOAM SHABOS
 NORTH CAROLINA SCHOOL OF THE A
 NORTH COAST COMMUNITY HOMES, I
 NORTHERN OHIO CADDIE FOUNDATIO
 NTL PRTNSHIP WOMEN FAMILY
 OBERLIN COLLEGE
 OHEL AVRAHAM
 OHIO CHAMBER BALLET
 OHIO CHAMBER ORCHESTRA
 OHIO FNDT INDEPEN COLLEGE
 OHIO HUMANITIES COUNCIL
 OHIO ISRAEL ECONOMIC INSTITUTE
 OHIO NORTHERN UNIVERSITY
 OHIO SPECIAL OLYMPICS
 OHIO STATE UNIV DVLPMT FD
 OHIO UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION
 OHR SOMAYACH INSTITUTIONS
 OHR SOMAYACH INTERNATIONAL, IN
 OLD STONE FOUNDATION
 OMAHA THEATER COMPANY
 OPERATION OPEN CURTAIN
 ORANGE BOARD OF EDUCATION
 OXFAM OF AMERICA, INC.
 P I A N O
 P M FOUNDATION, INC.
 PALM BEACH CIVIC ASSOCIATION,
 PALM BEACH OPERA, INC.
 PARK SYNAGOGUE
 PARTNERS IN ENDING HUNGER
 PEF ISRAEL ENDOWMENT FUNDS, IN
 PHI BETA KAPPA SOCIETY
 PHILHARMONIC CTR
 PHOENIX COUNTRY DAY SCHOOL

300 00
 1,100 00
 10,450 00
 180 00
 20,000 00
 200 00
 850 00
 350 00
 1,001,000 00
 180 00
 100 00
 11,900 00
 1,000 00
 100 00
 250 00
 OHIO NORTHERN UNIVERSITY
 OHIO SPECIAL OLYMPICS
 OHIO STATE UNIV DVLPMT FD
 OHIO UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION
 OHR SOMAYACH INSTITUTIONS
 OHR SOMAYACH INTERNATIONAL, IN
 OLD STONE FOUNDATION
 OMAHA THEATER COMPANY
 OPERATION OPEN CURTAIN
 ORANGE BOARD OF EDUCATION
 OXFAM OF AMERICA, INC.
 P I A N O
 P M FOUNDATION, INC.
 PALM BEACH CIVIC ASSOCIATION,
 PALM BEACH OPERA, INC.
 PARK SYNAGOGUE
 PARTNERS IN ENDING HUNGER
 PEF ISRAEL ENDOWMENT FUNDS, IN
 PHI BETA KAPPA SOCIETY
 PHILHARMONIC CTR
 PHOENIX COUNTRY DAY SCHOOL

3,000 00
750 00
500 00
2,600 00
4,205 00
100 00
8,850 00
1,200 00
11,050,000 00
2,100 00
250 00
200 00
250 00
250 00
200 00
250 00
100 00
9,000 00
2,500,000 00
1,438 00
2,100 00
5,200 00
5,200 00
250 00
1,020 00
215 00
1,000 00
350 00
25,100 00
20,500 00
500 00
500 00
1,200 00
1,000 00
15,115 00
9,733 00
2,500 00
200 00
5,000 00

PILCHUCK GLASS SCHOOL
PINE CREST PREPATORY SCHOOL, I
PITKIN COUNTY NEIGHBOR TO NEIG
PLANNED PARENTHD CLEVELND
PLANNED PARENTHOOD AMER
PLANNED PARTENHD ARIZONA
PLAYHOUSE SQUARE FOUNDATION
PRETERM CLEVELAND, INC.
PRINCETON UNIVERSITY
PROVIDENCE HOUSE, INC
PSYCHOBIOLOGY CLINIC CLEV
RABBI HARRY H. EPSTEIN SCHOOL,
RABBI TANENBAUM FDTN
RABBINICAL COLLEGE OF TELSHE,
RADCLIFFE COLLEGE
RANSOM EVERGLADES SCHOOL, INC.
RAPID RECOVERY, INC. CLEANLAND
REGENTS UNIV OF MICHIGAN
RETIRED SENIOR VOLUNTEER PROGR
RIVERVIEW SCHOOL, INC.
RONALD MCDONALD HOUSE
SALVATION ARMY & ITS COMPONENT
SAN FRAN CHILD ABUSE PREVENTIO
SANTA BARBARA JEWISH FEDERATIO
SARASOTA OPERA ASSOCIATION, IN
SCULPTURE CENTER
SEEDS OF PEACE, INC.
SEEING EYE, INC.
SEGULA
SEMACH SEDEK R.I.A.S.
SENIOR CITIZEN RESOURCES INC.
SHOAH VISUAL HISTORY FDTN
SIDWELL FRIENDS SCHOOL
SIERRA CLUB LEGAL DEFENSE
SIMON WIESENTHAL CENTER
SITE SANTA FE

SO PALM BEACH JEWISH FED
 SOCIETY OF ISRAEL PHILATELISTS
 SOLOMON R. GUGGENHEIM FOUNDATI
 SOLOMON SCHECHTER DAY SCHOOL,
 ST JUDE CHILDREN RES HOSP
 ST LOUIS HILLEL
 STELLA MARIS, INC.
 STREETSIDE STORIES, INC.
 SUBURBAN SYMPHONY ORCHESTRA
 SUBURBAN TEMPLE
 SUSAN G. KOMEN FOUNDATION, INC
 TALMUDICAL YESHIVA OF PHILADEL
 TEMPLE EMANUEL
 TEMPLE ISRAEL OF HOLLYWOOD
 TEMPLE ISRAEL OF WESTPORT
 TEMPLE SHALOM
 THE ASPEN WRITERS FOUNDATION I
 THE CATHOLIC CHARITIES CORPORA
 THE CITY MISSION
 THE CLEVELAND PLAY HOUSE
 THE GATHERING PLACE
 THE JEWISH OUTREACH CENTER INC
 THE MESORAH HERITAGE FOUNDATIO
 THE NEW MUSEUM
 THE RATNER DAY SCHOOL
 TIFERETH ISRAEL ASSOCIATION TE
 TIFRACH TORAH CENTER
 TORAH INSTITUTE OF BALTIMORE,
 TORAH LIFE INSTITUTE OF CLEVEL
 TRINITY COLLEGE
 TRUSTEES OF TUFTS COLLEGE
 U S COMM SPORTS ISRAEL
 UHCAN
 UJA FEDERATIONS OF NORTH AMERI
 UJAF OF GTR WASHINGTON

300 00
 1,000 00
 4,860 00
 1,000 00
 1,000 00
 110 00
 200 00
 100 00
 500 00
 15,000 00
 250 00
 2,900 00
 150 00
 3,600 00
 2,408 00
 200 00
 100 00
 100 00
 250 00
 100 00
 100 00
 3,500 00
 4,700 00
 200 00
 46,500 00
 2,750 00
 6,900 00
 750 00
 200 00
 3,000 00
 100 00
 100 00
 1,175 00
 500 00
 2,244 00
 50,000 00

100 00
 2,500 00
 100 00
 1,200 00
 1,200 00
 1,200 00
 5,000 00
 200 00
 200 00
 200 00
 500 00
 4,624 00
 412 00
 375 00
 750 00
 50,000 00
 872 00
 850 00
 4,250 00
 83,115 00
 100 00
 52,050 00
 250 00
 100 00
 20,000 00
 100 00
 4,350 00
 362,745 00
 2,000 00
 1,000 00
 3,700 00
 500 00
 100 00
 100 00
 6,000 00
 3,500 00
 3,000 00
 13,500 00

UNION COLLEGE
 UNION OF AMER HEBREW CONG
 UNION OF CONCERNED SCIENTISTS,
 UNION ORTHODOX JEWISH CG
 UNITED CEREBRAL PALSY CUY
 UNITED JEWISH APPEAL
 UNITED NEGRO COLLEGE FUND
 UNITED NEGRO COLLEGE FUND
 UNITED STATES COMMITTEE FOR UN
 UNITED WAY / CRUSADE OF MERCY
 UNITED WAY COMMUNITY SERVICES
 UNITED WAY OF CENTRAL INDIANA,
 UNITED WAY OF CHEROKEE COUNTY
 UNITED WAY OF DADE COUNTY
 UNITED WAY OF THE DAYTON AREA
 UNITED WAY OF WESTPORT
 UNITED WAY OF WOOSTER, INC.
 UNITED WAY SERVICES
 UNIVERSITY CIRCLE, INC.
 UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS OF CLEVEL
 UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO
 UNIVERSITY OF MICHIGAN
 UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA FOUNDA
 UNIVERSITY OF NORTH CAROLINA
 UNIVERSITY OF PA
 UNIVERSITY SCHOOL
 URBAN LEAGUE OF CLEVELAND
 URSULINE COLLEGE
 US HOLOCAUST MEM COUNCIL
 VASSAR COLLEGE
 VOCATIONAL GUIDANCE SERVICES
 W E T A
 WASH INST JEW LEAD VALUES
 WASHINGTON BALLET
 WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY
 WESTERN COLORADO HEALTH NETWORK

The Jewish Community Federation
 Grants from Philanthropic Funds
 4/1/99 - 6/30/99

WESTERN RESERVE ACADEMY	130,450 00
WESTERN RESERVE HISTORICAL SOC	800 00
WHEATON COLLEGE	1,500 00
WHEELOCK COLLEGE	1,000 00
WHITNEY MUSEUM OF AMERICAN ART	83,115 00
WINDWARD SCHOOL, INC.	750 00
WISCONSIN INSTITUTE FOR TORAH	1,650 00
WIZO WOMENS INTNL ZIONIST	1,000 00
WOMEN IN NEED, INC.	6,400 00
WOMEN'S AMERICAN ORT	25,000 00
WOMENS AMERICAN ORT FEDERATION	2,200 00
WORLD JEWISH CONGRESS	1,730 00
WORLD JEWISH CONGRESS	100 00
YAD L. ACHIM PEYLEI ISRAEL	500 00
YALE UNIVERSITY	800 00
YESHIVA HARBOTZAS TORAH	1,200 00
YESHIVA KTANA OF PASSAIC	500 00
YESHIVA MIKDASH MELECH	1,000 00
YMCA - WEST PARK - FAIRVIEW	200 00
YOUNG AUDIENCES OF CLEVE	100 00
YOUNG AUDIENCES, INC.	1,800 00
YOUNG ISRAEL OF BEACHWOOD	3,100 00
YOUNG ISRAEL OF CLEVELAND	1,450 00
YOUNG MENS CHRISTIAN ASSOCIATI	600 00
ZERO POPULATION GROWTH, INC	25,000 00

Total	22,737,517 66
Minus Adjustments and/or Returned Grants - 4/1/99 - 6/30/99	(14,250 00)
Minus Adjustments and/or Returned Grants - 7/1/98 - 3/31/99	44,805 00
Grand Total	22,768,072 66

THE JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION OF CLEVELAND

34-0714445

JUNE 30, 1999

**APPENDIX A-4: CHANGES TO ORGANIZING OR GOVERNING
DOCUMENTS (FORM 990 - LINE 77)**

AMENDED & RESTATED CODE OF REGULATIONS (ADOPTED 12/6/98)

BYLAWS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES (ADOPTED 11/30/98)

COMMITTEES

~~A. General. Unless otherwise provided in the Code of Regulations or these Bylaws, the following rules shall apply generally to Committees of the Corporation:~~

~~1. Each Committee established pursuant to Article 1 of the Code of Regulations~~ PHF0261 10043 96001 DOCS COPY OF BYLAW7RR BH DOC10/15/98

10/12/98

REVISED DRAFT
[ital = moved from current
Code of Regulations]

1 BYLAWS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
2 OF THE JEWISH COMMUNITY
3 FEDERATION OF CLEVELAND

4 Adopted pursuant to Paragraph 3.5.3 of the
5 Amended & Restated Code of Regulations

6 ARTICLE 1: MEETINGS.

7 1.1 *Organizational Meeting.* *An Organizational Meeting of the Board of Trustees for the*
8 *election of Officers and the transaction of such business as may properly come before such Meeting of the*
9 *Board of Trustees shall be held as soon as practicable following the Annual Meeting of Members in each*
10 *year*

11 1.2 *Regular Meetings.* *Regular Meetings of the Board of Trustees (including the*
12 *Organizational Meeting) shall be held at least eight (8) times a year, at such times and places as may be*
13 *fixed by the Board of Trustees or, if no times or places have been fixed by the Board of Trustees, at such*
14 *times and places as may be fixed by the Board Chair*

15 1.3 *Special Meetings.* *Special Meetings of the Board of Trustees may be called by the Board*
16 *Chair and shall be called by the Board Chair or a Board Vice-Chair upon the written request of any ten*
17 *(10) Trustees*

18 1.4 *Notices.* *Not less than three (3) days' written notice shall be given of an Organizational*
19 *or Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees, and not less than one (1) day's notice (which need not be*
20 *written) shall be given of a Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees. Notices of Special Meetings shall*
21 *state the purpose or purposes thereof. The requirements contained in the two preceding sentences are in*
22 *addition to the requirements to send Trustees advance notice as provided in Paragraph 3.5.3 (relating to*
23 *amendment or repeal of Bylaws of the Board of Trustees) of the Amended and Restated Code of*
24 *Regulations ("Code of Regulations") and in Code of Regulations Paragraph 4.2.1 (relating to election of*
25 *Officers).*

26 ARTICLE 2: OFFICERS.

27 2.1 *Authority and Duties.* *The Officers of the Federation shall have such authority and shall*
28 *perform such duties as are customarily incident to their respective offices and such other and further*
29 *duties as may from time to time be required of them by the Trustees.*

30 2.2 *Membership of Board Chair on Committees and Committee Appointment Powers.* *The*
31 *Board Chair shall be an ex officio member of all Committees of the Federation, other than the*
32 *Nominating Committee. The Board Chair shall appoint all Committee Chairs and Committee members,*
33 *except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws or in Committee regulations or procedures*

34 2.3 Vacancies. In the event of a vacancy in any office the duties of the office shall until the
35 vacancy is filled devolve as follows (a) if the vacancy is in the office of the Board Chair his or her
36 duties shall devolve upon one (1) of the Board Vice-Chairs selected by the Board of Trustees and then
37 in the event of a vacancy in any other office the duties of such office shall devolve upon such other Officer
38 selected by the Board of Trustees Each Officer so selected shall act in the office for which he or she is
39 selected until the election of a successor

40 ARTICLE 3: PRESIDENT.

41 3.1 Qualifications. The President shall be the principal full-time employee of the Federation
42 and shall be a person with training and/or experience in community services of the type performed by the
43 Federation

44 3.2 Duties and Authority. The President shall manage and direct the day-to-day affairs and
45 functions of the Federation The President shall supervise the work and duties of other members of the
46 Federation staff according to policies established by the Board of Trustees The President shall
47 coordinate all of his/her work and activities and that of other staff members with the appropriate Officers
48 of the Federation.

49 3.3 Appointment of Other Staff. Subject to the Federation administrative budget approved
50 by the Board, the President is authorized to select, employ, and establish the titles, duties and, except as
51 otherwise provided in Paragraph 4.8 3, compensation of all other employees of the Federation All
52 Federation employees are "at will" employees and serve at the pleasure of the President, subject to
53 policies established by the Board of Trustees and applicable law.

54 3.4 Membership on Board of Trustees and Committees. The President shall be a non-
55 voting member of the Board of Trustees, the Executive Committee, and all other Committees of the
56 Federation. The President may designate a member of the staff to represent him/her at meetings of any
57 committee

58 ARTICLE 4: COMMITTEES OF THE FEDERATION.

59 4.1 Executive Committee.

60 4.1.1 An Executive Committee of the Board of Trustees shall be designated annually at the
61 Organizational Meeting of the Board and shall consist of the following persons

62 (a) The Board Chair, the Board Vice-Chairs, the Treasurer and the Associate
63 Treasurer of the Federation.

64 (b) Past Board Chairs of the Federation and persons who served prior to 1998 as
65 President of the Federation

66 (c) Ten (10) members of the Board of Trustees, who shall be known as Members-at-
67 Large of the Executive Committee and who shall be elected at the organization meeting of the Board of
68 Trustees to serve at the pleasure of the Board; provided, that no person shall serve more than three (3)
69 consecutive years as a Member-at-Large of the Executive Committee

70 (d) The Chair of the Jewish Welfare Fund Campaign, the Chair of the Women's
71 Cabinet, the Chair of the Young Leadership Division and the Chair of each Standing Committee of the
72 Federation

73 4.1.2 The Board Chair of the Federation shall be the Chair of the Executive Committee.

74 4.1.3 Members-at-Large of the Executive Committee shall be elected by the Board of Trustees
75 from a slate presented by the Nominating Committee A vacancy in the Members-at-Large of the

76 Executive Committee between Organizational Meetings shall be filled by appointment by the Board
77 Chair

78 4.1.4 The Executive Committee shall possess only such powers as are delegated to it by the
79 Board of Trustees in these Bylaws or by resolution of the Board of Trustees

80 4.1.5 Members of the Executive Committee present at a meeting shall constitute a quorum but
81 an affirmative vote of at least seven (7) members shall be necessary to approve any action. The Executive
82 Committee shall keep records and accounts of its proceedings and transactions. All action by the
83 Executive Committee shall be reported to the Board of Trustees not later than the next regular Board
84 meeting succeeding such action and shall be subject to control, revision, and alteration by the Board of
85 Trustees, provided that no rights of third persons shall be prejudicially affected thereby

86 4.2 Nominating Committee.

87 4.2.1 A Nominating Committee shall be constituted as soon as practicable after the
88 Organizational Meeting of the Board and shall consist of seventeen (17) members, of whom seven (7)
89 shall be appointed by the Board Chair, one (1) shall be designated by the Chair of each Standing
90 Committee of the Federation (other than its Chair), one (1) shall be designated by the Chair of Women's
91 Cabinet (other than its Chair), and one (1) shall be designated by the Chair of the Young Leadership
92 Division, other than its Chair. The Chair of the Nominating Committee shall be appointed by the Board
93 Chair from among its members. No person may serve as Chair of the Nominating Committee for two
94 years in succession. The Chair of the Nominating Committee shall have the right to vote on all matters

95 4.2.2 The Nominating Committee shall have the responsibility to nominate persons for election
96 as follows

97 (a) Institutional Trustees, Trustees-at-Large and Trustees-for-Life to be elected at the Annual
98 Meetings of the Members. The Nominating Committee shall, prior to reporting to the Board of Trustees
99 any nomination for Institutional Trustee, obtain in writing the name of each person designated for
100 nomination by the Organization or Committee described in Code of the Regulations Paragraph 3 2.1,
101 from whose membership the election is to be made.

102 (b) Members-at-Large of the Executive Committee of the Board of Trustees to be elected at
103 the Organizational Meeting of the Board of Trustees

104 (c) Officers of the Federation to be elected at the Organizational Meeting of the Board of
105 Trustees and, in the event of a vacancy among the Officers between Organizational Meetings, at a
106 meeting of the Board of Trustees.

107 4.2.3 The Nominating Committee shall act by a majority vote of its members. There shall be
108 no voting by proxy. No person may serve more than three (3) consecutive years on the Nominating
109 Committee.

110 4.2.4 In recognition of the transfer of the primary functions of the Delegate Assembly in the
111 year 1981 to the Community Relations Committee, the Nominating Committee shall give special
112 attention to the nomination of ten (10) persons as Trustees-at-Large as recommended by the Community
113 Relations Committee.

114 4.3 Standing Committees. The Standing Committees of the Federation shall be those set
115 forth in Paragraph 4.7. Each Standing Committee shall have such membership as the Board of Trustees
116 shall provide in these Bylaws or by resolution and may consist of Trustees or non-Trustees in whole or in
117 part. Each Standing Committee shall have such powers and perform such duties, not inconsistent with
118 law, the Articles of Incorporation and the Code of Regulations, as may be delegated to it by the Board of
119 Trustees. Except as otherwise specifically provided by the Board of Trustees, the action of all such
120 Committees involving matters of policy shall be submitted to and be subject to the approval of the Board
121 of Trustees

122 4.4 Other Committees. The Board of Trustees may establish such other Committees as it
123 deems desirable by resolutions adopted from time to time and discontinue the same at its pleasure. Each
124 such Committee may consist of Trustees or non-Trustees in whole or in part and shall have such powers
125 and perform such duties, not inconsistent with law, the Articles of Incorporation and the Code of
126 Regulations as may be delegated to it by the Board of Trustees. Vacancies in such other Committees
127 shall be filled as the Board of Trustees may provide. Except as otherwise specifically provided by the
128 Board of Trustees, the action of all such Committees involving matters of policy shall be submitted to and
129 be subject to the approval of the Board of Trustees.

130 4.5 Regulations and Procedures of Committees.

131 4.5.1 Each Committee of the Federation may adopt, subject to the approval of the Board of
132 Trustees, such regulations and procedures for its own conduct and governance as are consistent with the
133 Code of Regulations of this Corporation, these By-laws Bylaws and the powers, duties and purposes of
134 such Committee, including provisions for:

135 a(a) Creation and composition of Subcommittees;

136 b(b) Establishing a class of ~~Honorary Members~~ honorary Committee members and the
137 election of the same, and

138 c(c) Determining the number of ~~persons~~ Committee members who shall constitute a
139 quorum at its meetings, which (unless otherwise provided in the regulations of the Committee) shall not
140 be less than one-third of the ~~Members~~ members of such Committee.

141 ~~2. Members~~ 4.5.2 The members of each Committee (other than ex officio and ~~Honorary~~
142 ~~Members~~) honorary members) shall be appointed by the ~~President of the Corporation~~ Board Chair or by
143 such person, committee or organization and in accordance with such procedures as are provided in these
144 ~~Bylaws or in the Code of Regulations of each such Committee which has been approved (as provided in~~
145 ~~Subparagraph 1 of this Paragraph A).~~ A vacancy in the ~~Membership~~ in these Bylaws or adopted by each
146 Committee pursuant to Paragraph 4.5.1. A vacancy in the membership of a Committee may, until
147 otherwise properly filled by appointment, be filled by the remaining ~~Members~~ members of the
148 Committee. Whenever ~~Members~~ members of a Committee are authorized to be appointed by another
149 ~~committee~~ Committee or organization, the persons so appointed shall be from among members or
150 constituents of the appointing ~~committee~~ Committee or organization.

151 ~~No~~ 4.5.3 Unless otherwise provided in these Bylaws, no person shall serve as a ~~Member~~
152 ~~member~~ of a Committee for more than five consecutive years, provided, however, that this limitation shall
153 not apply to ~~an Officer~~ officers of the a Committee during ~~his term~~ their terms of office, ex officio
154 ~~Members~~ members of the a Committee and ~~Honorary Members~~ of the honorary members of a Committee

155 4.5.4 Except as otherwise provided in the ~~Regulations~~ regulations of the Committee, ex officio
156 ~~Members~~ members and ~~Honorary Members~~ honorary members shall be entitled to vote.

157 ~~3. As provided in the Code of Regulations of this Corporation, the President of the Corporation is~~
158 ~~an ex officio Member of all Committees of the Corporation, other than the Nominating Committee,~~
159 ~~and without further specification in these Bylaws shall serve as such Member in addition to other~~
160 ~~Members of Committees specified in these Bylaws.~~

161

162 4.4.5.5 Officers of each Committee shall be appointed by the ~~President~~ Board Chair of the
163 ~~Corporation~~ Federation from among the ~~Members~~ members of the Committee or by such person or
164 organization ~~and in accordance with such procedures as are provided in these Bylaws or in the Code of~~
165 ~~Regulations of each such Committee which has been approved (as provided in Subparagraph 1 of this~~
166 ~~Paragraph A)~~ designated in the regulations or procedures adopted by each Committee pursuant to

167 Paragraph 4 5 1 No person shall be eligible for re-appointment to the same office if he or she has served
168 in such office for three (3) years or more in succession

169 ~~5.~~ 4.5.6 The ~~Membership~~ membership and ~~Officers~~ officers of each Committee shall be reported
170 to the Board of Trustees

171 ~~B.~~ 4.6 Delegation of Power to Executive Committee.

172 ~~+~~ There is hereby delegated to the Executive Committee the power to act for the Board of Trustees on the
173 following matters between meetings of the Board of Trustees

174 ~~a.~~ 4.6.1 Administrative matters involving the operation of the ~~Corporation's~~ Federation's offices
175 including but not limited to

176 ~~(1)~~(a) The employment of auditors, legal counsel, and other outside help, and to make
177 contracts for same,

178 ~~(2)~~(b) Changes in the ~~Corporation's~~ Federation's retirement program, and

179 ~~(3)~~(c) Action to effectuate or implement policies determined by the Board of Trustees,
180 such as with respect to bank accounts, bank loans, trust agreements, ~~and~~ trust and agency agreements with
181 banks and brokerage accounts

182 4.6.2.

183 ~~b.~~ Budget matters and expenditures of the following types

184 ~~(1)~~(a) Interim, additional, deficit, or emergency appropriations which supplement
185 annual appropriations and which involve less than \$10,000,

186 ~~(2)~~(b) Cash advances to beneficiary agencies against undetermined allocations,

187 ~~(3)~~(c) Transfers from ~~special purpose funds~~ Special Purpose Funds for use for their
188 designated purposes, such authorizations being limited to items of less than \$10,000, and ten thousand
189 dollars (\$10,000), and

190 ~~(4)~~(d) Special purpose allocations up to \$10,000 from Endowment Funds, ten thousand
191 dollars (\$10,000) from Endowment Funds

192 ~~c. Approval of:~~ 4.6.3 Approval of:

193 ~~(1) Community Services Planning Committee actions involving routine agency changes~~
194 ~~which do not involve new expenditures of more than \$2,500 per year,~~

195 ~~(2)~~(a) Welfare Fund Planning Committee and Community Services Planning
196 Committee recommendations denying ~~Corporation~~ Federation support to new agencies,

197 ~~(3) Welfare Fund Planning Committee recommendations for campaigns by beneficiary~~
198 ~~agencies for membership which do not exceed \$50 per year,~~

199 ~~(4)~~(b) Discontinuance of support to a beneficiary agency, where the agency itself has
200 agreed to such discontinuance,

201 ~~(5)~~(c) Applications to foundations or governmental entities for support of ~~experimental~~
202 programs which, in the future, will not involve more than \$5,000 of additional support annually,

203 ~~(6)~~(d) Appointments to the Jewish Welfare Fund Campaign organization, and

204 ~~(7)(e)~~ Receiving requests for co-sponsorship of public events, provided that the Board
205 of Trustees has previously acted favorably at least once on a similar request

206 **d. 4.6.4** To authorize or approve

207 ~~(1)(a)~~ Details of agreements between the ~~Corporation~~ Federation and other
208 organizations for joint ~~undertaking~~ undertakings, after it has been determined by the Board of Trustees
209 that the ~~Corporation~~ Federation will enter into such agreements,

210 ~~(2)(b)~~ Representation of the ~~Corporation~~ Federation in other organizations or groups,
211 such as United Way Services, Federation for Community Planning, Council of Jewish Federations, their
212 successors and other national and local agency boards, committees, and conferences, and

213 ~~(3)(c)~~ Requests by organizations receiving ~~subsidies~~ allocations from the ~~Corporation~~ Federation
214 Federation (i) to give balls, bazaars, fairs or other forms of entertainment for which tickets are offered for
215 sale, (ii) to solicit advertisements or contributions other than permanent endowments and deferred gifts,
216 and (iii) to charge membership fees in excess of ~~\$10~~ ten dollars (\$10) per annum.

217 **e. 4.6.5** To select, as provided in ~~Article IV, Paragraph D of the Code of Regulations of this~~
218 ~~Corporation, Paragraph 2.1:~~

219 ~~(1) The Vice-president~~ (a) The Board Vice-Chair who shall assume the duties of
220 the ~~President~~ Board Chair in the event of a vacancy in that office until such vacancy is filled, and

221 ~~(2)(b)~~ The Officer who shall assume the duties of any office (other than the ~~President~~
222 Board Chair) in the event of a vacancy in such office until such vacancy is filled

223 **f. 4.6.6** Prescribing the date, time and place of the Annual Meeting of Members if not prescribed
224 by the Board of Trustees

225 ~~2. The Executive Committee shall have such~~ 4.6.7 Such other powers as the Board of
226 Trustees shall hereafter from time to time delegate.

227 **C. 4.7** Standing Committees. The following Standing Committees are established

228 4.7.1 Budget Committee.

229 **a. 4.7.1.1** Membership. The Budget Committee shall consist of the following members.

230 ~~(1)(a)~~ six (6) persons appointed by the Community Services Planning Committee,

231 ~~(2)(b)~~ six (6) persons appointed by the Welfare Fund Planning Committee,

232 ~~(3)(c)~~ one (1) person appointed by the Women's Cabinet ~~chair,~~ Chair,

233 ~~(4)(d)~~ one (1) person appointed by the Young Leadership Division's Chair

234 (d) not fewer than thirteen (13) nor more than twenty-seven (27) persons appointed
235 by the ~~President~~ Board Chair of the ~~Corporation,~~ Federation,

236 ~~(5)(e)~~ the immediate past ~~Chairman~~ Chair of the Budget Committee, and

237 ~~(6)(f)~~ the following persons as ex officio ~~Members~~ members: the Treasurer of the
238 Corporation, Federation, the Chairman Chair of the Community Services Planning Committee, the
239 Chairman Chair of the Welfare Fund Planning Committee and the Chairman Chair of the Jewish Welfare
240 Fund Campaign.

241 4.7.1.2 Honorary Members. The Budget Committee may designate ~~Honorary Members~~
242 ~~honorary members~~ of the Committee who upon ~~election~~ designation shall have voting privileges. Unless
243 otherwise specified, the designation of ~~Honorary Member~~ honorary member shall be for one (1) year
244 only

245 4.7.1.3 Eligibility. No employee of the ~~Corporation~~ Federation or of any beneficiary agency
246 receiving a ~~subvention~~ an allocation from the ~~Corporation~~ Federation shall be eligible to serve on the
247 Budget Committee

248 No chief volunteer officer of a beneficiary agency receiving an allocation from the Federation shall be
249 eligible to serve on the Budget Committee with the exception of the immediate past Chair of the Budget
250 Committee. No person shall serve as a ~~Member~~ member of the Budget Committee for more than five (5)
251 consecutive years, provided, however, that this limitation shall not apply to an ~~Officer~~ officers of the
252 Budget Committee during ~~his~~ their term of office, ex officio ~~Members~~ members of the Committee and
253 ~~Honorary Members~~ honorary members of the Committee

254 b. Designation of 4.7.1.4 Officers and Terms. The ~~President~~ Board Chair of the
255 Federation shall appoint the ~~Chairman~~ Chair and may appoint a ~~Vice-chairman~~ Chair or ~~Vice-chairmen~~
256 Chairs of the Budget Committee. The ~~Chairman~~ Chair of the Budget Committee shall serve for not more
257 than three (3) consecutive terms of one (1) year each as ~~Chairman~~ Chair of the Budget Committee. The
258 ~~Vice-chairman~~ or ~~Vice-chairmen~~ A Vice-Chair shall serve for not more than three (3) consecutive terms
259 of one year each as ~~Vice-chairman~~ or ~~Vice-chairmen~~ of the Budget Committee. (1) year.

260 c. 4.7.1.5 General Powers and Duties. The duties of the Budget Committee shall be to
261 consider budgetary requests made of the ~~Corporation~~ Federation and to recommend appropriations
262 directly to the Board of Trustees, to keep informed on the financial status of the ~~Corporation's~~
263 Federation's beneficiary agencies; to maintain controls on the budgets of the local beneficiary agencies,
264 and to consider other appropriate matters relating to the finances of the ~~Corporation~~ Federation and its
265 beneficiary agencies. The Budget Committee shall submit, for study and comment, to the Community
266 Services Planning Committee and to the Welfare Fund Planning Committee its findings covering
267 recommended annual appropriations to local and national agencies. The Community Services Planning
268 Committee and the Welfare Fund Planning Committee may submit their comments and suggestions to the
269 ~~Chairman~~ Chair of the Budget Committee. The ~~Chairman~~ Chair of the Budget Committee will determine
270 whether the comments and suggestions submitted require the attention of the Budget Committee before it
271 submits its recommendations to the Board of Trustees

272 d. 4.7.1.6 Emergency Powers and Duties. Appropriations Grants, appropriations and
273 loans (whether from Endowment Funds of the ~~Corporation~~ Federation or other sources) required to meet
274 critical emergencies affecting the Jewish community of Greater Cleveland or the ~~American~~ national or
275 international Jewish community or to compensate for serious deficits in the ~~Corporation's~~ Federation's
276 income from the Jewish Welfare Fund or the United Way Services shall be initiated ~~in~~ by the Budget
277 Committee. The specific nature of the emergency and the amounts and types of monies needed shall be
278 determined by the Budget Committee. The Budget Committee shall present its recommendations to the
279 Endowment Fund Committee for its comments and suggestions if it recommends a distribution or loan
280 from ~~the~~ Endowment Funds or a loan from other sources secured by Endowment Funds. The
281 recommendations of the Budget Committee, and comments and suggestions of the Endowment Fund
282 Committee as requested, shall be presented to the Board of Trustees for final determination and
283 appropriation. A two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of the ~~Board Members~~ Trustees present shall be required
284 for approval in whole or in part of such recommendations but the Board may not increase the amount
285 recommended for such purposes

286 2. 4.7.2 Marketing and Communications Committee.

287 4.7.2.1 a. Membership. The Marketing and Communications Committee shall consist of
288 twenty-five (25) ~~Members~~, at least one of whom shall be a person members appointed by the ~~Women's~~
289 Cabinet chair, Board Chair

290 **b. 4.7.2.2** Purpose. The Marketing and Communications Committee shall assist the
291 Corporation Federation and its beneficiary agencies in the attainment of their objectives seeking to
292 maintain the flow of communication with the community to foster favorable attitudes in the community
293 toward the Corporation Federation and its beneficiary agencies and to encourage support of and volunteer
294 participation in their work

295 ~~The goals for the Committee are.~~ Marketing and Communications Committee shall oversee market
296 research and marketing strategy planning to help the Federation scientifically learn more about the
297 community and messages and venues to reach it

298 **(4) 4.7.2.3** Goals. The goals for the Marketing and Communications Committee are

299 (a) To guide the efforts of informing Federation membership, the overall Jewish
300 community, and the general community about Federation activities and Federation positions on important
301 Jewish issues

302 (2)(b) To serve as an advocate to the community of Federation activities and positions
303 on issues.

304 (3)(c) To facilitate response from the Jewish community, particularly about community
305 needs

306 (4)(d) To help maintain the inherent unity of the Cleveland Jewish community and seek
307 consensus, while encouraging democratic process.

308 (5)(e) To identify all appropriate print, electronic, and other media, and to use them
309 most effectively

310 (6)(f) To determine the optimal time for release of information.

311 **c. 4.7.2.4** Officers and Terms of Office. The Marketing and Communications
312 Committee's Officers officers shall consist of a Chairperson Chair and Vice-chairperson Chair to be so
313 designated appointed by the President Board Chair from among the Members members of the Committee
314 The Chairperson Chair and Vice-chairperson Chair of the Committee shall not be eligible for re-
315 appointment to the same office if he or she has served in that office for three years or more in succession
316 Past chairpersons Chairs of the Communications Committee will serve as Honorary Members honorary
317 members of the Committee with full voting privileges following their retirement

318 **3. 4.7.3** The Community Relations Committee ("CRC").

319 **4.7.3.1 a.** Membership. The CRC shall consist of the following Members: members

320 (1)(a) Thirty-six (36) persons appointed by the President of the Corporation, Board
321 Chair of the Federation,

322 (2) Former Chairpersons (b) Former CRC Chairs.

323 (3) One (c) One (1) person appointed by each of the Women's Cabinet chair of
324 Chair, the Young Leadership Division Chair, the Jewish Community Federation, Jewish Community
325 Center, Workmen's Circle, Center of Cleveland, the Workmen's Circle, the Greater Cleveland Board of
326 Rabbis and the Orthodox Rabbinical Council.

327 (4) Two (d) Two (2) persons appointed by the local chapter of each of the following
328 agencies organizations: American Jewish Committee, American Jewish Congress, Anti-Defamation
329 League of B'nai B'rith, Hadassah, Jewish Labor Committee, Jewish War Veterans of the U.S.A., National
330 Council of Jewish Women-Cleveland Section, and Women's American ORT, and Union of American

331 Hebrew Congregations Such persons shall be appointed annually by the local chapters of their respective
332 agencies, organizations

333 ~~(5)~~ 4.7.3.2 Designation of Additional Members. Additional organizations may be
334 authorized by the CRC to designate ~~Members~~ members of the CRC if in the judgment of the CRC they
335 fulfill the following criteria

336 (a) the ~~on-going~~ ongoing interests, goals, and active programs of such organizations
337 include a broad spectrum of community relations affairs,

338 (b) such organizations have a significant numerical constituency within the Jewish
339 community,

340 (c) such organizations have an appropriate organizational structure to provide for
341 ongoing community relations activities, and

342 (d) such organizations preferably have specific staff responsibilities assigned to
343 community relations affairs,

344 If the CRC determines that an additional organization meets such criteria, and authorizes such
345 organizations to designate ~~Members~~ members, those organizations affiliated with the NICRAG Jewish
346 Council on Public Affairs shall be entitled to designate two (2) ~~Members~~ members each, and
347 organizations not so affiliated shall be entitled to designate one (1) ~~Member~~ member each.

348 b. 4.7.3.3 Purpose. The purpose of the CRC is to centralize the direction and control of,
349 and to carry out, a unified program of community relations for the Jewish community of the Cleveland
350 metropolitan area

351 ~~c. Officers. The Officers of the Committee shall be a Chairperson, and two Vice Chairpersons~~

352 4.7.3.4 Officers and Terms of Office. The officers of the CRC shall be a Chair and two (2)
353 Vice-Chairs They shall be elected in accordance with the CRC regulations from among the current or
354 former ~~Members~~ members of the Committee The term of office of the ~~Officers~~ officers of the
355 ~~Committee~~ CRC shall be for one (1) year or until their successors have been appointed or elected No
356 ~~Member~~ member shall serve more than three (3) consecutive years in the same office

357 4. 4.7.4 The Community Services Planning Committee ("CSPC").

358 4.7.4.1 a. Membership. The CSPC shall consist of the following ~~Members~~ members:

359 ~~(1)~~ (a) Two (2) persons appointed by each of the following beneficiary or local affiliated
360 agencies

361 Bellefaire Jewish Children's Bureau ~~B'nai B'rith Hillel Foundation~~

362 ~~B'nai B'rith Youth Organization~~ The Cleveland College of Jewish Studies

363 Council Gardens

364 ~~Hebrew Free Loan Association~~ Cleveland Hillel Foundation, Incorporated

365 Hebrew Shelter Home

366 ~~Jewish Children's Bureau~~

367 ~~Jewish Children's Group Home~~

368 Jewish Community Center of Cleveland

369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386
387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402

Jewish Family Service Association of Cleveland, Inc.

Menorah Park Center for the Aging

The Montefiore Home

Cleveland Section National Council of Jewish Women

(b) One (1) person appointed by each of the following local affiliated agencies

B'nai B'rith Youth Organization

Council Gardens

The Hebrew Free Loan Association

Jewish Community Housing, Inc

~~Jewish Convalescent and Rehabilitation Center~~

~~Jewish Education Center of Cleveland~~

~~Jewish Family Service Association~~

~~Jewish Vocational Service~~

~~Menorah Park Jewish Home for Aged~~

~~Montefiore Home~~

~~Mt. Sinai Medical Center~~

~~National Council of Jewish Women - Cleveland Section, and~~

True Sisters Day Care

The President of each local (c) The Chief Volunteer and/or Chief Professional Officer
of each agency entitled to Membership membership on the Committee CSPC shall be one of its
appointees, unless any such agency shall instead appoint another officer or member of its governing board
and so advise advises the Corporation Federation in writing.

~~(2) Four (4)(d) Six (6) persons appointed by the Bureau of Jewish Education Center of~~
Cleveland. one (1).

~~(a) one~~ of whom shall be its ~~President~~ Chief Volunteer Officer, unless it shall instead
appoint another officer or member of its governing board and so advise the ~~Corporation~~ Federation in
writing, and ~~five (5)(b) two~~ of whom shall be prominently identified with various Jewish communal
schools The communal schools represented shall be ~~related~~ rotated so that each school, consistent with
its size, shall be represented from time to time.

~~(3)(e)~~ Thirty (30) persons elected by the CSPC from the community at large upon
nomination by a ~~Nominating Committee~~ nominating committee of five (5) persons appointed annually by
the ~~Chairman~~ Chair of the CSPC.

~~(4)(f)~~ One (1) person appointed by the ~~Women's Cabinet chair~~

~~(5) Past Chairmen of the CSPC.~~

403
404
405
406
407
408
409
410
411
412
413
414
415
416
417
418
419
420
421
422
423
424
425
426
427
428
429
430
431
432
433
434
435
436
437
438
439
440
441

~~(6) Chairman of the Commission on Services to Older Pa~~

~~(7) Two (2) appointed by the Chairman of the CSPC.~~

(8) Women s Cabinet Chair

(g) The (1) person appointed by the Young Leadership Division Chair

(h) The Past Chair of the CSPC

(i) Two (2) persons appointed by the Chair of the CSPC

(j) Such persons as the ~~Committee has elected to Honorary Membership.~~ CSPC has elected to honorary membership

~~**b. Officers. The Officers of the Community Services Planning Committee shall be a Chairman, and two Vice chairmen**~~ **4.7.4.2 Officers.** The officers of the CSPC shall be a Chair and two (2) Vice-Chairs who shall perform the functions usually associated with their office. The Chairman and Vice-chairmen shall be elected from among the lay Members of the CSPC. The Officers shall be elected by vote at a CSPC meeting scheduled no later than two (2) months after the Federation Annual Meeting such office. The Chair and Vice-Chairs shall be elected in accordance with the CSPC regulations from among the lay members of the CSPC.

c. 4.7.4.3 Purposes and Powers. The purposes and powers of the ~~Committee~~ CSPC shall be:

(1)(a) To act as the social planning arm of the ~~Corporation~~ Federation in the local community, to conduct research and to study the needs of the Jewish community in the fields of health, welfare and education,

(2)(b) To observe and evaluate the functioning of the beneficiary agencies operating in such fields,

(3)(c) To foster mutual understanding and ready cooperation among such agencies themselves and between such agencies and the rest of the community,

(4)(d) To seek improved ways and means of meeting community needs, both currently and prospectively,

(5)(e) To make recommendations to the Board of Trustees with reference to the above,

(6)(f) To recommend to the Board of Trustees which local agencies shall ~~have,~~ pursuant to be designated as beneficiary or affiliated agencies and which such agencies shall be specified in the Code of Regulations of this Corporation, as having the right to designate a nominee for the Board of Trustees, and election as an Institutional Trustee, and

(7)(g) To recommend to the Board of Trustees that these Bylaws be amended so that local organizations, not currently entitled to representation on the ~~Committee~~ CSPC may be so represented

5. 4.7.5 The Endowment Fund Committee.

a. 4.7.5.1 Membership. The Endowment Fund Committee shall consist of up to ~~35~~ thirty-five (35) members-at-large appointed by the ~~President which shall include the Chairpersons~~ Board Chair, the Chairs of the Budget Committee, the Community Services Planning Committee, and the Finance and Investment Committee as ex officio, members and the in addition of any

442 additional ~~Honorary Members~~ any honorary members elected for life by the Endowment Fund Committee
443 and approved by the President of the Federation, Board Chair

444 **b. 4.7.5.2 Powers and Duties.** The duties of the Endowment Fund Committee shall be (i)
445 to guide a program to build up Endowment Funds, ~~designated as such~~ and other capital funds by
446 bequests lifetime gifts, trust funds and supporting foundations and by such other means as it shall from
447 time to time devise. ~~The Endowment Fund Committee shall~~, and (ii) to initiate recommendations with
448 respect to grants appropriations and loans from, or loans secured by, Endowment Funds for purposes
449 other than the emergencies described in Paragraph 4 7 1 6 under the jurisdiction of the Budget Committee
450 ~~as described in Sub-paragraph 1.c. of this Paragraph~~ Such recommendations of the Endowment Fund
451 Committee shall be submitted to the Board of Trustees A two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of the Board
452 ~~Members~~ Trustees present shall be required for approval in whole or in part of such recommendations,
453 but the Board may not increase the amount recommended by the Endowment Fund Committee for such
454 purpose

455 **6. 4.7.6 The Finance and Investment Committee.**

456 **a. 4.7.6.1 Membership.** The Finance and Investment Committee shall consist of the
457 following members, ~~all with vote~~: the Endowment Fund Committee ~~chairperson, and Chair~~, the Treasurer
458 and the Associate Treasurer of the Corporation Federation as Ex ex officio Members, members, past
459 ~~Chairpersons~~ Chairs of the Finance and Investment Committee as Honorary Members, honorary
460 members, and fifteen (15) other Members members appointed by the President Board Chair of the
461 Corporation Federation

462 **b. ~~Powers and~~ 4.7.6.2 Duties and.**

463 **(1) Investment Authority.** Subject to the limitations in ~~Subsection (2) of this Section~~ Paragraph 4 7.6 3,
464 the Finance and Investment Committee shall have the authority to

465 (a) Supervise the prudent investment of the following funds in a diversified portfolio
466 consisting substantially of investment grade securities, in a manner consistent with applicable investment
467 guidelines adopted by the Finance and Investment Committee from time to time ~~pursuant to~~
468 Subparagraph (b) of this Subsection,

469 ~~(i) the Corporation's~~ (i) the Corporation's (1) the Federation's investable funds (the
470 ~~"Corporation's"~~ "Federation's funds");

471 (ii) such funds of beneficiary agencies, supporting foundations and non-
472 beneficiary to the Federation, affiliated agencies included in Article I, Section C, Paragraph 4 (a) (1) of
473 the Corporation's Bylaws ("Affiliated Organizations") Paragraph 4.7 4 1 and local temples and
474 synagogues and other Jewish organizations ("Affiliated Organizations") and funds of charitable trusts or
475 charitable split interest trusts of which the Federation or Affiliated Organizations are beneficiaries, as are
476 accepted by the Corporation Federation for investment ("Affiliated funds", Funds"), and

477 (iii) such funds of the The Jewish Community Federation of Cleveland
478 Employees' Pension Plan and Trust, as amended or as may be further amended in the future, as are
479 accepted by the Corporation or Federation for investment ("the Pension Fund");

480 (b) Adopt such investment guidelines, containing investment goals and objectives, as
481 may be necessary or appropriate from time to time for the management of such funds;

482 (c) Select and engage the services of such investment manager(s), consultant(s) and
483 advisor(s) as the Finance and Investment Committee may deem appropriate.

484 (i) to assist with the development of appropriate investment guidelines,

485 (ii) to direct the investment, reinvestment and other management of all or a
486 portion of such funds in accordance with the provisions of applicable investment guidelines adopted by
487 the ~~Committee pursuant to Subparagraph (b) of this Subsection~~, Finance and Investment Committee and

488 (iii) to assist with the evaluation and monitoring of the investment
489 performance and compliance with any applicable guidelines of any portfolio of funds under the
490 supervision of the Finance and Investment Committee

491 ~~(2)~~ 4.7.6.3 **Limitations.** The following express limitations shall apply to investments under
492 the authority of the ~~committee~~ Finance and Investment Committee

493 (a) Equity Securities The total investments of the funds which are under the
494 supervision of the Finance and Investment Committee in equity securities shall not exceed eighty percent
495 (80%) of all such funds. For purposes of determining whether the eighty percent (80%) limitation has
496 been exceeded, the value of any assets retained in accordance with ~~Subparagraph (c) of this Subsection~~
497 Paragraph 4 7 6 3(f) shall be excluded

498 (b) Israel Bonds:

499 (i) ~~The Corporation's~~ Federation's investment of the ~~Corporation's~~
500 Federation's funds in bonds of the State of Israel ("Israel Bonds") may not exceed ~~\$1,250,000~~ two million
501 dollars (\$2,000,000). For purposes of determining whether this limitation has been exceeded, however,
502 the following shall be excluded: (a) the value of any Israel Bonds retained in accordance with
503 Subparagraph (c) of this Subsection shall be excluded; Paragraph 4 7 6 3(c) of this Subsection, (b) the
504 value of Israel Bonds held as assets of Israel Bond Philanthropic Funds established in accordance with
505 procedures approved by the Committee; and (c) the value of Israel Bonds held as assets of Philanthropic
506 Funds (other than Israel Bond Philanthropic Funds) which do not exceed limitations established from
507 time to time by the Committee

508 ~~(ii) Affiliated funds~~ (ii) Affiliated Funds of an Affiliated Organization may only
509 be invested in Israel Bonds to the extent of any written instruction from such Affiliated Organization to
510 the ~~Corporation~~ Federation requesting or approving such investment, ~~and~~.

511 (iii) The Pension Fund may only be invested in Israel Bonds to the extent of
512 any written instruction from the Retirement Fund Committee requesting or approving such investment

513 (c) Retention of Assets: The ~~Corporation~~ Federation may retain any assets
514 contributed to it by any donor notwithstanding that such assets do not meet the qualifications for new
515 investments by the ~~Corporation~~ Federation or otherwise do not conform to any applicable investment
516 guidelines

517 (d) Pension Fund The Pension Fund shall be held as a separate fund and shall not
518 be commingled with any other funds under the supervision of the Finance and Investment Committee

519 (e) Notwithstanding anything contained in these ~~bylaws~~ Bylaws to the contrary, the
520 ~~Corporation~~ Federation shall not engage in any conduct or transactions which, singly or in the aggregate,
521 may require the ~~Corporation~~ Federation to become subject to the registration requirements of the
522 Investment Advisors Act of 1940, as amended, and any applicable rules and regulations thereunder.

523 ~~(3)~~ 4.7.6.4 **Reporting and Monitoring Obligations.**

524 (a) The Finance and Investment Committee shall monitor the performance of any
525 portion of funds under ~~the its~~ its supervision of the ~~Committee~~ to ensure that the investment of such funds is
526 consistent with the provisions of ~~Subsection (2) of this Section~~ Paragraph 4 7 6.3 and any applicable
527 guidelines adopted by the ~~Committee pursuant to Subparagraph (b) of Subsection (1) of this Section~~.

528 ~~(b) The (b)~~ The Finance and Investment Committee shall report to the Board of
529 Trustees from time to time but at least semi-annually with respect to the value and investment
530 performance of the Corporation's Federation's funds under the supervision of the Committee ~~in~~
531 ~~addition, the Committee shall report to the Board of Trustees at the next succeeding Regular Meeting with~~
532 ~~respect to the following matters.~~ Such reports shall include

533 (i) any investment guidelines (or modifications thereto) that have been
534 adopted by the Finance and Investment Committee since its last report, ~~and~~

535 (ii) the names of any investment manager(s), consultant(s) and advisor(s)
536 that have been selected and/or engaged by the Finance and Investment Committee since its last report.
537 and

538 (iii) the names of any Affiliated Organizations from which the Finance and
539 Investment Committee has accepted funds for investment since its last report, ~~and the amount of any~~
540 ~~funds so accepted.~~

541 ~~(c) The (c)~~ The Finance and Investment Committee shall report to each Affiliated
542 Organization from which the Corporation Federation has accepted funds for investment at such time and
543 with respect to such matters (relating to the investment of the Affiliated Organization's portion of the
544 Affiliated funds), as agreed upon by the Corporation Federation and the Affiliated Organization; and

545 (d) The Finance and Investment Committee shall report to the Retirement Fund
546 Committee at such time and with respect to such matters (relating to the investment of the Pension Fund),
547 as agreed upon by the Corporation Federation and the Retirement Fund Committee

548 7. 4.7.7 The Human Resources Development Committee ("HRDC").

549 4.7.7.1 a. Membership. The HRDC shall consist of not more than ~~38 Members, at least~~
550 ~~one-thirty-eight (38)~~ members appointed by the Board Chair of the Federation, at least one (1) of whom
551 shall be a person ~~appointed~~ designated by the Women's Cabinet ~~Chair~~ Chair and at least one (1) of whom
552 shall be a person designated by the Young Leadership Division Chair. No person shall serve as a
553 ~~Member~~ member of the ~~Committee~~ HRDC for more than five (5) consecutive one ~~(1)~~ year terms,
554 provided, however, that this limitation shall not apply to ~~the Chairman during his terms of office.~~ a person
555 appointed as Chair.

556 ~~The Committee~~ The HRDC shall also include a class of ~~Honorary Members~~ honorary
557 members who will serve for life with vote. It shall consist of all past ~~chairpersons~~ Chairs and any other
558 ~~Members~~ members who may be recommended by the ~~Human Resources Development Committee~~ HRDC
559 and approved by the ~~President of the Federation.~~ Board Chair.

560 b. 4.7.7.2 Purpose. The ~~Committee~~ HRDC shall.

561 ~~(1)(a)~~ (1)(a) Assist the Federation and be available to its beneficiary and affiliated agencies in
562 leadership development, consisting, without limitation, ~~in~~ of identifying, educating, training and placing
563 individuals in the Jewish community to serve as board and committee members of the Federation and its
564 agencies and in other positions of responsibility and leadership in the Jewish community.

565 ~~(2)(b)~~ (2)(b) Be responsible for selecting and administering leadership awards and
566 scholarships

567 ~~(3)(c)~~ (3)(c) Endeavor to involve greater numbers of individuals from various and diverse
568 segments of the Jewish community in the operation of the Federation and its local agencies

569 c. 4.7.7.3 Officer and Terms Term of Office. The ~~Committee's Officer~~ HRDC's officer
570 shall consist of a ~~Chairperson~~ Chair to be ~~designated~~ appointed by the ~~President of Federation~~ Board

571 Chair from among the ~~Members~~ of the ~~Committee~~. The ~~Chairperson~~ members of HRDC. The Chair shall
572 serve for not longer than three (3) terms of one (1) year each

573 **8. The 4.7.8 Welfare Fund Planning Committee ("WFPC").**

574 **a. 4.7.8.1 Membership.** The WFPC is to be constituted annually and shall consist of one
575 (1) person appointed by the Women's Cabinet ~~Chair~~ Chair, one (1) person appointed by the Young
576 Leadership Division Chair and seventy (70) persons elected by the WFPC upon nomination by a
577 Nominating Committee nominating committee of five (5) persons appointed annually by the Chairman
578 Chair of the WFPC. The elected ~~Members~~ members shall include

579 (1)(a) Twenty (20) persons who are ~~Members~~ members of the Executive Committee of
580 the current year's Welfare Fund Campaign, one (1) of whom shall be the ~~Chairman~~ Chair of the Jewish
581 Welfare Fund Campaign, and

582 (2) ~~Fifty (50) Members at-large~~ (b) Fifty (50) members at-large

583 ~~The Welfare Fund Planning Committee is to be constituted annually.~~

584 **b. 4.7.8.2 Powers and Duties.** The WFPC shall have the following powers and duties

585 (1)(a) To organize the Jewish Welfare Fund Campaign, represent the Federation in
586 other fund-raising ~~bodies~~ if and when the ~~Corporation~~ Federation agrees to co-sponsor or assist other
587 campaigns, assist in the collection of the Welfare Fund ~~pledges~~, conduct year-round educational meetings
588 directed toward Welfare Fund workers and contributors;

589 (2)(b) To represent the ~~Corporation~~ Federation in connection with the work of overseas
590 and domestic national agencies and to study their program and performance, including

591 (a)(1) evaluation of the quality of work of overseas and domestic national
592 agencies ~~in these fields~~ and recommendations to the Budget Committee concerning support thereof, and

593 (b)(1) establishing standards governing the dues structure and fund-raising
594 programs of all ~~organizations~~ agencies receiving ~~financial subsidies~~ allocations from the ~~Corporation~~
595 Federation and reviewing periodically the practice of such ~~beneficiary organizations~~ agencies in regard to
596 such ~~regulations~~, and standards;

597 (3)(c) To arrange for an orderly approach to the Jewish community with respect to
598 appeals for funds by ~~non-Federation agencies~~. organizations which are not beneficiary or affiliated
599 agencies

600 **c. Officers. The WFPC shall select its own Officers. No Officer, except the Secretary 4.7.8.3**

601 Officers and Terms. The WFPC shall elect its officers in accordance with its regulations. No
602 officer, except the secretary, shall serve in the same office continuously for more than three (3)
603 consecutive terms of one (1) year each.

604 **D. 4.8 Other Committees.** The following Committees are hereby established ~~pursuant to~~
605 Article V, Paragraph E of the Code of Regulations of the Corporation to serve at the pleasure of the Board
606 of Trustees.

607 **4.8.1 The Audit Committee.** The Audit Committee shall consist of fifteen (15) members
608 appointed by the Board Chair. It shall plan and oversee the regular execution of the Federation's annual
609 audit, and shall report to the Board of Trustees the results and findings of the annual audit which shall be
610 conducted by an independent qualified public accounting firm. The Audit Committee shall also assure
611 the implementation of recommendations of the audit and report from time to time to the Board on its
612 findings and recommendations. The Audit Committee shall also oversee the audit process of the
613 Federation's local beneficiary agencies and the Federation's internal audit process.

614 4.8.2(4) The Cash Committee. The Cash Committee shall consist of no fewer than twelve (12)
615 persons, nor more than thirty (30) persons appointed by the ~~President~~ Board Chair (who shall serve
616 without limitation as to term) the Treasurer and the Associate Treasurer. ~~The committee~~ Committee
617 shall plan and implement all efforts to collect unpaid pledges resulting from the ~~Corporation~~
618 Federation's annual Jewish Welfare Fund ~~campaign~~ Campaign or other fundraising efforts. The ~~chairman~~
619 ~~Chair of the committee~~ Committee and the ~~corporation's President~~ Board Chair of the Federation or
620 their ~~designees~~ designees, shall have full authority to make arrangements with contributors and adjust
621 accounts as necessary and advisable.

622 4.8.3 The Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee shall consist of the
623 Federation's past Board Chairs and persons who served prior to 1998 as President of the Federation, its
624 current Board Chair, and those Officers appointed by the current Board Chair. The Compensation
625 Committee shall determine the compensation of the President and other senior executives as it
626 determines. The President shall consult with the Compensation Committee in determining the
627 compensation for other senior executive staff members. The Compensation Committee may utilize
628 whatever outside resources or consultants it deems necessary in fulfilling its function.

629 4.8.4(2) The Risk Management Committee. The Risk Management Committee shall consist of
630 fifteen ~~Members~~ (15) members appointed by the Board Chair of the Federation. The Risk Management
631 Committee shall cooperate with the local beneficiary agencies in planning for the joint purchase of
632 insurance, assessing insurance requirements, placing insurance, adopting risk management programs and
633 administering the ~~program~~ insurance and risk management programs thus developed.

634 (3) 4.8.5 The Retirement Fund Committee. The Retirement Fund Committee shall
635 consist of fifteen ~~Members~~ (15) members appointed by the Board Chair of the Federation. It shall plan
636 and administer a retirement ~~program~~ programs for employees of the ~~Corporation~~ Federation and its local
637 beneficiary agencies.

638 (4) 4.8.6 The Women's Cabinet.

639 a 4.8.6.1 Officers and Terms. The Women's Cabinet shall consist of a ~~chair~~ Chair
640 appointed by the ~~President of the Corporation~~ Board Chair, to serve a maximum of two (2) consecutive
641 one-year terms, the ~~vice-chair(s)~~ Vice-Chair(s) of fund-raising, the ~~vice-chair(s)~~ Vice-Chair(s) of
642 education, other project ~~chair(s)~~ Chair(s) as needed, and members as appointed by the ~~chair or the vice-~~
643 ~~chair(s)~~ Chair or the Vice-Chair(s).

644 b. The purpose 4.8.6.2 Purposes. The purposes of Women's Cabinet ~~is~~ are

645 1)(a) To play a major role in enhancing the policies and projects of the Jewish
646 Community Federation.

647 2)(b) To enlist broad-based support for the Jewish Welfare Fund Appeal Campaign by
648 developing an extensive corps of communally educated and informed women who will in turn endeavor
649 to increase the number of contributors and upgrade the quality of giving to the annual campaign.

650 3)(c) To educate, inform and involve Jewish women in communal issues, work, and
651 action.

652 ARTICLE II. 4.8.7 The Young Leadership Division.

653 OFFICERS 4.8.7.1 Officers and Terms. The Young Leadership Division shall consist of a
654 Chair appointed by the Chair, to serve a maximum of two (2) consecutive one-year terms, the Vice-
655 Chair(s) of fund-raising; the Vice-Chair(s) of education, other project Chair(s) as needed, and members as
656 appointed by the Chair or the Vice-Chair(s).

657 A. 4.8.7.2 Purposes. The purposes of the Young Leadership Division are.

658 (a) To play a major role in enhancing the policies and projects of the Federation

659 (b) To enlist broad-based support for the Jewish Welfare Fund Campaign by
660 developing an extensive corps of communally educated and informed younger members of the Jewish
661 community who will in turn endeavor to increase the number of contributors and upgrade the quality of
662 giving to the annual campaign

663 (c) To educate, inform and involve younger members of the Jewish community in
664 communal issues, work, and action

665 ARTICLE 5: DUTIES AND POWERS OF OFFICERS.

666 5.1 Budget. The Officers shall recommend to the Budget Committee the annual budget for
667 the operation of the Corporation Federation's offices, and shall establish the final operating budget within
668 the framework of the allocation for such purposes.

669 5.2 Personnel. The Officers shall serve as the Federation's personnel committee and shall
670 establish policies and procedures which facilitate hiring, compensation and management of the
671 Federation's staff.

672 5.3 Reports. ~~The Board Chair B. Reports. The President and the Treasurer~~ shall make a
673 report to the ~~Membership~~ membership at or for the Annual Meeting.

674 G. 5.4 Administrative Powers.

675 ~~1. Any Officer, together with the Chief Executive Officer, is~~ 5.4.1 The Officers or
676 designated employees of the Federation are authorized to sign checks or ~~withdrawals from all the~~
677 ~~commercial or savings accounts of the Corporation. In the absence of the Chief Executive Officer, the~~
678 ~~Assistant Treasurer is authorized to sign checks in his place. On any check withdrawal authorizations for~~
679 ~~all commercial, savings, brokerage or other financial accounts of the Federation in accordance with~~
680 ~~procedures approved by the Board of Trustees~~ On any check or withdrawal authorization in an amount
681 in excess of ten thousand (~~\$10,000.00~~) dollars (\$10,000), manual signatures shall be required

682 ~~2. Checks relating to the operation of the Corporation office written on the administrative account~~
683 ~~of the Corporation are to be signed by the Chief Executive Officer and the Assistant Treasurer~~
684 ~~jointly; and in the absence of the Chief Executive Officer or the Assistant Treasurer, any Officer is~~
685 ~~empowered to sign in his place.~~

686 ~~3. Any two~~ 5.4.2 Any two (2) of the following Officers are authorized to sell, sign, and
687 endorse for transfer, certificates or documents representing real estate, stocks, bonds, options, partnership
688 or limited liability company interests, or other securities: ~~the President, Board Chair, any Board Vice-~~
689 ~~president Chair, President, Treasurer, Associate Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer, Secretary and or Assistant~~
690 ~~Secretary; provided, however, that if one (1) signatory is the President, the Assistant Treasurer, then the~~
691 ~~other signatory may not be the Secretary, or the Assistant Secretary, then the other signatory must be the~~
692 ~~Board Chair, Board Vice-Chair, the Treasurer or the Associate Treasurer.~~

693 ARTICLE III. ARTICLE 6: MISCELLANEOUS.

694 STAFF

695

696 ~~The Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation shall be appointed by the Board of Trustees and~~
697 ~~serve at the pleasure of the Board of Trustees. The Chief Executive Officer shall make all other~~
698 ~~staff appointments.~~

699 ARTICLE IV.

700

701 ~~MISCELLANEOUS~~

702

703 ~~A. 6.1~~ Fund Raising by Agencies. No ~~subsidy~~ financial assistance shall be extended by the
704 ~~Corporation Federation~~ to any ~~organization~~ beneficiary agency which shall, without the ~~written~~ consent of
705 the Board of Trustees

706 ~~1. 6.1.1~~ Give any ball, bazaar or any other entertainment for which tickets are offered for sale.

707 ~~2. 6.1.2~~ Solicit advertisements or contributions other than permanent endowments, ~~or~~ or deferred
708 gifts, or

709 ~~3. 6.1.3~~ Charge membership fees in excess of ~~\$10 per annum.~~ ten dollars (\$10) per annum

710 ~~The Jewish Community Federation~~

711 ~~1750 Euclid Avenue~~

712 ~~Cleveland, Ohio 44115~~

713 ~~/jao/h/vastword.doc 04/28/98 10:09 AM~~

714 ----- COMPARISON OF HEADERS -----

715

716 ~~-HEADER 1-~~

717

718

719 ~~-HEADER 2-~~

720 ~~Header Discontinued~~

721

722 ~~-HEADER 3-~~

723 ~~Header Discontinued~~

724

725

726 ----- COMPARISON OF FOOTERS -----

727

728 ~~-FOOTER 1-~~

729 ~~C:\DOCX97\convert\bylaw.cur Page 16 1~~

730

731

732 -FOOTER 2-

733 p 15

734

735 P

~~This redlined draft, generated by CompareRate (TM) The Instant Redliner, shows the differences between original document: G:\PHF0261\10043\96001\DOCS\CODE_CUR.DOC and revised document: G:\PHF0261\10043\96001\DOCS\FINAL\CODE8RR.DOC~~

~~CompareRate found 227 change(s) in the text
CompareRate found 3 change(s) in the notes~~

~~Deletions appear as Overstrike text
Additions appear as Double Underline text~~

AMENDED 10/22/98

REVISED DRAFT

AMENDED & RESTATED CODE OF REGULATIONS

OF

THE

JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION

OF CLEVELAND

ARTICLE I: I

MEMBERSHIP

A. 1.1 **Qualifications.** The Members of ~~this Corporation~~ The Jewish Community Federation of Cleveland (the "Federation") shall consist of all Jewish persons who contribute at least \$10 ten dollars (\$10) in any one fiscal year to ~~this Corporation~~ the Federation, and each such person shall be a Member beginning with and during the fiscal year of the ~~Corporation~~ Federation following that in which such contribution is paid

B. 1.2 **Membership Book.** The ~~Corporation~~ Federation shall keep a ~~Membership Book~~ containing membership book consisting of a list of the name and address of each current Member

ARTICLE 2: H

MEETING OF MEMBERS

A. 2.1 **Annual Meetings.** The Annual Meeting of the Members of ~~this Corporation~~ the Federation shall be held each year at such time and place in the greater Cleveland area as the Board of Trustees may from time to time determine.

B. 2.2 **Special Meetings.** Special Meetings of the Members may be called by the ~~President~~ Board Chair, or, in the case of ~~his~~ the Board Chair's absence, death or disability, by a Board Vice-president Chair. Special Meetings of the Members shall be called by the ~~President~~ Board Chair (or, in the case of ~~his~~ the Board Chair's absence, death or disability, by a Board Vice-president Chair), upon the written request of at least fifteen (15) ~~Members~~ members of the Board of Trustees or the written request of at least two hundred fifty (250) Members.

C. 2.3 **Notice of Meetings.** Notice of Annual Meetings shall be given not fewer than twenty (20) nor more than sixty (60) days before the date of such Meeting. Notice of Special Meetings shall be given not fewer than five (5) nor more than sixty (60) days before the date of such Meeting. Such notice may be given by mail to each Member at ~~his~~ the Member's last known address or by publication in the Cleveland Jewish News or ~~in~~ another newspaper of general circulation in the Jewish community in

33 Cuyahoga County, Ohio, or, if timely publication in the Cleveland Jewish News or another newspaper of
34 general circulation in the Jewish Community is not feasible, by publication on the Federation's Internet
35 Website (followed by publication in the Cleveland Jewish News or another newspaper of general
36 circulation in the Jewish community at least two (2) days prior to such Meeting) Notices shall state the
37 time and place of the Meeting and, in the case of Special Meetings, shall state the purpose or purposes
38 thereof. The attendance of ~~any~~ a Member at any such Meeting shall be deemed to be a waiver by ~~him~~
39 such Member of notice of such Meeting. The requirements of this Paragraph with respect to notice of
40 ~~meetings~~ Meetings are in addition to the requirements to send Members advance notice of nominations of
41 the Nominating Committee, as provided in Paragraph ~~D (1) of Article III~~ 3.4.1, and of proposals to
42 amend or repeal these ~~the Code of Regulations~~, as provided in ~~Article IX~~ Paragraph 9.1.

43 ~~D. 2.4~~ **Quorum and Voting.** One hundred (100) of the Members in attendance at any Annual
44 or Special Meeting shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at such Annual or Special
45 Meeting. Each Member in attendance at a ~~meeting~~ Meeting shall be entitled to one (1) vote. There shall
46 be no voting by proxy.

47 **ARTICLE 3: III**

48
49 **TRUSTEES**

50 ~~A. 3.1~~ **Definition and Voting.** Except as otherwise specified, ~~the (1)~~ The term "Trustee" or
51 "Trustees" as used in this instrument refers to Trustees of all classes, and ~~all (2)~~ All Trustees (including
52 ex officio Trustees) shall have equal rights and powers, including voting.

53 ~~B. 3.2~~ **Classification and Number.** The members of the Board of Trustees shall be divided
54 into four (4) classes as follows:

55 ~~(1) 3.2.1~~ **Institutional Trustees.** The following persons shall be elected as Institutional
56 Trustees:

57 ~~(a) 3.2.1.1~~ One (1) person from each of the following organizations in the Greater
58 Cleveland area:

59 **Beneficiary Agencies:**

60 Bellefaire

61 ~~Cleveland Hillel Foundation~~

62 Jewish Children's Bureau

63 Cleveland Hillel Foundation, Incorporated

64 Jewish Community Center of Cleveland

65 ~~Jewish Education Center of Cleveland~~

66 Jewish Family Service Association of Cleveland, Ohio Jewish

67 ~~Vocational Service~~

68 ~~Menorah Park - Jewish Home for Aged~~

69 Center for the Aging

70 The Montefiore Home

71 ~~Mount Sinai Medical Center~~

72 **Affiliated Agency:**

73 Cleveland Section National Council of Jewish Women

74 ~~-Cleveland Section~~

75 ~~(b) 3.2.1.2~~ Ten (10) persons from the Welfare Fund Planning Committee of ~~this~~
76 Corporation: the Federation.

77 ~~(2)~~ 3.2.1.3 Three (3) persons from the Jewish Education Center of Cleveland.

78 3.2.2 Ex officio Trustees. The following persons shall serve as ex officio Trustees while
79 holding office as specified below:

80 ~~The Chairman of each of the Standing Committees of this Corporation (as provided in Article V).~~
81 3.2.2.1 The Chair of each Standing Committee of the Federation.

82 ~~To the extent that a Women's Cabinet exists pursuant to Article V., Paragraph E, 3.2.2.2~~
83 The Women's Cabinet Chair and three (3) Members of the Federation appointed by the Women's
84 Cabinet chair Chair.

85 3.2.2.3 The Young Leadership Division Chair and three (3) members of the Jewish Community
86 Federation of Cleveland appointed by the ~~chair of the Women's Cabinet.~~ Young Leadership Division
87 Chair.

88 ~~(3)~~ 3.2.3 Trustees-at-large Large. Sixty (60) persons shall be elected as Trustees-at-
89 large. Large.

90 ~~(4)~~ 3.2.4 Special Trustees. The following persons shall serve as Special Trustees for the
91 term specified:

92 ~~(a)~~ 3.2.4.1 Persons presently designated as Trustees-for-life Life and persons hereafter
93 elected as Trustees-for-life Life by the Members, with each person so designated or elected to serve as
94 Trustee for the balance of his life ~~for Life.~~

95 ~~(b) All past Presidents of the Corporation~~ 3.2.4.2 All past Board Chairs and persons who
96 served before 1998 as President of the Federation, each of whom shall serve as Trustee for the balance of
97 his life.

98 ~~(c)~~ 3.2.4.3 The President, Board Chair, Board Vice-presidents Chairs, Treasurer, and
99 Associate Treasurer of the Corporation Federation during their respective terms of office (if they are not
100 otherwise Trustees) and each person who has retired from the office of Board Vice-president Chair,
101 Treasurer or Associate Treasurer of the Corporation Federation, each such person to serve as Trustee
102 until the next ~~annual meeting~~ Annual Meeting of Members following his or her retirement from such
103 office.

104 ~~(d)~~ 3.2.4.4 The ~~Chairman~~ Chair of the Jewish Welfare Fund Campaign of ~~this Corporation~~
105 the Federation, who shall serve as Trustee while such ~~Chairman.~~ Chair.

106 ~~C~~ 3.3 Terms and Limitations.

107 ~~(1)~~ 3.3.1 Institutional Trustees and Trustees-at-large Large shall upon election, serve for a
108 term of one (1) year and until their successors are elected and qualified to serve

109 ~~(2)~~ 3.3.2 Eligibility of all persons, other than Special Trustees, to serve on the Board of
110 Trustees shall be subject to the following limitations. Any person who has served as a Trustee of any
111 class for five (5) consecutive years or more shall be ineligible to serve as a Trustee of any class other
112 than Special Trustee for a period of one (1) year immediately following the completion of such
113 consecutive years of service ~~In the case of any~~ Any person who is an ex officio Trustee as provided in
114 ~~Paragraph B (2) of this Article and Paragraph 3.2.2 but~~ who is ineligible to serve as a Trustee by reason
115 of the foregoing limitations ~~in this Subparagraph, such person shall nevertheless not be ineligible eligible~~
116 to continue as a ~~committee Chairman (or Vice chairman as the case may be)~~ Committee Chair or Vice-
117 Chair despite said limitations and shall, while holding office, be invited to attend the meetings of the
118 Board of Trustees without vote.

119 (3) 3.3.3 For the purpose of these Regulations, except as provided below, a "year" is the
120 period from the close of a meeting at which an election occurs to the close of the next meeting of the
121 corresponding body at which a corresponding election occurs. ~~For purpose of the limitations in~~
122 ~~Paragraph C (2) of this Article, in~~ In the case of any ex officio Trustee or Special Trustee ~~under~~
123 ~~Paragraph B (4) (d) of this Article, who ceases to hold the office entitling such person to serve in such~~
124 ~~capacity, for the purpose of the one (1) year limitation in Paragraph 3.3.2, a "year" is the period from the~~
125 ~~designated expiration date of the term of such office to the close of the next Annual Meeting of~~
126 ~~Members(including any adjournment thereof) at which Trustees are elected.~~

127 **D. 3.4 Nomination and Election of Trustees.**

128 (1) 3.4.1 Trustees to be elected Elected at the Annual Meeting. Institutional Trustees,
129 Trustees-at-large Large and Trustees-for-life Life shall be elected at the Annual Meeting of Members
130 (including any adjournment thereof) only from among nominations by the Nominating Committee and by
131 petition, as hereinafter provided. At least thirty (30) days before each Annual Meeting of Members at
132 which Institutional Trustees are to be elected, each Organization or Committee described in ~~Paragraph B~~
133 ~~(1) of this Article~~ Paragraph 3.2.1 shall designate to the Nominating Committee in writing a person or
134 persons to be nominated from among its membership as Institutional Trustees. The Nominating
135 Committee shall ~~report its nominations for~~ nominate persons for election as Institutional Trustees,
136 Trustees-at-large Large and Trustees-for-life, ~~as provided in Article V, Paragraph C(2)(a), Life, and~~
137 ~~report such nominations~~ to the Secretary at least ~~twenty (20)~~ thirty (30) days before each such Annual
138 ~~Meeting of Members~~ at which such Trustees are to be elected. As soon as practical thereafter the
139 Secretary shall furnish to the Members (by mail ~~or~~, by publication in ~~The~~ the Cleveland Jewish News or
140 ~~in~~ another newspaper of general circulation in the Jewish community in Cuyahoga County, Ohio), or, if
141 timely publication in the Cleveland Jewish News or another newspaper of general circulation in the
142 Jewish community is not feasible, by publication on the Federation's Internet Website (followed by
143 publication in the Cleveland Jewish News or another newspaper of general circulation in the Jewish
144 community at least two (2) days prior to such Meeting) a list of such nominees together with a statement
145 that Trustees-at-large Large may also be nominated by petition, which statement shall also describe the
146 petition procedure hereinafter set forth. Any nominating petitions shall be submitted in writing to the
147 Secretary at least ten (10) days before each Annual Meeting at which Trustees are to be elected and shall
148 contain the signatures of at least two hundred fifty (250) Members in support of each nominee. The
149 Secretary shall ~~not~~ furnish a list of any nominees by petition to each Member at least six (6) days in
150 advance of such ~~meeting~~ Meeting by mail, by publication in the
151 Cleveland Jewish News or another newspaper of general circulation in the Jewish community in
152 Cuyahoga County, Ohio, or, if timely publication in the Cleveland Jewish News is not feasible, by
153 publication on the Federation's Internet Website (followed by publication in the Cleveland Jewish News
154 or another newspaper of general circulation in the Jewish community at least two (2) days before such
155 Meeting).

156 (2) 3.4.2 Vacancies. A vacancy among the Trustees-at-large Large between Annual
157 Meetings shall be filled until the next Annual Meeting by appointment by the President Board Chair. A
158 vacancy among Institutional Trustees between Annual Meetings shall be filled until the next Annual
159 Meeting by appointment by the President Board Chair after receipt of a nomination from the
160 Organization or Committee affected by the vacancy

161 (3) 3.4.3 Additional Procedures.

162 (a) If at any meeting Annual Meeting of Members ~~or Trustees~~ referred to in Subparagraphs (1) or (2) of
163 ~~this Paragraph~~ Paragraph 3.4.1, a person nominated by the Nominating Committee is unwilling or unable
164 to serve, then notwithstanding any provisions in said Subparagraphs Paragraph, the Nominating
165 Committee may nominate a substitute for its original nominee at the Annual Meeting at which ~~the~~
166 ~~vacancy is~~ Trustees are to be filled elected. If no person is so nominated, or if nominated no person is
167 elected, then a vacancy shall be deemed to exist.

168 (b) The Secretary shall prepare an official ballot or list of all nominees for use at each Annual Meeting at
169 which Trustees are to be elected.

170 (c) At all elections of Trustees by the Members, the candidates receiving the greatest number of votes
171 shall be elected.

172 ~~At all elections by the Trustees to fill a vacancy among the Trustees, the voting provisions of~~
173 ~~Paragraph E of this Article shall apply.~~

174 **E. 3.5 Powers and Duties of Trustees.**

175 **3.5.1** The Board of Trustees shall have general charge of the affairs, property, and assets of the
176 Corporation Federation. It shall be the duty of the Trustees to carry out the aims and purposes of ~~the~~
177 Corporation the Federation and, to this end, to manage and control all of its property and assets,
178 including the determination as to which organizations shall be subvented by the Corporation and to what
179 extent designated as beneficiary agencies or affiliated agencies of the Federation and to what extent they
180 shall receive financial support.

181 **3.5.2** Except as procedures or voting requirements may be otherwise prescribed in the Articles
182 of Incorporation ~~or~~, these Regulations or the Bylaws of the Board of Trustees, an action approved by a
183 majority of the Trustees present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the action of the
184 Board of Trustees; provided, however, that the Board of Trustees may by Bylaw resolution or pursuant
185 to the Bylaws of the Board of Trustees prescribe procedural or other limitations on its own actions not
186 inconsistent with the Articles of Incorporation or these Regulations, including voting percentages higher
187 than a majority

188 **3.5.3** The Trustees, for their own governance, may adopt, amend and repeal Bylaws ~~for their~~
189 ~~own governance~~ of the Board of Trustees not inconsistent with the Articles of Incorporation and or the
190 Code of Regulations by a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of Board Members members present at any
191 meeting of the Board of Trustees at which a quorum is present, provided that ~~written notice of the~~
192 ~~meeting and a description of the proposal to adopt, amend or repeal Bylaws is sent to all members of the~~
193 ~~Board at least five (5) days in advance of the meeting of the Board of Trustees is sent to all Board~~
194 ~~members with the notice of the meeting of the Board of Trustees~~ at which such vote is to be taken.

195 **F. 3.6 Meetings, Notice and Quorum.** ~~An Organizational Meeting~~ Meetings of the Board of
196 Trustees ~~for the election of officers and the transaction of such business as may properly come before the~~
197 ~~Meeting shall be held as soon as practicable following the Annual Meeting of Members in each year.~~
198 ~~Other Regular Meetings shall be held, and notice of Meetings given, as provided in the Bylaws~~ of the
199 Board of Trustees shall be held at least eight (8) times a year, at such times and places as may be fixed by
200 the Board of Trustees or if no times or places have been fixed by the Board, at such times and places as
201 may be fixed by the President. Special Meetings. Attendance at any meeting of the Board of Trustees
202 may be called by the President and shall be called by the President or a Vice president upon the written
203 request of any ten (10) Trustees. ~~Not less than three (3) days written notice shall be given of a Regular~~
204 ~~Meeting of the Board of Trustees, and not less than one (1) days notice (which need not be written) shall~~
205 ~~be given of a Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees. Notices of Special Meetings shall state the~~
206 ~~purpose or purposes thereof. The requirements contained in the two preceding sentences are in addition~~
207 ~~to the requirements to send Trustees advance notice of a proposal to adopt, amend or repeal Bylaws, as~~
208 ~~provided in Paragraph E of this Article, and of nominations of the Nominating Committee, as provided in~~
209 ~~Paragraph D(2) of this Article (relating to election to fill vacancy among Institutional Trustees or~~
210 ~~Trustees at large) and as provided in Article IV, Paragraph B (relating to election of officers).~~
211 Attendance at any meeting of the Board of Trustees by one by one third (1/3) of the total number of
212 Trustees shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at such meeting

213 **ARTICLE 4: IV**

OFFICERS

216 ~~A. 4.1~~ **Number and Eligibility.** The Officers of this Corporation shall be a President, four (4)
 217 ~~Vice-presidents, a Treasurer, the Federation shall be a Board Chair, who shall be the Chief Volunteer~~
 218 ~~Officer, four (4) Vice-Chairs, a Treasurer and an Associate Treasurer, all of whom shall be elected as~~
 219 ~~hereinafter provided, a President, who shall be the Chief Professional Officer, and a Secretary. The~~
 220 ~~President, Vice-presidents, Treasurer and Associate Treasurer shall each be a present or former Member~~
 221 ~~and the Secretary shall be appointed by the Board of Trustees and serve at the pleasure of the Board of~~
 222 ~~Trustees. The Trustees may also elect Board Chair, Board Vice-Chairs, Treasurer and Associate~~
 223 ~~Treasurer shall each be a present or former member of the Board of Trustees. The Trustees may also~~
 224 ~~appoint one (1) or more Assistant Secretaries and Assistant Treasurers as they deem desirable to serve at~~
 225 ~~the pleasure of the Board of Trustees.~~

226 ~~B. 4.2~~ **Nomination and Election.**

227 ~~(1) 4.2.1~~ **Officers elected Elected at the Organizational Meeting.** The elected Officers
 228 shall be elected by the Board of Trustees at the Organizational Meeting of the Board of Trustees, after
 229 receipt of nominations as provided herein from the Nominating Committee. The Nominating Committee
 230 shall report its nominations for Officers as provided in Article V, Paragraph C (2)(e) to the Secretary
 231 Such ~~recommendation~~ nominations shall be sent to the Members ~~members~~ of the Board of Trustees at
 232 least fifteen (15) days in advance of the Organizational Meeting of the Board of Trustees at which the
 233 election is to take place. Other nominations for Officers may be made only by petition, signed by at least
 234 five (5) Trustees, submitted in writing to the Secretary at least ten (10) days before the Organizational
 235 Meeting of the Board of Trustees at which Officers are to be elected. The Secretary shall mail to each
 236 Trustee at least six (6) days in advance of such Meeting a list of any persons so nominated by petition.
 237 The Secretary shall prepare an official ballot or list of all nominees for use at each such Meeting.

238 ~~(2) 4.2.2~~ **Vacancies.** In the event of any vacancy among the Officers of the Corporation
 239 between Organizational Meetings of the Board of Trustees, the Board of Trustees is empowered, after
 240 receipt of a nomination as provided herein, to elect any eligible person as an Officer to fill such vacancy
 241 until the next Organizational Meeting and until ~~his~~ a successor is elected and qualified. The nominating
 242 procedure for the election of an Officer to fill any such vacancy shall be the same as that provided in
 243 Subparagraph (1) of this Paragraph ~~paragraph 4.2.1~~.

244 ~~(3) Additional Procedures.~~

245 ~~(a) If 4.2.3~~ **Substitute Nominees.** If at any Meeting of Trustees referred to in
 246 Subparagraphs (1) or (2) of this Paragraph Paragraphs 4.2.1 or 4.2.2, a person nominated by the
 247 Nominating Committee is unwilling or unable to serve, then notwithstanding any provisions in said
 248 Subparagraphs Paragraphs, the Nominating Committee may nominate a substitute for its original
 249 nominee at the Meeting at which the vacancy is to be filled. If no person is so nominated, or if no
 250 nominated ~~no~~ person is elected, then a vacancy shall be deemed to exist.

251 ~~(b) The Secretary shall prepare an official ballot or list of all nominees for use at each Meeting at which~~
 252 ~~Officers are to be elected.~~

253 **C. Terms.** ~~The term of each office shall be one (1) year and until the Officers' respective successors are~~
 254 ~~elected and qualified, unless the Officer is elected to fill a vacancy in which case the term will be as~~
 255 ~~provided in Paragraph B(2) of this Article. No Officer, with the exception of the Secretary, Assistant~~
 256 ~~Secretary and Assistant Treasurer, shall serve in the same office continuously for more than three (3)~~
 257 ~~consecutive full terms or shall an Officer who has served three (3) consecutive full terms in office be~~
 258 ~~eligible for election to another office which is listed after his then office in the following list of Officer~~
 259 ~~positions: President, Vice-president, Treasurer, Associate Treasurer, Secretary.~~

260 **D. Authority and Duties** ~~The Officers of this Corporation shall have such authority and shall perform~~
 261 ~~such duties as are customarily incident to their respective offices and such other and further duties as~~

262 may from time to time be required of them by the Trustees. The President shall be an ex-officio Member
263 of all Committees established pursuant to Article V, other than the Nominating Committee. In the event
264 of a vacancy in any office, the duties of the office shall, until the vacancy is filled, devolve as follows:
265 1) if the vacancy is in the office of the President, his duties shall devolve upon one (1) of the Vice-
266 presidents selected by the Board of Trustees and 2) in the event of a vacancy in any other office, the
267 duties of such office shall devolve upon such other Officer selected by the Board of Trustees. Each
268 Officer so selected shall act in the office for which he is selected until the election of a successor
269 pursuant to Paragraph B of this Article.

270 ARTICLE V

271

272 COMMITTEES

273

274 A. General. The Committees of the Corporation shall be:

275 (1) The Executive Committee of the Board of Trustees.

276 (2) The Nominating Committee.

277 (3) Standing Committees created under Paragraph D of this Article.

278 (4) Such other Committees as the Board of Trustees may from time to time establish in accordance with
279 Paragraph E of this Article.

280 Such committees shall have only such powers as are hereinafter provided and as may be delegated to
281 them by the Board of Trustees.

282 B. Executive Committee.

283 (1) An Executive Committee of the Board of Trustees shall be annually designated at the Organizational
284 Meeting of the Board and shall consist of the following persons:

285 (a) The following Officers of this Corporation: President, three (3) Vice presidents, Treasurer, and
286 Associate Treasurer.

287 (b) Past Presidents of the Corporation.

288 (c) Ten (10) Members of the Board of Trustees, who shall be known as Members at large of the
289 Executive Committee and who shall be elected to serve during pleasure of the Board, provided, that no
290 person shall serve more than three (3) consecutive years as a Member at large of the Executive
291 Committee.

292 (d) The Chairmen of the Welfare Fund Campaign, the chair of the Women's Cabinet, and the Chairmen
293 of each of the Standing Committees of this Corporation (as provided in Paragraph D of this Article).

294 The President of the Corporation shall be the Chairman of the Executive Committee.

295 (2) Members at large of the Executive Committee shall be elected by the Board of Trustees from a slate
296 presented by the Nominating Committee as provided in Paragraph C(2)(b) of this Article. A vacancy in
297 the Members at large of the Executive Committee between Organizational Meetings shall be filled by
298 appointment by the President.

299 ~~(3) The Executive Committee shall possess only such powers as are delegated to it by the Board of~~
300 ~~Trustees. Members of the Executive Committee present at a meeting shall constitute a quorum but an~~
301 ~~affirmative vote of at least seven (7) Members shall be necessary to approve any action. The Executive~~
302 ~~Committee shall keep records and accounts of its proceedings and transactions. All action by the~~
303 ~~Executive Committee shall be reported to the Board of Trustees not later than the next regular Board~~
304 ~~meeting succeeding such action and shall be subject to control, revision, and alteration by the Board of~~
305 ~~Trustees, provided that no rights of third persons shall be prejudicially affected thereby.~~

306 C. Nominating Committee

307 ~~(1) A Nominating Committee shall be annually designated at the Organizational Meeting of the Board (or~~
308 ~~as soon thereafter as practicable) and shall consist of fifteen (15) persons, of whom six (6) without~~
309 ~~limitation shall be appointed by the President of the Corporation and one (1) shall be designated by each~~
310 ~~of the eight (8) Standing Committees of this Corporation (as provided in Paragraph D of this Article),~~
311 ~~and one (1) member shall be appointed by the chair of Women's Cabinet, other than its chair. Each~~
312 ~~Standing Committee at the time of its annual organization, in accordance with its rules and regulations,~~
313 ~~shall designate one of its Members other than its Chairman to serve as a Member of the Nominating~~
314 ~~Committee. The Chairman of the Nominating Committee shall be appointed by the President from among~~
315 ~~its Members. No person may serve as Chairman of the Nominating Committee for two years in~~
316 ~~succession. The Chairman of the Nominating Committee shall have the right to vote on all matters.~~

317 ~~(2) The Nominating Committee shall have the responsibility to nominate persons for election as follows:~~

318 ~~(a) Institutional Trustees, Trustees at large and Trustees for life of the Board of Trustees at the Annual~~
319 ~~Meetings of the Members and, in the event of a vacancy among the Institutional Trustees and Trustees at~~
320 ~~large between Annual Meetings, at a meeting of the remaining Trustees, as provided in Article III,~~
321 ~~Paragraph D. The Nominating Committee shall, prior to reporting to the Board of Trustees any~~
322 ~~nomination for Institutional Trustee (whether for election at the Annual Meeting or to fill a vacancy),~~
323 ~~obtain in writing the name of each person designated for nomination by the Organization or Committee~~
324 ~~described in Article III, Paragraph B (1), from whose membership the election is to be made.~~

325 ~~(b) Members at large of the Executive Committee of the Board of Trustees at the Organizational Meeting~~
326 ~~of the Board of Trustees and, in the event of a vacancy among the Members at large of the Executive~~
327 ~~Committee between Organizational Meetings, at a meeting of the Board of Trustees, as provided in~~
328 ~~Paragraph B(2) of this Article.~~

329 ~~(c) Officers of the Corporation at the Organizational Meetings of the Board of Trustees and, in the event~~
330 ~~of a vacancy among the Officers between Organizational Meetings, at a meeting of the Board of~~
331 ~~Trustees, as provided in Article IV, Paragraph B.~~

332 ~~The Nominating Committee shall act by a majority vote of its Members. No person may serve more than~~
333 ~~three (3) consecutive years on the Nominating Committee. No proxy shall be permitted for any Member~~
334 ~~of the Committee.~~

335 ~~(3) In connection with the transfer of the primary functions of the Delegate Assembly in the year 1981 to~~
336 ~~the Community Relations Committee, the Nominating Committee shall give special attention to the~~
337 ~~nomination of ten (10) persons as Trustees at large as recommended by the Community Relations~~
338 ~~Committee.~~

339 ~~D. Standing Committees. The Standing Committees of the Corporation shall be:~~

340 ~~(1) Budget Committee~~

341 ~~(2) Communications Committee~~

342 ~~(3) Community Relations Committee~~

- 343 ~~(4) Community Services Planning Committee~~
344 ~~(5) Endowment Fund Committee~~
345 ~~(6) Finance & Investment Committee~~
346 ~~(7) Human Resources Development Committee~~
347 ~~(8) Welfare Fund Planning Committee~~

348 ~~Each Standing Committee shall have such Membership as the Board of Trustees shall provide and may~~
349 ~~consist of Trustees or Non-trustees in whole or in part. Each Standing Committee shall have such powers~~
350 ~~and perform such duties, not inconsistent with law, the Articles of Incorporation and this Code of~~
351 ~~Regulations, as may be delegated to it by the Board of Trustees. Except as otherwise specifically~~
352 ~~provided by the Board of Trustees, the action of all such Committees involving matters of policy shall be~~
353 ~~submitted to and be subject to the approval of the Board of Trustees.~~

354 ~~E. Other Committees. The Board of Trustees may provide for such other Committees as it deems~~
355 ~~desirable and discontinue the same at its pleasure. Each such Committee may consist of Trustees or Non-~~
356 ~~trustees in whole or in part and shall have such powers and perform such duties, not inconsistent with~~
357 ~~law, the Articles of Incorporation and this Code of Regulations, as may be delegated to it by the Board of~~
358 ~~Trustees. Vacancies in such other Committees shall be filled as the Board of Trustees may provide.~~
359 ~~Except as otherwise specifically provided by the Board of Trustees, the action of all such Committees~~
360 ~~involving matters of policy shall be submitted to and be subject to the approval of the Board of Trustees.~~
361 ~~References in this Article V to the Women's Cabinet shall apply only to the extent that a Women's~~
362 ~~Cabinet exists pursuant to this paragraph.~~

363 ~~F. Membership and operation of committees shall be governed by the amended bylaws of the~~
364 ~~Corporation.~~

365 ~~ARTICLE VI~~

366

367 ~~INDEMNIFICATION~~

368

369 A. 4.3 **Terms of Elected Officers.** The term of each elected Officer shall be one (1) year and
370 until the Officer's successor is elected and qualified, unless the Officer is elected to fill a vacancy in
371 which case the term will be as provided in Paragraph 4.2.2. No elected Officer shall serve in the same
372 office continuously for more than three (3) consecutive full terms nor shall an elected Officer who has
373 served three (3) consecutive full terms in office be eligible for election to another office which is listed
374 after such his then office in the following list of Officer positions. Board Chair, Vice-Chair, Treasurer
375 and Associate Treasurer.

376 4.4 **Authority and Duties of Officers.** The authority and duties of Officers and other
377 related matters shall be as specified by the Trustees in the Bylaws of the Board of Trustees.

378 ARTICLE 5: COMMITTEES

379 5.1 **General.** The Committees of the Federation shall be the Executive Committee of the
380 Board of Trustees, the Nominating Committee, the Standing Committees specified in the Bylaws of the
381 Board of Trustees and such other Committees as the Board of Trustees may from time to time establish
382 pursuant to the Bylaws of the Board of Trustees or by resolution of the Board of Trustees. The Board of

383 Trustees may delegate to such Committees, by resolution or in the Bylaws of the Board of Trustees, any
384 of the authority of the Trustees.

385 ARTICLE 6: INDEMNIFICATION

386 6.1 **Authorization.** In the event that any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be
387 made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal,
388 administrative or investigative, seeks indemnification from the ~~Corporation~~ Federation against expenses,
389 including attorney fees, (and in the case of actions other than those by or in the right of the ~~Corporation~~
390 Federation, judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement) incurred by him in connection with such
391 action, suit or proceeding by reason of the fact that such person is or was a Trustee, Officer, employee, or
392 agent of the Corporation volunteer serving as a member of a Federation Committee or designated agent
393 of the Federation or is or was serving at the request of the ~~Corporation~~ Federation as a trustee, director,
394 officer, employee, or volunteer or designated agent of another corporation, domestic or foreign, non-
395 profit or for profit, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, then, unless such indemnification
396 is ordered by a court, ~~the Corporation~~ or unless to the extent that such person has been successful on the
397 merits or otherwise in defense of such action, suit, or proceeding referred to in this Paragraph 6.1, or in
398 defense of any claim, issue, or matter in such an action, suit, or proceeding, the Federation shall
399 determine or cause to be determined in the manner provided in Section 1702.12 (E)(4) of the Ohio
400 Revised Code whether or not indemnification is proper in the circumstances because the person claiming
401 such indemnification has met the applicable standards of conduct set forth in Divisions (E)(1) and (E)(2)
402 of Section 1702 12 (E) of the Ohio Revised Code and, to the extent that it is so determined that such
403 indemnification is proper, the person claiming such indemnification shall be indemnified. The foregoing
404 rights of indemnification shall not be deemed exclusive of, and shall be in addition to, any other rights to
405 which those seeking indemnification may be entitled under Section 1702.12 (E)(6) of the Ohio Revised
406 Code through agreement or through a vote of Members or disinterested Trustees, provided, however,
407 Section 1702.12(E)(5) of the Ohio Revised Code shall not apply to the Federation to the extent that it
408 requires the indemnification of volunteers (as that term is defined in Section 1702.01(N) of the Ohio
409 Revised Code) other than volunteers serving as Trustees or Officers of the Federation or as members of a
410 Committee of the Federation or volunteers serving as trustees, directors, officers or designated agents of
411 another domestic or foreign corporation or corporation for profit, or partnership, joint venture, employee
412 benefit plan, trust, or other enterprise serving at the request of the Federation.

413 ~~B. Insurance. The Corporation~~ 6.2 **Insurance.** The Federation may, to the extent permitted
414 by Chapter 1702 of the Ohio Revised Code, purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person
415 who is or was a Trustee, Officer, employee, volunteer serving as a member of a Committee of the
416 Federation or designated agent of the ~~Corporation~~ Federation, or is or was serving at the request of the
417 ~~Corporation~~ Federation as a trustee, director, officer, employee, volunteer or designated agent of another
418 corporation, domestic or foreign, non-profit or for profit, partnership, joint venture, trust or other
419 enterprise

420 ARTICLE 7: VII

421

422 CORPORATE SEAL

423 7.1 The Board of Trustees may provide a seal for the ~~Corporation~~ Federation, which shall be
424 in the charge of the Secretary or such other Officer as the Board of Trustees may from time to time
425 direct

426 ARTICLE 8: VIII

427

428 FISCAL YEAR

429 8.1 The fiscal year of the ~~Corporation~~ Federation shall be the twelve ~~(12)~~ month period
430 ending on June 30, or ending on such other date as may from time to time be provided by the Board of
431 Trustees

432 ARTICLE 9: ~~IX~~

433

434 AMENDMENTS

435 ~~This Amended Code of 9.1~~ These Regulations may be amended or repealed at any Annual
436 Meeting of Members, or at any Special Meeting of Members called for that purpose, by vote of at least
437 two-thirds (2/3) of the Members present and voting at such Meeting, provided that notice of such
438 proposed amendment or repeal shall either have been mailed to each Member at least five (5) days before
439 the date of such Meeting or shall have been published ~~in~~ at least ten (10) days before the date of
440 such Meeting in the Cleveland Jewish News or another newspaper of general circulation in the Jewish
441 community in Cuyahoga County, Ohio, ~~at least ten (10) days before the date of such Meeting or, if timely~~
442 publication in the Cleveland Jewish News or another newspaper of general circulation in the Jewish
443 community is not feasible, by publication on the Federation's Internet Website (followed by publication
444 in the Cleveland Jewish News or another newspaper of general circulation in the Jewish community at
445 least two (2) days before such meeting). The Board of Trustees may submit amendments on its own
446 initiative and shall submit amendments upon the written request of not less than two hundred fifty (250)
447 Members

448

This* * *

449 These Amended Code of & Restated Regulations shall supersede the existing Amended
450 Code of Regulations of the Federation, (Constitution)

451

452

453 J\Admin\A003187a Doc

454
455
456
457
458
459
460
461
462
463
464
465
466
467
468
469
470
471
472
473
474
475
476
477
478
479

~~/jao/h\codereg-doe~~
~~09/06/96 9:14 AM~~

----- COMPARISON OF HEADERS -----

~~-HEADER 1-~~

~~-HEADER 2-~~
Header Discontinued

~~-HEADER 3-~~
Header Discontinued

----- COMPARISON OF FOOTERS -----

~~-FOOTER 1-~~
C:\DOCX97\convert\code-cur-Page 10 1

~~-FOOTER 2-~~
P 6

P

|

480 This redlined draft, generated by CompareRite (TM) - The Instant Redliner, shows the
481 differences between -
482 original document . G \PHF0261\10043\96001\DOCS\CODE_CUR.DOC
483 and revised document G \PHF0261\10043\96001\DOCS\FINAL\CODE8RR.DOC

484
485 CompareRite found 227 change(s) in the text
486 CompareRite found 3 change(s) in the notes

487
488 Deletions appear as Overstrike text
489 Additions appear as Double Underline text

490
491
492

J \Admn\A003187a Doc

Application for Extension of Time to File Certain Excise, Income, Information, and Other Returns

File a separate application for each return.

Please type or print. File the original and one copy by the due date for filing your return. See instructions on back.

Name: JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION
Employer identification number: 34-0714445
Number, street, and room or suite no: 1750 Euclid Avenue
City, town or post office, state, and ZIP code: Cleveland OH 44115

Note: Corporate income tax return filers must use Form 7004 to request an extension of time to file. Partnerships, REMICs, and trusts must use Form 8736 to request an extension of time to file Form 1065, 1066, or 1041

1 I request an extension of time until May 15, 2000, to file (check only one).

- Form 706-GS(D), Form 706-GS(T), Form 990 or 990-EZ, Form 990-BL, Form 990-PF, Form 990-T (401(a) or 408(a) trust), Form 990-T (trust other than above), Form 1041 (estate), Form 1041-A, Form 1042, Form 1120-ND (4951 taxes), Form 3520-A, Form 4720, Form 5227, Form 6069, Form 8612, Form 8613, Form 8725, Form 8804, Form 8831

If the organization does not have an office or place of business in the United States, check this box.

2a For calendar year 1999, or other tax year beginning July 1, 1998 and ending June 30, 1999

b If this tax year is for less than 12 months, check reason: Initial return, Final return, Change in accounting period

3 Has an extension of time to file been previously granted for this tax year? Yes X

4 State in detail why you need the extension: additional time is needed to gather the information necessary to file a complete & accurate return

5a If this form is for Form 706-GS(D), 706-GS(T), 990-BL, 990-PF, 990-T, 1041 (estate), 1042, 1120-ND, 4720, 6069, 8612, 8613, 8725, 8804, or 8831, enter the tentative tax, less any nonrefundable credits

b If this form is for Form 990-PF, 990-T, 1041 (estate), 1042, or 8804, enter any refundable credits and estimated tax payments made

c Balance due. Subtract line 5b from line 5a. Include your payment with this form, or deposit with FTD coupon if required

Signature and Verification

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this form, including accompanying schedules and statements and to the best of my knowledge and belief it is true, correct, and complete, and that I am authorized to prepare this form

Signature: Kimberly A. Fetter Title: CPA Date: 2/9/2000

FILE ORIGINAL AND ONE COPY. The IRS will show below whether or not your application is approved and will return the copy

Notice to Applicant—To Be Completed by the IRS

- We HAVE approved your application. Please attach this form to your return.
We HAVE NOT approved your application. However, we have granted a 10-day grace period from the later of the date shown below or the due date of your return (including any prior extensions) This grace period is considered to be a valid extension of time for elections otherwise required to be made on a timely return. Please attach this form to your return.
We HAVE NOT approved your application. After considering the reasons stated in item 4, we cannot grant your request for an extension of time to file. We are not granting the 10-day grace period.
We cannot consider your application because it was filed after the due date of the return for which an extension was requested.
Other

By: Director Date:

If you want a copy of this form to be returned to an address other than that shown above, please enter the address to which the copy should be sent.

Name, Number, street, and room or suite no, City, town or post office, state, and ZIP code. Includes stamp: EXTENSION APPROVED 1/19 0 7 2000 RICHARD CREAMER, DIRECTOR

Application for Extension of Time To File
Certain Estate, Income, Information, and Other Returns

OMB No 1545-0148

File a separate application for each return.

Please type or print. File the original and one copy of the due date for filing your return. See instructions.

Name

Jewish Community Federation of Cleveland

Employer identification number

34-0717445

Number, street, and room or suite no (or PO box no if mail is not delivered to street address)

1750 Euclid Avenue

City, town, or post office, state, and ZIP code For a foreign address see instructions

Cleveland, OH 44115

Note: Corporate income tax return filers must use Form 7004 to request an extension of time to file Partnerships, REMICs, and trusts must use Form 8736 to request an extension of time to file Form 1065, 1066, or 1041

1 I request an extension of time until February 15, 2000, to file (check only one).

- Form 706-GS(D) Form 990-T (sec. 401(a) or 408(a) trust) Form 1120-ND (sec 4951 taxes) Form 8612
Form 706-GS(T) Form 990-T (trust other than above) Form 3520-A Form 8613
Form 990 or 990-EZ Form 1041 (estate) (see instructions) Form 4720 Form 8725
Form 990-BL Form 1041-A Form 5227 Form 8804
Form 990-PF Form 1042 Form 6069 Form 8831

If the organization does not have an office or place of business in the United States, check this box

2a For calendar year July 1, 1998 and ending Dec 31, 1999

b If this tax year is for less than 12 months, check reason Initial return Final return Change in accounting period

3 Has an extension of time to file been previously granted for this tax year? Yes No

4 State in detail why you need the extension additional time is needed to gather the information necessary to file a complete & accurate return

5a If this form is for Form 706-GS(D), 706-GS(T), 990-BL, 990-PF, 990-T, 1041 (estate), 1042, 1120-ND, 4720, 5399, 8612, 8613, 8725, 8804, or 8831, enter the tentative tax, less any nonrefundable credits See instructions \$ none

b If this form is for Form 990-PF, 990-T, 1041 (estate), 1042, or 8804, enter any refundable credits and estimated tax payments made Include any prior year overpayment allowed as a credit \$ none

c Balance due Subtract line 5b from line 5a Include your payment with this form, or deposit with FTD coupon if required See instructions \$ none

Signature and Verification

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this form, including accompanying schedules and statements and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is true, correct, and complete, and that I am authorized to prepare this form.

Signature: Kerli G. Ruth Title: CPA Date: 11/3/99

FILE ORIGINAL AND ONE COPY. The IRS will show below whether or not your application is approved and will return the copy

Notice to Applicant - To Be Completed by the IRS

- We HAVE approved your application. Please attach this form to your return. EXTENSION APPROVED
We HAVE NOT approved your application. However, we have granted a 10-day grace period from the later of the date shown below or the due date of your return (including any prior extensions) This grace period is considered to be a valid extension of time for elections otherwise required to be made on a timely return. Please attach this form.
We HAVE NOT approved your application. After considering the reasons stated in item 4, we cannot grant your request for an extension of time to file We are not granting the 10-day grace period.
We cannot consider your application because it was filed after the due date of the return for which an extension was requested. NOV 18 1999
Other:

DEBORAH S. DECKER, Director
OGDEN SERVICE CENTER

Director

By

Date

If you want a copy of this form to be returned to an address other than that shown above, please enter the address to which the copy should be sent

Name
Number, street, and room or suite no (or PO box no if mail is not delivered to street address)
City, town, or post office, state, and ZIP code For a foreign address, see instructions